EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

ooooOoog
24
2020 23
2019 ( 2018 12 2019 11 30 )
(Goldman Sachs International)
(Maryline Stephanie Juliette Mertz, Managing Director)
EC4A 4AU 25
(Plumtree Court, 25 Shoe Lane, London EC4A 4AU, United Kingdom)
03(6775)1000
03(6775)1000
GSI
GS
2020 10 UFJ

108.61

1/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

ooooooo
2006 2006 2006 2006
11 2006 2009 10
1985 1985 2009 10
2006
2006
1986
2006
2006
a public companies limited by shares b private
companies limited by shares c private companies limited by guarantee
d unlimited companies
1988 1985 1994 25
1986
Memorandum of Association
2006 2006
2009 10

2011 17
2011 17

2/375

2006



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

Articles of Association

2006
a
b
c
2006 entrenchment
2006 2008 S1 200873229
2006
2006
2006
2006
directors” report
2006 2006 2013
strategic report S1 2013/1970 2013 30

2018
2020

3/375



2006

21

EEA

4/375

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

2016

2020

2006



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

2006
2006

EEA

2006

21

14
90
95

5/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

2006

48

2006
75

2006

2006

75

2006

2006

6/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

2006

2006

2006

16

2006

o o

o O

2019 10 16

71375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

8/375



12

2006

9/375

176

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn



21

2009

10/375

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

14



2007

11/375

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

2000

885

20



12/375

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

oOoOooodn
@
(
)
2016 2037 12 31 15.315
2038 15
2011
2013 2037 12 31 15.315
2038 15
2011
(
)
2016 2037 12 31 15.315
2038 15

2011

13/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

(b)

©
20.315 2038

20

LLP
2020 23
1985 1994 25

14/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

2019 11 30 2018 11 30 2017 12 31 2016 12 31 2015 12 31
2,656 3,259 2,389 2,280 2,939
2,426 3,030 2,091 1,943 2,661
1,802 2,198 1,557 1,456 2,308

2019 11 30 2018 11 30 2017 12 31 2016 12 31 2015 12 31
409 315 210 140 12
1,040,845 886,652 939,863 934,129 850,219
34,248 33,917 31,701 27,533 26,353

15/375




GSI 1988
International
FCA

Trushelfco Limited
21
Limited

GSI
PRA

authorised person

EC4A 4AU

Plumtree Court, 25 Shoe Lane, London EC4A 4AU, United Kingdom

GSI
Goldman Sachs
Limited
FSMA
GSI
FCA PRA

GSI
1000

GSI

International

16/375

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

1266 1988

1994 25
02263951
Goldman Sachs International
PRA
2000

GSI

25
+44 (0)20 7774

Goldman Sachs



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

oooooog
2019 11
GSI
EMEA
PRA FCA
FRB
GS GS
GS
GS
One Goldman Sachs GS
GS
GS GSI
EMEA
GS
www . goldmansachs.com/our-firm/people-and-culture
2019 11 30

17/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

oOoOooodn
2019 11 30 12 2018
12 31 11 30 2018 11 30 11
2019 11 2019 11 30 12
2018 11 2018 11 30 11
GS
2019 11
2019 11
GSI
M&A

2019 11

18/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

ooOoooOoo
PRA ICAAP
EU CRD EU CRR EU
EU EU
2021
RWA
Tierl CET1 CET1 RWA
Tierl Tierl RWA RWA

19/375



EDINETOOOO

OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

ooooooo
CET1 Tierl Pillar 1
CET1 RWA 2.5
2.5 CET1
CET1 0.32
Pillar 2A Pillar 1
PRA ICAAP PRA Pillar 2A
PRA
2020 11 2020 11
CET1
0.20
2019 11 2018 11
CET1 8.8% 8.1%
Tierl 10.7% 10.1%
13.4% 12.7%
PRA Pillar 2A
PRA Pillar 2A
PRA Pillar

2B PRA

20/375



EDINETOOOO

OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

oOoOooodn

2019 11 2018 11
RWA
CET1 24,082 23,899
Tierl 8,300 8,300
Tierl 32,382 32,199
Tier2 5,377 5,377
37,759 37,576
RWA 206,768 206,007
CET1 11.6% 11.6%
Tierl 15.7% 15.6%
18.3% 18.2%
2019 11 2018 11 PRA
RWA
( ) 2019 11 2018 11
590 582
5,196 4,864
20,330 20,070
(168) 101
(1,866) (1,718)
CET1 24,082 23,899
Tierl 8,300 8,300
Tierl 32,382 32,199
Tier2
5,377 5,377
Tier2 5,377 5,377
37,759 37,576

21/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

RWA
) 2019 11 2018 11
RWA 106,329 107,554
RWA 85,031 84,349
RWA 15,408 14,104
206,768 206,007
RWA
RWA
VaR
VaR SVaR PRA
VaR
CRR
RWA
RWA

125

22/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

ooOoooOoo
12.5 RWA
CRR
25
2019 11 2018 11
CRR
CRR EU
2021 CRR
Tierl
Tierl
( ) 2019 11 2018 11
Tierl 32,382 32,199
740,306 771,438
4.4% 4.2%
2019 11

2018 11

23/375



2019
2019 11
@)
1869
a
b
343,856,654
c
10282
10282, U.S.A.

MREL 510.5
377.6

150,000,000

4,000,000,000

200,000,000

+1(212)902-1000

MREL

24/375

EDINETOOOO

OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

oOoOooodn
MREL
2022
132.9
0.01 4,350,000,000
420,282 420,280

901,409,000

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

200 200 West Street, New York, New York



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

GSI 100

d—IFvor- T3 - Ar8—F gt
2020 2 A 1 BIE®E

LI ) PN e s o e S ) PR B s
FRR T
292346

100%4
HREE GEE(ICIETES

N
A= F=o - el (K LL.C,
T T
2317041
A 009
FREE 1009
N
A= F=wr el FL-FH) 250k
AT
N8ERTATA
A 00
FERHFE100%
R | P - PRy e LI (P sy RV | )
AT R
02263351 [ H#isssi
@
2019 11 30 (6)

13

25/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

2019 11 30
(6) 2019 11 30 4,230

GS

26/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

2019 11

27/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

EU

28/375



EU

EU

GS

29/375

TLAC

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

TLAC

30/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

2020 31 EU
EU
2020 12 31 EU
passporting EU EU EU EU
EU EU
2020 12 31 EU
EU
EU
EU

31/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

32/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

33/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

TLAC

34/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

MEA

M&A

35/375



EU

36/375

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

1SDA
2018
1SDA

1SDA
1SDA

37/375



38/375

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

IT

39/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

40/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

41/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

42/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

EU

2001

43/375



26

GS

One Goldman Sachs

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

2019 11 30 (6)

MDB )

GS

GS
GS

GS
GS

44/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

ETF
IBOR

45/375



IBOR

1BOR

IBOR

GS

46/375

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

oOoOooodn

LIBOR

ETF ETF

1BOR
IBOR
IBOR
1BOR
GS



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

PRA FCA
PRA FCA

47/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

48/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

2020 2 29 10 11

COVID-19
COVID-19

COVID-19

COVID-19

M&A

COVID-19

2020

COVID-19

49/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

2019 11
2019 11 30
2019 11 18.0 2018 11 18
2019 11 81.0 2018 11
2019 11 54.4 2018 11 18
2019 11 Tierl CET1 EU CRD

11.6

50/375



2019

2019

2019

2019

11

11

11
2019
10.0

11

3,936.1

EDINETOOOO

OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

2019 11 30

1.04 2018 11

1,942.8

1.01 2018 11

1,686.5
342.5 2018 11
11 18.0
Tierl AT1
2018 11
2019 11 30

28

3,674.3

51/375

ooooooo

1,541.5

469.9
1,538.1

220.6
331

340
542
53.3 53.1
(©)
2019 11



2020 12

EU

2019 11

COVID-19

2019 11

2019 11
1.5 1.75

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

oOoOooodn
EU
COVID-19
EU
2020 12 31 EU
EU
COVID-19

BCP
2018 11

2019 11

52/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

2019 11 2018 11

742 693

775 871

1,517 1,564

FICC 2,768 2,353
2,739 2,640

5,507 4,993

501 532

571 777

8,096 7,866

53/375



M&A

2019 11 2018 11
2019 11

M&A
2019 11

15.2

54/375

2018 11

2018 11

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

FICC

ETF

G10

55/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

oOoOooodn
2019 11 2018 11
2019 11 55.1 2018 11
10
2019 11 FICC 27.7 2018 11 18
2019 11 27.4 2018 11
GS

GS

56/375



EDINETOOOO

OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

57/375

OooooOodd
2019 11 30
(6)
( ) 2019 11 2018 11
2,394 1,945
907 767
94 81
122 112
116 58
226 157
186 203
919 802
(370) (387)
846 869
5,440 4,607
4,230 4,210
2019 11 175
2018 11 184
2019 11 2018 11
2019 11 54.4 2018 11 18
2019 11 23.9 2018 11 23
2019 11 22.2 2018 11
2019 11 907 2018 11 18
2019 11 116 2018 11 58



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

oOoOooodn
2019 11
11.5 2018 11 19
2019 11 2018 11
2019 11 2018 11
2019 11 243 2018 11
2019 11 25.7 27.0
GS
GS

GS

GS

58/375



GS

GS
GS

GS

GS

GS

59/375

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

GS
GS
GS

GS



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

( ) 2019 11 2018 11
130,087 52% 152,145 56%
64,311 25% 61,493 23%
23,139 9% 25,197 9%
34,248 14% 33,917 12%
251,785 100% 272,752 100%
GCLA
GCLA

2019 11 120

60/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

UK
IHC

IHC GS
GS
IHC

2019 11 30 (6) 21 22

EU

61/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

oOoOooodn
2019 EU EU CRR CRD
CRR MREL
CRR 2021 28
MREL
2023
CRD
EU EU CRD
CRD 2021 28
2022
EU 2023 12 30
2017 12
2019 11 CVA
2022

2027

62/375



EU CRR CRD
EU
CRR
EU
EU
2020 12
EU
EU
EU
GS

GS

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

ooooooo
EU
CRD
2020 31
EU
2020 12 31
EU
passports EU
EU EU
EU
EU
EU
2019 EU
EU 2020
2020 12 31 EU
GS

63/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

oOoOooodn
GS
GS
EU GS
EU
EU
LIBOR IBOR
EU
1BOR
LIBOR FCA 2021
LIBOR
IBOR
IBOR

2021 IBOR

IBOR

64/375



GS

GS

GS

IBOR

65/375

GS

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn



GS

GS

EDINETOOOO

OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

GS
GS
GS
GS

GCLA

66/375

GS

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

ooooood
GCLA
GCLA
GCLA
GCLA
GCLA GCLA
GS

GSI

67/375



30

GCLA

30

GS

GSI

68/375

GS

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

GS



GS
GSI
GS
GS
GSI
GCLA
GCLA
11

GCLA

GS

GS

GSI

GCLA

69/375

EDINETOOOO

OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

2019 11

oOoOooodn

GS

GS
GSI

2018



EDINETOOOO

OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

oOoOooodn

GCLA
2019 11 2018 11
( 2
13,583 22,037
19,747 18,710
11,708 9,938
7,784 6,760
6,315 6,678
2,317 2,410
61,454 66,533
GCLA
IHC
GCLA GS
IHC GCLA
GCLA
GCLA
2019 11 330.0 2018 11 261.1
LCR NSFR
LCR 100 LCR
2019 11 12 LCR
NSFR
2019 EU
NSFR CRR
NSFR
2021 28 NSFR

70/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

S&P
2019 11
S&p
6sl

F1 P-1 A-1
A Al A+
F1 P-2 A-2
A A3 BBB+
A- Baa2 BBB-
BBB- Baa3 BB
BB+ Bal BB

( ) 2019 11 2018 11

166 96

594 252

71/375



2019 11
2019 11
362
2018 11
2018 11
57.3
AT1
ATl 25.0

©)

10.0

25.0

28

721375

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

2019 11 30

15.5 223.6
16.9

AT1
340
50.0 242.4
557
2019 11 30



GS

GS

GS

73/375

GS

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

GS

GS



VaR
VaR

VaR

VaR

VaR

VaR

VaR

VaR

VaR

VaR

VaR

VaR
VaR

74/375

95

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

VaR

VaR
GS



Va

GS

R

GS

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

VaR

GS

GS

GS VaR

VaR

GS

GS

VaR GS

75/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

oOoOooodn

VaR
GSI GSI
VaR
VaR VaR
VaR
( ) 2019 11 2018 11
24 22
18 20
8 10
1 1
(19) 1)

32 32

2019 11 VaR 2018 11

76/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

ooooooo
VaR
( ) 2019 11 2018 11
23 25
18 19
6 10
1 1
(€Y)) (24)
31 31
2019 11 VaR 2018 11
VaR
2019 11 2018 11
( )
34 18 37 18
37 13 33 16
16 4 20 6
2 - 5 -
VaR 49 25 41 25
VaR
VaR
10
VaR 10

2019 11 31.6 2018 11 33.2

77/375



GS

78/375

GS

GS

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

GS
GS



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

GSI GSI
GSI
GS

79/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

80/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

( )
2019 11
788,407 156,348 73,256 22,397 1,040,408
(101,104) - - - (101,104)
(611,789) (65,240) (4,199) - (681,228)
(40,382) - (39,222) - (79,604)
(15,939) (88,933) (10,159) - (115,031)
19,193 2,175 19,676 22,397 63,441
2018 11
594,129 203,334 64,487 24,396 886,346
(76,093) - - - (76,093)
(449,860) (83,336) (5,450) - (538,646)
(35,148) - (32,439) - (67,587)
(14,459) (116,837) (7,415) - (138,711)

18,569 3,161 19,183 24,396 65,309

81/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

( )
2019 11
888,440 151,968 1,040,408
- (101,104) (101,104)
(665,664) (15,564) (681,228)
(70,607) (8,997) (79,604)
(95,424) (19,607) (115,031)
56,745 6,696 63,441
2018 11
762,094 124,252 886,346
- (76,093) (76,093)
(522,194) (16,452) (538,646)
(59,579) (8,008) (67,587)
(122,421) (16,290) (138,711)
57,900 7,409 65,309
( ) AAA AA A BBB
2019 11
30,513 83,355 677,734 96,838 888,440
(3,525) (42,927)  (572,147) (47,065) (665,664)
(9,529) (13,099) (30,812) (17,167) (70,607)
(571) (15,343) (57,495) (22,015) (95,424)
16,888 11,986 17,280 10,591 56,745
2018 11
28,353 78,956 561,437 93,348 762,094
(2,630) (33,438)  (439,612) (46,514) (522,194)
(6,305) (10,846) (25,695) (16,733) (59,579)
(746) (22,588) (78,793) (20,294) (122,421)

18,672 12,084 17,337 9,807 57,900

82/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

83/375

OooooOodd
( BB
2019 11
47,813 104,155 151,968
- (101,104) (101,104)
(15,547) an (15,564)
(8,916) (81) (8.997)
(18,041) (1,566) (19,607)
5,309 1,387 6,696
2018 11
46,412 77,840 124,252
- (76,093) (76,093)
(16,423) (29) (16,452)
(7,993) (15) (8,008)
(16,158) (132) (16,290)
5,838 1,571 7,409
15.7
2019 11
632.9 605.3
2019 11 626.9 2018 11 600.6
2018 11 473
2019 11 1,604.2 2018 11 1,446.6
2019 11

ECL



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

2019 11 2018 11
7,429 8,038

29,535 25,703
21,896 26,033

738 1,883

1,178 1,230

2,665 2,422

63,441 65,309

( EMEA ) 41,042 43,486
15,070 14,407

7,329 7,416

63,441 65,309

84/375



GS

GS

GS

EMEA

85/375

GS

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

86/375



GS

87/375

GS

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

BCP
BCP



GS

GS

GS

GS

88/375

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

GS

GS
GS

GS



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

89/375



13

13

2019 11 30

2019 11 30

90/375

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

(©)

(©)



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

OooooOodd
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(2019 11 30 )
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100
589,608,046
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( )
( ))
2015 12 31 48,517,011 | 581,964,161 49 3y 9820 632 )
2016 12 31 - | 581,964,161 - - 582.0 632 )
2017 12 31 - | 581,964,161 - - 562.0 632 )
2018 11 30 - | 581,964,161 - - 582.0 632 )
2019 11 30 7,643,885 | 589,608,046 8 © ) 590.0 641 )
2019 21 7,643,885 UK
44.48 332,356,115
340,000,000
2019 11 30
ECAA 4AU
K 25 589,608,046 100
2019 11 2019 11 30
(6) 23
PRA PRA FCA
PRA FCA
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44
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2020 23
J 2006 10 23
0
(1960 31 )
2016
0
(1956 23 )
2015 24
0
(1945 21 )
2016 10
0
(1946 21 )
2016 12 16
0
(1959 )
W 2016 12
0
(1964 12 )
A 2018 20
0
(1961 25 )
E 2018 31
0
(1957 )
L
2018 31
OBE 0
(1951 11 11 )
2019
0
(1965 12 30 )

GSI GSI

40
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LLC
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15 28
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GSI
2015 GSI
40
1969 1981
1999
1967
2014
2004 2015
2006 2008 J C
1994
J
1978 1974
GSI
GSIB 2016 12 GSI
GSIB KPMG 20
2003 KPMG
2003 KPMG
KPMG

KPMG
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W
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GSI 2018 GSI

2006 2013 LOCOG
LOCOG GSI
UK

CQs

2006 2011 GAM
GAM
CEO
2001

1995 1998
MA

2019 11 30
(©)
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)
GSI
31
2007 10 1985 386
(i)
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
6.0 (652 ) 6.1 (663 )
0 ) 0 )
5.5 (597 ) 5.9 (641 )
(iii)
(i)
@iv)
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
4.1 (445 ) 4.2 (456 )
1.1 (119 ) 1.5 (163 )
0.2 (22 ) 0.1 (11 )
0.1 (11 ) 0.1 (11 )
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38 59
131
2019 11 30 2018 11 30
193
12 31 11 30 2019 11
30 2019 11 30 12
2018 11 30 11
2019 2018
134
2020 10 UFJ

108.61
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OooooOodd
2019 11 30
@

2019 11 2018 11
4, 5 $ 8,096 \ 879,307 $ 7,866 \ 854,326
6 (5,440) (590, 838) (4,607) (500, 366)
2,656 288,468 3,259 353,960
9 (243) (26,392) (237) (25,741)
10 13 1,412 8 869
2,426 263,488 3,030 329,088
12 (624) (67.773) (832) (90,364)
$ 1,802 \ 195,715 $ 2,198 \ 238,725

@

2019 11 2018 11

$ 1,802 \ 195,715 $ 2,198 \ 238,725
/

¢ ) 10 (159) (17,269) 61 6,625
(201) (21,831) 465 50,504
17 90 9,775 137) (14,880)
1 109 1 109
( ) 7¢ ) (269) (29,216) 390 42,358
$ 1,533 \ 166,499 $ 2,588 \ 281,083
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OooooOodd
®3)
2019 11 2018 11
13 $ 409 \ 44,421 $ 315 \ 34,212
(2019 11 2018 11
35,335 14 788,407 85,628,884 594,129 64,528,351
20,550 )
15 156,348 16,980,956 203,334 22,084,106
16 73,693 8,003,797 64,793 7,037,168
24 22,397 2,432,538 24,396 2,649,650
1,040,845 113,046,175 886,652 96,299,274
14 (714,640)  (77,617,050) (545,987) (59,299, 648)
18 (124,740)  (13,548,011) (141,840)  (15,405,242)
19 (93,476)  (10,152,428) (97,151)  (10,551,570)
(932,856)  (101,317,490) (784,978)  (85,256,461)
107,989 11,728,685 101,674 11,042,813
108,398 11,773,107 101,989 11,077,025
18 (5.347) (580,738) (10,305)  (1,119,226)
19 (69,066) (7.501,258) (58,095)  (6,309,698)
(74,413) (8,081,996) (68,400)  (7.428,924)
20 @ (109) (78) (8,472)
33,984 3,691,002 33,511 3,639,630
10 264 28,673 406 44,096
$ 34,248 \ 3,719,675 $ 33,917 \ 3,683,725
21 $ 590 \ 64,080 $ 582 \ 63,211
5,196 564,338 4,864 528,279
20,330 2,208,041 20,070 2,179,803
(168) (18,246) 101 10,970
22 8,300 901,463 8,300 901,463
$ 34,248 \ 3,719,675 $ 33,917 \ 3,683,725
2020 11
D.W.

2020 23
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OooooOodd
)

2019 11 2018 11
$ 582 \ 63,211 $ 582 \ 63,211
21 8 869 17 1,846
21 - - an (1,846)
590 64,080 582 63,211
4,864 528,279 4,864 528,279
21 332 36,059 - -
5,196 564,338 4,864 528,279
- — 17 1,846
21 - - @7 (1,846)
20,070 2,179,803 20,727 2,251,159

IFRS 15

) - - ® (543)
1,802 195,715 2,198 238,725
21 - - 17 1,846
23 (1,000) (108,610) (2,500) (271,525)
Tier 22 (542) (58,867) (367) (39,860)
452 49,092 405 43,987
(452) (49,092) (405) (43,987)
20,330 2,208,041 20,070 2,179,803
101 10,970 (289) (31,388)
/( (269) (29,216) 390 42,358
(168) (18,246) 101 10,970
8,300 901,463 5,800 629,938
Tier 22 - - 2,500 271,525
8,300 901,463 8,300 901,463
$ 34,248  \3,719,675 $ 33,917  \3,683,725
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®)
2019 11 2018 11
25 $ 510 \ 55,391 $ 5,980 \ 649,488
3 326 1 109
(151) (16,400) (252) (27,370)
362 39,317 5,729 622,227
(223) (24,220) (172) (18,681)
(223) (24,220) (172) (18,681)
Tier 22 - - 2,500 271,525
21 340 36,927 - -
23 (1.000) (108, 610) (2,500) (271,525)
Tier 22 742) (80,589) (503) (54,631)
19 (289) (31.388) (54) (5,865)
(1,691) (183, 660) (557) (60,496)
/( (1,552) (168,563) 5,000 543,050
24,243 2,633,032 20,654 2,243,231
(332) (36,059) (1,411) (153,249)
24 $ 22,359  \2,428,411 $ 24,243 \2,633,032

21
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10282
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GSG UK

GSG UK
2020 12 31

FRS 101



2018
12

101

IFRS

IFRS 15
114

115
1AS

1AS

IAS 16
1AS
1AS
IAS 24

IAS 24

IFRS 16

)
sic 15

IFRS 16

12 31 11 30
2018 11 30
EU ( IFRS
45 (b) 46 52
( IFRS 15
118 119 @ (c) 120 127
38
79 @C)
73 (e)
10 () 16 40 A D
30
17
GS
2016 IFRS 16
IAS 17 IFRIC
2017 11 EU IFRS

2019 12

113/375

EDINETOOOO

OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

OooooOodd
2019 11 30
11
) FRS
) 110 113 (a)
129
31
100%
2006 402
( IFRS 16
2019
16



IFRS

DVA

DVA

DVA

)
( )
( IFRS ) DVA
SI 2008/410
19
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DVA
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ooooooo
IFRS
ECL 12
ECL
ECL
( )
( )
30
( ) GS
( ) 90
ECL
ECL
ECL
ECL
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28

IAS 39
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Oooooooo
( ) 2019 11 2018 11
$ 5,914 $ 5,014
1,595 1,566
7,509 6,580
(3.314) (3,212)
(4,391) (3,563)
(7,705) (6,775)
(196) (195)
8,138 4,416
(1,586) 1,875
1,740 1,770
8,292 8,061
$ 8,096 $ 7,866
2019 11 25.5
2018 11 24.1
2019 11
34.0 2018 11 33.7
( )
)
) ) )
( )
(GCLA )
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2019 11 2018 11
$ 742 $ 693
775 871
$1,517 $1,564
FICC $2,768 $2,353
2,739 2,640
$5,507 $4,993

$ 501 $ 532

$ 571 $ 777
$8,096 $7,866

2019 11 2018 11
$ 1,517 $ 1,564
(1,046) (1,076)
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DINETOOOO

OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

$ 411 $ 488
$ 5,507 $ 4,993
(3,330) (2,910)
$ 2,177 $ 2,083
$ 8,006 $ 7,866
(5.440) (4,607)
$ 2,656 $ 3,259
10.7 2018 11 13.1
11 889 2018 11 805
2019 11
175 2018 11
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2019
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2019 11 2018 11
( EMEA ) $5,768 $5,674
1,460 1,352
868 840
$8,096 $7,866
2019 11 2018 11
$2,394 $1,945
907 767
94 81
122 112
116 58
226 157
186 203
919 802
(370) 387)
846 869
$5,440 $4,607
2019 11
2018 11 69
IFRS 15
2019 11 2018 11
$6.0 $ 6.1
4.1 4.2
1.1 1.5
0.2 0.1
0.1 0.1
5.5 5.9
$11.5 $12.0
GS
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ooooooo
GS
GS
( ) 2019 11 2018 11
819 782
1,649 1,571
205 198
581 555
924 961
4,178 4,067
2019 11 4,230 2018 11 4,210
( ) 2019 11 2018 11
$2,075 $1,659
268 237
51 45
- 4
$2,394 $1,945
2019 11
175 2018 11 184
( ) 2019 11 2018 11
$7 $5
$7 $5
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( ) 2019 11 2018 11
$4 $3
2006
S1 2008 /410
2019 11
1.8 2019 11
2.3
2019 11
243 2018 11 237 19
10
( )
65
2008 2016
31
UK ( )
2019
31 2019 11 30 2019 11

96% %
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Ooooooog
( AA )
( %) 2019 11 2018 11
1.99 3.14
RPI 3.02 3.50
CPI 2.27 2.50
(1996 11 30 ) 2.82 3.30
(1996 11 30 ) 2.27 2.50
(2009 ) 2.27 2.50
) 2019 11 2018 11
65 65
24.1 23.5
25.3 24.7
45 65
25.3 24.8
26.6 26.2
2019 11 SAPS S3 ( )
2013 CMI 2018
1.25% 0.50%
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( ) 2019 11 2018 11
$ - $ 4
(13) (8)
(13) “4)
/( ) (393) 368
(21) )
/C ) 560 (408)
/C ) 13 (14)
C ) 159 (61)
/C ) $ 146 $  (65)
( )
2019 11
12 $2,222 $(1,816) $ 406
69 (56) 13
/( ) 393 - 393
C ) - 21 21
C ) - (560) (560)
C ) - 13) (13)
“5 4 -
/¢ ) 22 (38) 4
11 30 $2,682 $(2,418) $ 264
2018 11
$2,663 $(2,342) $ 321
- (©) (©)
58 (50) 8
/( ) (368) - (368)
C ) - 7 7
C ) - 408 408
C ) - 14 14
47 - 47
(34) 34 -
/C ) (144) 117 @7
11 30 $2,222 $(1,816) $ 406
50% ( ) 50%
)
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( )
2019 11
$1,400 $ - $1,400
351 - 351
- 665 665
177 - 177
- 89 89
$1,928 $ 754 $2,682
2018 11
$1,126 $ - $1,126
497 - 497
- 395 395
108 - 108
- 96 96
$1,731 $ 491 $2,222
% %
2019 11
0.25% $(189) @7-8) $ 206 8.5
0.25% 184 7.6 @) 7.2)
89 3.7 (89) G.7)
2018 11
0.25% $(138) 7.6) $ 151 8.3
0.25% 109 6.0 @27) 7.0)
75 4.1 (75) @“.1)
2016 31
2018 12 31
287
2019 11 12 20
2019 11 33
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11
RSU
2018 ( 2018 SIP )
2018 2018 SIP 2018  SIP
2015
2019 11 452
2018 11 405
2018  SIP RSU
RSU
(
)
10
2019 11 2018 11
2008
()
2018 11
$ 75.00 $ 89.99 249,813 $78.78 0.08
249,813 $78.78 0.08
2019 11 171.32
2018 11 253.52
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ooooooo
12
( ) 2019 11 2018 11
$360 $430
5 37
246 182
611 649
13 180
- 3
13 183
$624 $832
2019 11 27.0%(2018 11
27.0%)
( ) 2019 11 2018 11
$2,426 $3,030
27.0%(2018 11 27.0%) 655 818
15 6
(10) (32)
(40) -
3 4
(©)) (O]
5 40
$ 624 $ 832
2020 11 2020 19.0% 17.0%
19.0%
2020 27.0% 2019 11
22 19
13
( ) 2019 11 2018 11
$ 13 $ 20
392 294
4 1
$409 $315
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(
12 $ 51 $10 $ 61
9 - 9
GD () [€0)
11 30 29 9 38
12 35 6 41
7 - 7
@ () @3)
11 30 20 5 25
2019 11 $ 9 $4 $ 13
2018 11 $ 16 $4 $ 20

(
12 $101 $183 $374
/ 200 11 211
(10 - 10)
11 30 381 194 575
12 80 - 80
109 - 109
® - ®
11 30 183 - 183
2019 11 $198 $194 $392
2018 11 $111 $183 $294

2019 11 2018 11
2019 11 2018 11
2019 11
100% 250
)
KY1-1104 PO Box 309 )
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14

28
2019 11 2018 11
$ 672 $ 428
39,561 33,516
234 485
21,389 17,514
45,101 29,535
25 88
106,982 81,566
491,471 294,986
33,564 28,463
89,323 111,791
8,054 12,644
59,013 64,679
681,425 512,563
$788,407 $594,129
2019 11 2018 11
$ 16,955 $ 21,700
3,883 3,545
23,292 22,353
20 2
44,150 47,600
481,797 287,789
31,371 26,080
91,522 111,863
7,853 12,758
57,947 59,897
670,490 498,387
$714,640 $545,987
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ooooooo
15
) 2019 11 2018 11
$ 72,770 $127,474
83,578 75,860
$156,348 $203,334
2019 11 884.3 2018 11
1,297.5
2019 11 17.2 2018
11 11.6
16
) 2019 11 2018 11
/ $59,102 $52,084
14,142 12,391
C 17 ) 333 256
88 29
28 33
$73,693 $64,793
2019 11 527 2018 11 134
/
2019 11 203 2018 11 338
2019 11 732.6 2018 11 644.9
2019 11 437 2018 11 306
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17
( ) 2019 11 2018 11
$453 $431
(63) (95)
93) (68)
38 12)
(O] -
$333 $256
( ) 2019 11 2018 11
$ 431 $ 577
22 (146)
$ 453 $ 431
$ (95) $ (72)
®) ©
40 (14)
$ (83) $ (95)
$ (68) $ (41)
(25 27
$ (93) $ (68)
$ (12 $ 111
50 (123)
$ 38 $ (12)
$ - $ -
IFRS 15 - 1
(O) 1)
$ @ $ -
$ 256 $ 575
IFRS 15 - 1
c 12 ) 13) (183)
90 (137)
$ 333 $ 256
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18
) 2019 11 2018 11
$ 50,988 $ 79,521
66,373 56,122
722 -
3,420 2,672
3,237 3,525
$124,740 $141,840
$ 2,146 $ 5,709
- 221
a7 261
3,154 4,108
$ 5,347 $ 10,305
$130, 087 $152,145
77 2018 11 74
16.6 2018 11 22.1
2025 2050
2019 11
988.0
859.9 2018 11 959.0

137/375
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870.8

2019 11

2019 11

2019 11
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2019 11

2018 11
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19
) 2019 11 2018 11
$ 19,193 $ 29,229
/ 62,254 53,647
10,274 12,465
404 418
42 127
305 338
1,004 927
$ 93,476 $ 97,151
$ 68,257 $ 57,461
719 575
90 59
$ 69,066 $ 58,095
$162,542 $155,246
2019 11 931.3
966.9 2019 11 347
465
2019 11 2018 11
) 2019 11 2018 11
$10,493 $21,232
1,054 892
11,547 22,124
46,021 32,453
5,377 5,377
1,366 1,539
52,764 39,369
$64,311 $61,493
$ 66 $ 164
38 153
7,127 6,483
415 305
7,646 7,105
20 6
15,258 17,854
215 232
15,493 18,092
$23,139 $25,197
$87,450 $86,690

138/375
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96.3 2018 11 109.7
2024 2057
11 2024 12 2028
2018 11 2024 2028
2019 11 2018 11 53.8
(
PRA 2024 12 26
DVA /( )
( ) 2019 11 2018 11
DVA ( ) $(147) $54
2019 11
289
46 2018 11
237 54
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2019 11
2019 11
2019
833
10.3
GS
( PRA )
)
2025
GS
243
183
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20
( )
2018 12 $78
3
@4
(56)
2019 11 30 $1
2019
( FCA ) 45 2019
21
( ) ( )
2018 12 581,964,161 $582
7,643,885 8
2019 11 30 589,608,046 $590
2019 21 7,643,885 GSG UK 44 .48
340,000,000 332,356,115
2018 10 GSG UK 17.3
17.3 17.3
17.3
22
AT
AT ( )
2017 5,800 $5,800 9.00%
2018 11 2,500 2,500 8.67%
2019 11 30 8,300 $8,300
AT GSG UK
GSG UK CET % AT
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AT ( )
( ) 2019 11 2018 11
( ) $742 $503
( ) $542 $367
23
GSG UK 2019 11 26 1.70 10.0
GSG UK 2018 11 30 4.30 25.0
24
( ) 2019 11 2018 11
$22,397 $24,396
( 19 ) (38) (153)
$22,359 $24,243
2019 11 42.2 2018
11 34.4
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25
( ) 2019 11 2018 11
$ 2,426 $ 3,030
( 13 ) 116 58
6 9
( 10 ) 13) (©))
328 1,432
601 249
IFRS 15 - ©)
@D 68
( ) 243 237
3,686 5,072
/C ) (194,278) 46,135
46,986 1,486
/C_ ) (8.816) 8,944
(156,108) 56,565
C ) 168,653 (43,935)
(22,058) (23,302)
6,393 11,627
(56) -
152,932 (55,610)
( 10 ) - ()
$ 510 $ 5,980
2019 11 70.2
2018 11 67.6 2019 11
76.0 2018 11 63.6
26
( ) 2019 11 2018 11
$63,292 $60,530
28,006 27,155
2,906 2,400
$94,204 $90,085
2019 11 417.3
2018 11 231.3
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( )
( ) 2019 11 2018 11
$18 $ 82
24 113
4 6
$46 $201
2019 11
2018 11 21
(
)
20
( MDB ) GS
MDB
65 MDB
2018 11 ( DOJ ) GS
GS
FCPA
FCPA
2018 28
FCPA
MDB GS MDB
GS

GS
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2020

2018 12 17

GS

GS

2019 19
MDB
12

2019

2018 11 21

2018 12 20

DOJ
FRB

2019 12 13

GS
600
2019
2018 12 2019
)
2018 11 MDB
GS
GS
MDB
(GS
GS
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ooooooo
2019 DOJ
GS
FRB
65 MDB
27
12
)
GS GS
220
MDB  GS
2019
2019 12
MDB
PJS
MDB
)

MDB
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2019 10 28
2020
GS DOJ MDB GS
DOJ
GS GS
MDB
2015 11
2016 2018
2013 2016 2018 11 20
2019 13
2008 2012
2013 2016 2019
22 2019
2014 11 25
2017 15
2017 21
2013

2016 12 2016 12

2019 27

GS
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28
( )
2019 11
$ 788,407 $ - $ 788,407
91,586 64,762 156,348
- 73,256 73,256
- 22,397 22,397
$ 879,993 $160,415 $1,040,408
2018 11
$594,129 $ - $ 594,129
146,767 56,567 203,334
790 63,697 64,487
- 24,396 24,396
$ 741,686 $144,660 $ 886,346
( )
2019 11
$714,640 $ - $ - $ 714,640
- 68,456 56,284 124,740
- 8,888 84,241 93,129
714,640 77,344 140,525 932,509
- 5,347 - 5,347
- 40,351 28,715 69,066
- 45,698 28,715 74,413
$714,640 $123,042 $169,240 $1,006,922
2018 11
$545,987 $ - $ - $ 545,987
- 97,865 43,975 141,840
- 8,694 87,992 96,686
545,987 106,559 131,967 784,513
- 10,305 - 10,305
- 42,236 15,859 58,095
- 52,541 15,859 68,400
$545,987 $159,100 $147,826 $ 852,913
2019 11 18
2018 11 26
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iTraxx CDX( )

/ (10
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/ CVA

GS

( )

2019 11

$76,946 $ 29,248 $ 788 $106,982

13 676,875 4,537 681,425
76,959 706,123 5,325 788,407
- 91,586 - 91,586
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$76,959 $797,709 $ 5,325 $879,993

$38,594 $ 5,337 $ 219 $ 44,150

15 667,680 2,795 670,490
38,609 673,017 3,014 714,640
- 67,345 1,111 68,456
- 6,120 2,768 8,888
38,609 746,482 6,893 791,984
- 5,347 - 5,347
- 34,938 5,413 40,351
- 40,285 5,413 45,698

$38,609 $786,767 $12,306 $837,682

$ @ $ 9,19% $ 1,742 $ 10,935
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1.2%  18.6%(7.2%)
48.3%  75.0%(61.6%)

19

2018 11
$53,205  $ 27,278 $ 1,083 $ 81,566
17 508,315 4,231 512,563
53,222 535,593 5,314 594,129
- 146,767 - 146,767
- 790 - 790
$53,222  $683,150 $5,314  $741,686
$42,951 $ 4,637 $ 12 $ 47,600
21 495,993 2,373 498,387
42,972 500,630 2,385 545,987
- 96,948 917 97,865
- 6,272 2,422 8,694
42,972 603,850 5,724 652,546
- 10,286 19 10,305
- 35,105 7,131 42,236
- 45,391 7,150 52,541
$42,972  $649,241 $12,874  $705,087
$ (&) $12,32 $1,858 $ 14,176
2019 11 788
10.8
( )
( ) 2019 11 2018 11
$126 $171

2.4%  16.5%(6.5%)
(0% 75.0%(50.0%)

) 0.5 10.6(4.3) 0.5 13.4(5.1)
$602 $867

1.8%  13.2%(5.4%) 0.7%  28.2%(5.9%)

0.0%  69.5%(42.1%) 0.0%  78.0%(51.7%)

) 2.6  16.5(7.5) 0.5 13.2(2.6)

$60
4.1 11.0 (5.4 )

4.1

$45
11.0 (5.4 )
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2019 11 2018 11
2019 11 17.4
2018 11 18.6
2019 11
2018 11
( / )
( ) 2019 11 2018 11
$202 $76
“U2)%  164((5)N/2%) T T2%(T2%/72%)
(ops) 50  70(62/62) 64 143(84/78)
$2,344 $2,003
(ops) 1,321(122/83) 589(141/104)
76 82(80/81) 46(22/22)
10%  41%(27%/25%) 25%  ASH(37U/40%)
$50 $(115)
200 23%(22%/22%) % 32%(18%/15%)
$(862) $(108)
(70)%  9T%(A3%/45%) (63)%  98%(4T%/53HK)
% T0R(12%/6%) % B1%(17%/13%)
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2019 11
2018 11
2019 11 2018 11
2019 11 2018 11
2019 11 2018 11
2019 11 2018 11
2019 11 2018 11
2019
11 295 2018 11 356 2019 11
237 2018 11 240
2019 11 2018 11
( )
( )
( ) 2019 11 2018 11
$146 $161
90 92
(83) (107)

$153

$146
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) 2019 11 2018 11
$ 5,314 $ 4,044
/C ) 942 688
659 647
(249) (223)
(1,039) (620)
445 974
(747) (196)
$ 5,325 $ 5,314
$ (12,874) $(10,807)
/C ) (1,745) 468
7 16
(418) (424)
(6,352) (7.735)
8,710 5,838
(852) (641)
1,218 411
$ (12,306) $ (12,874)
2019 11 2018 11
2019 11 17.5
16.3 120
2018 11 468
339 129
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( 2019 11 2018 11

$ (2,385) $ (2,281)

/( (918) (275)

7 16

(418) (424)

645 665

(29%) (244)

349 158

$ (3,014) $ (2,385)

$ (936) $  (642)

/( 68 82

(263) (393)

1 17

19 -

$ (1,111) $  (936)

$ (9,553) $ (7,884)

/( (895) 661

(6,089) (7.342)

8,064 5,156

(558) (397)

850 253

$ (8,181) $ (9,553)
2019 11
2018 11
2019 11
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2018 11
2019 11 1,604.2 2018 11
1,446.6
2019 11 1,405.3 2018 11
1,319.7

2019 11 287.2 2018 11 158.6
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( / )
( ) 2019 11 2018 11
/ $ 838,683 $662,378
96,100 112,088
30,811 26,951
33,897 47,289
59,080 50,389
17,848 20,483
$1,076,419 $919,578
( / )
( )
2019 11
/ $714,640 $ 46,348  $ 74,945 $ 835,933
- 36,404 1,351 37,755
- 25,350 2,872 28,222
- 16,652 14,039 30,691
$714,640 $124,754  $ 93,207 $ 932,601
/ $ - $ - $ - $ -
- - 90 90
- 1 179 180
- - 900 900
- 3,608 54,952 58,560
- 1,739 16,105 17,844
$ - $ 5,348 $ 72,226 $ 77,574
$714,640 $130,102  $165,433 $1,010,175
( )
2019 11
/ $ - $ - $ 2,750 $ 2,750
58,253 2 - 58,255
2,285 3 121 2,409
2,258 13 35 2,306
496 24 - 520
- 4 - 4
$ 63,292 $ 46 $ 2,906 $ 66,244
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( )
2018 11
/ $545,987 $ 45,078 $ 69,014 $660,079
- 50,016 1,652 51,668
- 23,778 2,799 26,577
- 22,974 23,394 46,368
$545,987 $141,846  $ 96,859 $784,692
/ $ - $ - $ - $ -
- 1 80 81
- - 162 162
- - 860 860
- 8,026 42,149 50,175
- 2,281 18,196 20,477
$ - $ 10,308  $ 61,447 $ 71,755
$545,987 $152,154  $158,306 $856,447
( )
2018 11
/ $ - $ - $ 2,299 $ 2,299
60,332 7 - 60,339
198 14 - 212
- 61 - 61
- 113 101 214
- 6 - 6
$ 60,530 $ 201 $ 2,400 $ 63,131
( ) 2019 11 2018 11
$468,465 $484,249
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$419,742 $429,161

) 2019 11 2018 11
$35,335 $20,550
$34,072 $30,177
2019 11 587.1 2018 11 541.0
2019 11 488.3 2018 11 449.7
LIBOR)

( )

80%

80% 125%
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( 2019 11 2018 11
$ - $ -
2 -
6 93
125 14
2,804 2,728
$2,937 $2,835
2019 11 1.25% 2018 11
1.19%
( 2019 11 2018 11
$ 18 $ 26
$ - $ -
C )
(
2019 11
$ 8 $ -
$2,841 $ 133
2018 11
$ 85 $ -
$2,582 $ 28
/(
( 2019 11 2018 11
$ 108 $ 16
(108) (22)
$ - $ (6)
(
( 2019 11 2018 11

163/375
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$5,563 $6,467
$ 308 $ 419
$ @) $ ®
$3,787 $3,816
IFRS
2019 11 2018 11
$ 2 $ -
27,626 22,951
147 -
9,180 7,316
32,453 20,460
$69,408 $50,727
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2019 11
$ 1 $ 46
85 693
86 739
$ 86 $ 739
$ (20) $ 245
(20) 245
$ (20) $ 245
2018 11
$ - $ -
63 802
63 802
$ 63 $ 802
$ $ 111
@ 11
$ $ 111
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Ooooooog
( ) /C ) /C )
2019 11
$ 1 $ 133
68 189
69 322
$ 69 $ 322
$ 34 $ @
34 @
- @)
$ 34 $ @
2018 11
$ - $ 132
®) 121
®) 253
$ @) $ 253
$ - $ (35)
- (35)
- (1)
$ - $ (36)
29
(
)
2019 11
46.5
49.6 2018 11 61.5
51.0
2019 11 2018 11
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2019 11

$ 18,712 $ (12,834) $ 5,878 $ (1,108) $ - $ (4.450) $ 320
692,404 (10,979) 681,425  (610,681)  (40,336)  (11,283) 19,125

711,116 (23,813) 687,303  (611,789)  (40,336)  (15,733) 19,445
216,916 (60,568) 156,348 (65,240) - (88,735) 2,373
83,400 (23,902) 59,498 4,199)  (39,222)  (10,159) 5,918

1,011,432  (108,283) 903,149  (681,228)  (79,558)  (114,627) 27,736

137,259 - 137,259 - - - 137,259

$1,148,691  $(108,283) $1,040,408 $(681,228) $(79,558) $(114,627) $164,995

$ 1,423 $ (1,218) $ 205 $ - $ - $ - $ 205
681,774 (11,284) 670,490 (610,920) (38,186) (8,188) 13,196

683,197 (12,502) 670,695 (610,920) (38,186) (8,188) 13,401
203,558 (85,466) 118,092 (65,278) (404) (51,068) 1,342
67,918 (2,545) 65,373 (4,839) (40,392) - 20,142

954,673  (100,513) 854,160  (681,037)  (78,982)  (59,256) 34,885

9,639 (6,046) 3,593 (132) (500) (2,452) 509
3,090 Q,724) 1,366 (59) (76) - 1,231
12,729 (7,770) 4,959 (191) (576) (2,452) 1,740

967,402  (108,283) 859,119  (681,228)  (79,558)  (61,708) 36,625

147,803 - 147,803 - - - 147,803

$1,115,205 $(108,283) $1,006,922 $(681,228) $(79,558) $ (61,708)  $184,428
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2018 11

( )
$ 18,880 $ (13,407) $ 5,473 $ (1,595) $ (43) $ (3.448) $ 387
523,283 (10,720) 512,563  (448,264)  (34,886)  (10,769) 18,644
542,163 (24,127) 518,036  (449,859)  (34,929)  (14,217) 19,031
270,215 (66,881) 203,334 (83,337) - (116,825) 3,172
69,213 (15,727) 53,486 (5.450)  (32,439) (7.415) 8,182
881,501  (106,735) 774,856  (538,646)  (67,368)  (138,457) 30,385
111,490 - 111,490 - - - 111,490
$ 993,081  $(106,735) $ 886,346  $(538,646) $(67,368) $(138,457) $141,875
$ 730 $  (709) $ 21 $ - 3 - % - 3 2
509,108 (10,720) 498,388  (448,348)  (30,815) (5,867) 13,358
509,838 (11,429) 498,409  (448,348)  (30,815) (5,867) 13,379
219,104 (82,614) 136,490 (83,130) (1,181)  (50,782) 1,397
66,083 (3,862) 62,221 (6,552)  (34,944) - 20,725
795,025 (97,905) 697,120  (538,030)  (66,940)  (56,649) 35,501
14,456 (7,105) 7,351 (245) (428) (6,070) 608
3,264 (1,725) 1,539 371) - - 1,168
17,720 (8,830) 8,890 (616) (428) (6,070) 1,776
812,745  (106,735) 706,010  (538,646)  (67,368)  (62,719) 37,277
146,903 - 146,903 - - - 146,903
$ 959,648  $(106,735) $ 852,913  $(538,646) $(67,368) $ (62,719)  $184,180
30
(COVID-19)
CovID-19
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2019 11
2006 4147
2006 414C(11)
2019 11 26 10.0
2018 11 30 25.0
2019 11 1.2932 2018 11
1.2743 2019 11 1.2748 2018 11
1.3347
GS
2019 11 28 2018 11 22

2019 11 26 2018 11 20
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2007 10 1985 386

2006 487(2) 2007 2006 44

GSI 2020 12

2006

J.M.D.

S.A.

C. 2019
R.J.

QC

S.S. 2018 12 31
D.W.
T.L. OBE
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M.0.

2020

D.W.

2020 23

11
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATICHAL (UMLIMITED COMPANY}
Profit and Loss Account

Paricad Endid Misosm bar
5 in milons Hate 2me 2018
Met revenues 4,5 $8.098 5 7.865
Administrative expenses [ [5,440] (4,607
Qperating profit 2,656 3.259
Interest payable and similar expenses 9 [243) (237)
et finance income 10 13 B
Profit before taxation 2428 3.030
Tax on profit 12 (824) (B32)
Profit for the financial period § 1,802 2158
Mt revenues and cpaling proft of the company ars defved from confinuing opsrations in the current snd prics penods.
Statements of Comprehensive Income

Per‘izd Endasd Mososmbar
5 in milfons Hote Hﬂ_ﬂ M8
Prafit Tor the financial period §1,802 5215
Other comprahensive incame
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Actuaral profitloss) relating to the pension schame 10 (159) 61
Dbt valuation adjustment (201) Ag5
LK. deferred tax attributabie to the companents of other comprehensive income 17 a0 (137}
LK. curnent tax attributable fo the components of other comprehenshe incomae 1 1
Qther comprehensive incomel{less) for the financial period, net of tax (269) 50
Total comprehensive inceme fer the financial period § 1,533 S 2588

Tl BEEcmpANNg HOtES &I an inleyal pan of tvene Inancisl shabemants.
50
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GOLOMAN SACHS INTERNATICNAL (UNLIMITED SOMPANY)

Balance Sheet
A5 of Movember
5 in milkons Hate 018 2018
Fined assets 13§ 409 5 315
Current assels
Finangial matruments owned (inchudes $35,335 and 520 550 pledged as collateral) 14 Tag A0y 594 129
Collateralised agreements 15 156,348 203,334
Debtors 16 73,603 64,753
_Cash a1 bank and in hand 24 22,397 24,396
1,040,845 B85 652
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Financial ingtruments sokd, but not yet purchased 14 [714,640) {345,387)
Collateralised inancings 18 [124,740) (141,840)
Other creditors 18 [#3,475) (37,151}
(532,356} (784 578)
Nt current assats 107,989 101 874
Total aszets less current liabilities 108,398 101,989
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Collateralised financings 18 15.347) {10,305)
Cither creditors 19 [65,086) {559, 055)
(74,413} {53, 400)
Provisions for labilithes 20 (1) {T8)
Het assets excluding pension surplus 33,984 33,511
FPansion sumplus 10 il 405
Het assets including pension surplus 34,048 5 33917
Capital and resenes
Carlled up share capdtal 21 8 590 - 582
Shani phem ium dcoount 5,196 4,864
Proft and loss account 20,330 0,070
Accumulated other comprehensive income {188) 10
Cther equity instrumenis 22 8,300 8. 300
Total sharehokder's funds 5 34,248 5 3387

The financial staternants were appraved by the Board of Dwectors on March 11, 2020

D. W. McDonoegh
Director
March 23, 2020

The sccompanying robes an an integral part of Sese Snarcial statemants.
Company musmber; 02203651
51
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UNLIMITED COMPANY)
Statements of Changes in Equity

Poricd Endisd MNomombar
5 in millons Hote 208 018
Called up share capital
Baginning balance § Saz 5 582
Shares isswad a | =] 17
Shares cancelled 21 - {17
Ending balance 540 582
Share premium aceount
Beginning batance 4,884 4,854
Shares issued 21 332 -
Ending balance 5,198 4 884
Capital reserve (non-distributakbile)
Beginning tatance = 17
Subscription o ghares 21 - 7
Ending balance = -
Profit and less account
Beginning batance 20,070 20,727
Cumulative effect on retained samings due to adoption of IFRS 15, net of tax = {5)
Profit for the financial period 1.802 2158
Cancellation of shares s | = 17
Interim dividends paid 23 {1,000) (2 500)
Interest on Additional Tier 1 notes, net of tax 22 (542) (367)
Share-based payments 452 A05
_Management recharge related to share-based payments [452) (405)
Ending balance 20,330 20,070
Accumulated olher comprehensive income
Beginning batance o (259)
Caher comprehensive incomenloss) {289) 250
Ending balance {168] 101
Other equity instruments
Baeginning balance £,300 5,800
Additional Tier 1 nobes issued 22 - 2500
Ending balance #,300 8300
Tetal shareholder's funds §34,248 533,917

This accompanmying rotes e an inbégral pan of Ste Erandial sabemants,
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UMLIMITED COMPANY)
Statements of Cash Flows

Poricd Endisd MNomombar

£ in milfons Hote 2me 2018
Carsh flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 25 § 510 5 5580
Taxation receied 3 1

Taxation pakd B {151) (252)
Het cash from operating activities JE2 5729

Cagh flows from investing activities

Capital expenditure fos ficed assets [223) (172)
Het cash used in investing activities (223) [REF]
Cash flows from financing activities

Receipts from issuing Additional Tier 1 nofes 22 = 2500

Receipts fraom issuing ordinary shane capital 21 340 -

Irbesfinn dividends paid 23 (1,000) (2,500)
Irrterest paid on Additional Tier 1 notes 22 (742) (503)
Interest paid on long-term subordinated loans 19 (289) (54)
Met cazh used in financing ackivities [1,691) (557)
Met increase/{dacreasa) in cash and cash equivakents [1,562) 5,000

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning balance 24,243 20,854

Fareign exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents (332) {1.411)
Cash and cash equivalents, ending balance 24 §22,359 524,243

Sae Note I for mvkemalion aboul hon-cash actiitieg

Thae sccompanying notes ane an integral part of Sese francial statements.

53
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UNLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Mote 1.
General Information

The company B a prvale wnlimited company and s
incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales. The address
of its registered office is Plumiree Count, 25 Shoe Lame,
Laondan, EC4A 4AL United Kingdom,

The company's immediate parent undertaking iz Goldman
Sachs Growp UK Limited (G3G UK), a company incorporated
and domiciled in England and Wales. GSG UK together with
its conselidated subsidiaries forms “G3G UK Group™.

The ultimate controlling undertaking and the parent company
of the smallest and largest group for which consclidated
financial statements are prepared s The Goldman Sachs
Group, Inc., a company incorporated m the United States of
Amenca. Copies of its consolidated financial statements, as
well as certain regulatory filings, for example Quarterly
Reports an Form 10-0 and the Annual Report on Form 10-K,
that provide further information about G5 Group and its
business activities, can be obtained from Investor Relations,
200 West Street, New York, NY 10282, United States of
Amenca, G5 Group’s principal place of business, or at
wWWwW /iy

Basel Il Pillar 3 Disclosures

The company 13 mcheded 1 the comsoldated Pillar 3
diselosures of GSG UK, as required by the CRE. GSG UK's
November 2019 Pillar 3 disclosures will be made available in
conjunction with the publication of its consolidated financial

information at www poldmansachs com /disclosurss.

Country-by-Country Reporting

The company is included in the consolidated country-by-
coumiry reporting disclosures of G3G UK, as required by the
Capital Requirements  (Country-byv-Country  Reporting)
Eegulations 2013, G3G UK’s November 2009 Country-by-
Couniry Reporting will be made available by December 31,

2020 st www goldmansachs com/disclosures.

R
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Note 2.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The company prepares financial statements under UK. GAAP.
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with FES 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework™ (FES 101}

These financial statements have been prepared on the going
concern basis, under the historical cost convention (modified
as explaned in “Pension Armangements” and “Firencial Assets
and Liabalities™ below), and in accordance with the Companies
At 2006,

In 2018, the company changed its accounting reference date
from December 31 1o November 30, As such, these financial
statements have been prepared for the twelve momhs ended
Movember 30, 2019, with comparative information being
presented for the eleven months ended Mavembser 30, 2018, As
a resull, amounts presemted in these Onancial statements are ot
directly comparable.

The following exemplions Fom the disclosure requirements of
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted
by the EU. have been applied in the preparation of these
financial statements in accordance with FRS 101

« I[FRS 2 *Share-based Payment” paragraph 45(b) and 46 10 52,
These disclosures are provided in the consolidated flinancial
statements of Group Inc.;

« IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers' (IFRS
15} second sentence of paragraph 110 and parseraphs 113(a),
114, 115, 118, 11%a) to (c), 12010 127 and 129;

« [AS | “Presentation of Financial Statements’ paragraph 38 1o
present comparative information in respect of:

« IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ paragraph
THa) ), and
« LAS 16 *Propenty, Plant and Equipmen’ paragraph T3(e).

« 1AS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements’ paragraphs
10T, 16, and 404-D,

« [AS & “Accounting Folicies, Changes in  Accounting
Estimates and Errors” paragraphs 30 and 31,

« 1AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures” paragraph 17, and

« IAS 24 ‘Related Pany Disclosures” requirements 1o disclose
transactions with companies also wholly owned within G5
Group.
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERMATIONAL (UNLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Consolidation

The company has elected not to prepare consolidated financial
statements as permitted by section 402 of the Companies Act
2006 a3 its subsidiary 15 not matenial for the purpose of giving
a true and fair view,

These financial statements are individual Ninancial statements.

Mew Standards, Amendments and Interpretations
IFRE 1€ ‘Leases’. In January 2016, the Intemational
Accounting Standards Board issued IFRS 16 “Leases” (IFRS
16), which replaces [AS 17 “Leases”, IFRIC 4 “Determining
whether an Arrangement contams 8 Lease” and SI1C-13
*Operating Leases — Incentives” for annual pericds beginning
on or after January 1, 2019 with early adoption permitted. In
Movember 2017, the E U endorsed IFRS 16,

IFES 16 requires that, for leases that are not short-term and for
low walue assets, & lessee recognise on the balance sheet a
right-of-use asset, representing the nght to wse the underlving
assel for the lease term. and a lease liability, representing the
liabality to make lease payments. It also requires that a lessee
recognises interest on the lease liability and depreciation on the
righi-of-use asset in the profit and loss account. In addition,
this standard reguires expanded disclosures about the effect
that leases have on the fimancial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the lessee, including
information about the nature and terms of the lease agreements.

The company adopted this standard from December 1, 2019
Adoption of this standard did not have a matenal impact on the
company’s balance sheet, comprehensive tncome or cash
Merws,

Accounting Policies

Revenue Recognition. Met revenues include the net profit
arising from transactions, with both third parties and affiliates,
in derivatives, secunities and other financial instruments, and
fees ard commissions. This 15 inclusive of associated interest
and dividends. Net revenues have been disclosed mstead of
tumnover as this reflects more meaningfully the nature and
results of the company s activities,

]
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Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair
Value Through Profit or Loss

Fimancial assetz and liabilities measwed at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised at fair value with realised and
unrealised gamns and losses as well as associated inferest and
dividend income and expenses included in net revenues, with
the exception of debt valuaton adjustments (DVA), which 1s
recogrised i other comprehensive income, unless this would
create of enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss,
Fimancial assets are marked 1o bid prces and Dinancial
liabilities are marked 1o offer prices. Far value measurements
do not include transaction costs, The company measures
cenain financial assets and habilities as a portfolio (Le., based
on its net exposure to market and/or credit risks).

Unrealised gains and losses related o the change in fuir value
of fmancial assets and habiliies measured at far value through
profit or loss are recognised from trade date in net revenues or
other comprehensive income in the case of DVA

In applying the provisions of [FRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’
(IFES 9 relating 1o DVA, the company 15 departing from the
requirenients of paragraph 40 of Schedule | of 51 2008410
relating to recograsing the changes in the far value of financial
instruments in the profit or loss account. The directors consider
this depasture is necessary in ofder for the accounts to give a
true and fair view. See Note 19 for further mformation about
the curmulative impact of the company’s DVA,

Revenue from Contracts with Clients

Revenues eamed from contracts with clients for services such
a5 investment banking., investment management, and execution
amd clearing (contracts with clients) are recogmsed when the
performance obligations related to the underlying transactions
are completed,

If the company = principal to the transaction, the company
recogrises revenue on contracts with clients, gross of expenses
incurred 1o satisfy some or all of s performance obligations,
The company s principal to the transaction if it has the
primary obligation to provide the service to the client. The
company satisfies the performance obligation by atself, or by
engaging other G5 Group entities to satisfy some or all of its
performance obligations on its behalf. Such revenue is
recogrised in mel revenues and expenses  incurred are
recogmsed in administralive expenses.
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GOLDMAN SACHSE INTERNATIONAL (UNLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Met revenues are recognised as follows:

+ Investment Banking
Fees from firancial advisory and underwriting enpgapements
are recognised in profit and loss when the services related to
the underlying trarsactions are completed under the terms of
the enpagement.

Investment Management

Management fees are recogmised on an acorual basis and are
zenerally caleculited as a percentage of a fund or a separately
mamged acoount’s average nel asset value. All management
fees are recogmised over the period that the related service 1s
provided.

Incentive fees are calculsled as a percemtage of a fumd's
retum or a percentage of a find's excess retumn above a
specified benchmark or other performance target,

Commissions and Fees

Revenue from commissions and fees from executing and
cleaning <hent transactions on stock, options and futwres
markets, as well as OTC mansacthions s recogmsed n net
revenues on the day the trade 15 executed. The company also
provides third-party research services to clients in connection
with soft-dollar arrangements.

Operating Leases. The company has entered into operating
lease amangements as the lessee. Leased assels are not
recognised in the balance sheet. Costs m respect of operating
leases, adjusted for any incentives granted by the lessor, ane
charged on a straight-line basis over the kase term and
included in administrative expenses.

Short-Term Employee Benefits. Shoest-term  emploves
benefits, such as wages and salares, are measured on an
undiscounted basis and accrued as an expense over the period
in which the emplovee renders the service to the company.
Provision 15 made for discretionary year-end compensation
whether to be paid in cash or share-based awards where, as a
result of company policy and past practice, 8 constiuctive
obligation exists at the balance sheet date.

Share-Based Payments. Group Inc issues awards i the
form of restrcted stock wmts (RSUs) and stock options 1o the
company s emplovees in exchange for emplovee services
Awards are classified as equity settled and hence the cost of
share-based transactions with emplovees is measured based on
the grant-date fair value of the award. Share-based awards that
do not require future service {ie., vested awards, including
awards granted to retirement eligible emplovees) are expensed
immediately. Share-based awards that require future service
are amortsed over the relevant service period. Expected
forfeitures are included in determining share-based employee
COMPENsalion expense.
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Group Inc. generally ssues new shares of common stock upon
delivery of share-based awards, Cash dividend cquivalents,
unless probubited by regulation, are generally paid on
outstanding R5Us. The company has also entered into a
chargeback agreement with Group Imc. under which it 1s
committed 1o pay the grant-dste fair value as well as
subsequent movements in the farr value of those awards 1o
Group Ing. at the time of delvery to its emplovees. As a result,
the share-based payvment transaction and chargeback agreement
creates a total charge 1o the profit and loss account based on
the grant-date fair value of the awards adjusted for subsequent
movements in the fair value of these awards prior to delivery.

Dividends. Fimal equity dividends are recogrused as a liabiliny
and deducted from equity in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the company’s shareholder. Interim equaty
dividends are recogmised and deducted from equity when paid.

Pension Arrangements. The company s a sponsor of a
defined contnbution pension plan, and a hybrid pension plan
for the benefit of certain employees. The hybrid pensson plan
has both a defived benefit section (the Plan) and a defined
contribution section. These are accourited for as follows:

« For the defined contribution pension plan and the defined
coniribution  section of the hybrid pension plan, the
contributions payahle for the period are charged to operating
profit. Dhfferences between contributions pavable for the
period and contributions actually paid are shown as either
accruals or prepayments in the balance sheet.

« For the Plan, the amounts charged to operating profit are any
past service costs, administration costs and any gams or
loases on settlements and curtailments. These amoumts are
included in direct costs of employment. The net interest is
included in net fimance income. Actwarial gains and losses are
recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. Plan
assels are measured at fair value and Plan liabilities are
measured on an actuarial basis wing the projected unat credn
method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate
of retum on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent
currercy and term 1o the Plan labilines, Full actuaral
valuations are obtained at least tmennmlly and wpdated at
each balance sheet date. Any surplus or deficit of Plan assets
over Plan habilities is recogrised in the balance sheet as an
assel (surplus) or liability (de ficit).
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERMATIONAL (UNLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Fixed Assets.

Tangible Fixed Assets

Tangibde fixed assets are stated al cost less accumulated
depreciation and provision for impaiment. Fistures, fittings
and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives, which is between 3 to 7 vears
Depreciation is mncluded in admimstrative expenses.

Leaseheld improvements are depreciated over the shorier of
the useful sconomic life of the assel or the remaining life of the
lease when the asset is brought into wse. Depreciation policies
are reviewed on an anmual basis

Intangible Fixed Assets

Intangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortistion and provision for impairment. Subject o the
recognilion éntena mn [AS 38 ‘Intangble Assets” being met,
coats incurred during the period that are directly attributable to
the development or improvement of new business application
soltware are capitalised as assets in the course of construction.
Assets in the course of construction are transfermed to computer
software once completed and ready for their intended use

Computer software 1s amortised on a straight-line basis over its
estimated wseful life, which is three vears. Mo amortisation is
charged on assets in the cowrse of construction. Amaortisalion is
included m administrative expenses and the amortsation
policies are reviewed on an annual basis.

Intangible fixed assets are tested for imparment whenever
events or changes n circumstances suggest that an asset’s or
asset group’s carmying value mav not be fully recoverable,

Fixed Asset Investments

Fixed asset investments are stated al cost or amortised cost, as
applicable, less provision for imparment. Ameriisation is
included in administrative expenses.

57
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Cash at Bank and In Hand. Thss includes cash at bank and
in hand and highly liquid overmight deposits held in the
ordinary course of busingss,

Foreign Gurrencies. The company’s financial statements
are presemied in US, dollars, which is also the company’s
functional currency.

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated
it ULS, dollars a1 rates of exchange ruling on the date the
transaction occurred, Monetary assets and liabilities, and non-
monetary  assets and  lLabalities messured at  fair value,
denominated in forelgn currencies are translated e U5
dollars at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are recogmised in operating
prafat

Financial Assets and Liabilities.

Recognition and Derecognition

Fimancial assets and liabilines, other than cash instruments
purchased or sold i regular way transactions, are recognised
when the company becomes party to the contractual provisions
of the mstrument. Financial assets are derecogrused when the
contractual nights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or if the company transfers the financial asset and the
transfer qualifies for derecognition. A transferred Dnancial
asset qualifies for derecognition if the company transfers
substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset or if the company neither transfers mor retains
substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset but does not retain control. Financial liabilities
are derecognised only when they are extinguished, 1.¢, when
the obligation specified in the coniract is discharged or
cancelled or expires,

Cash instruments purchased or sold in regular way transactions
are recognised and derecognised using  settlement  date
ACCOLUNing.
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Classification and Measurement. Financial Assets
The company classifies financial assets as subsequently
measured at amortized cost or fair value throwgh profit or loss
on the basis of both the company’s buziness model for
managing financial assets and the contraciual eash flow
characteristics of the Nnancial assets. The business model
reflects how the company manages particular groups of assels
in order to generate future cash flows. Where the company's
business model is to hold the assets o collect contractual cash
flows, the company subsequently assesses whether the
financial assels’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and isterest. Financml assets with embedded
denvatives (hybrid mstruments) that are not bifurcated from
their host are also subject to the same assessment.

« Financial assets measured at amortised cost.
Fmancial assets that are held for the collection of contractual
cash flows and have cash flows that represent solely
payvments of principal and interest are measured at anortised
cost. The company conssders whether the cash flows
represent basic lending armangements, and where contractual
terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility inconsistent
with a basic lending arangement, the Onancial assel s
mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss (see
below),

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are imtially
measured @t fair wvalue plus  transaction  costs  and
subsequently a1 amoftised cost using the effective interest
method. The effective mterest method 15 a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and
allocating the imerest income over the relevant period. The
effective imterest rate 15 the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset or, when appropriate, a shofter peried to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset. When caloulating
the effective interest rate, the company estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial asset but
does not consider future credit losses. Finance revenue s
recorded In met revenues. Financial assels measured at
amaortised cost include:

« Certan collateralised agreements, which consists of certam
resale agreements and substantially all securities borrowed;

+ Substantially all debtors; and
« Cash at bank and m hand.
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« Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value

through profit or 1085, Financial assets that are not held
for the collection of contractual cash flows andor do not
have cash flows that represent solely payments of principal
and interest are mandatonly measured at fair value through
profit or loss, Financial assets mandatonly measured at fair
valwe are wtially measured at far value with transaction
costs expensed in profit or loss. Such financial assets are
subsequently measwed at fair value with gaing or losses
recogrsed in nel revenues, Fmancial assels mandatonly
measured at fair value include:

« Fimancial instruments owned, which consists of cash
mstruments and denvative mstruments;

« Certain  collseralised  agreements, which consmists  of
substantially all resale agreements and certain securities
borrowed, and

« Certain debtors, which consists of transfers of assets
accounted for as secured loans rather than purchases, and
prepaid commodity contracts,

Classification and Measurernent: Financial Liabilities

The company classifies s fnancial labilities into the below
catepories based on the purpose for which they were acquired
or orizinated.

« Financial liabilities held for trading. Financial habalities

held for wading are imtially measured at far value and
subsequently at fair value through profit or less, with gains or
losses recopnised in nel revemses. Financial habilites held
for trading include financial instruments sold, but not yet
purchased, which consists of:

« Cash instruments; and
» Dierivative instouments,

- Financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit of loss. The company designates certain financial
liabialities at fmr valwe through profil or loss. Financial
labilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at fair value
through profit or loss, with DVA being recognised in other
comprehensve income, if it does not create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch, and the remaining changes in the fair
value being recognised in nel revenues, Amounts recognised
in other comprehensive income attribumable 1o own credit
spreads are not subsequently tramsferred to profit or loss,
even upon derecognition of the financial liability, The
primary reasons for designating such financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are:

« To eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would otherwise anse from
measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and
losses an them on different bases, and
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« The group of fnancial habilities, or financial assets and
labilitses, 15 managed and its performance evalusted on a
fair value basis.

Financial liabilites designated at fair value through profit or
loss include:

« Substantially all repurchase agreements;
» Securities loaned within FICC Client Execution;

» Secwred debt securities issued, intercompany loans and
other borrowmes, which comsist of hybnd  financial
mstruments and transfers of assets accounted for as
financings rather than sales;

« Certain unsecured  debt  secunties  issued and  other
borrowings, which consist of hybrid fimancial instruments,
and

« Certam other  creditors,  which  comsist  of  certain
infercempany loans, and prepaid commodity contracis

Hybrid financial instruments are instruments that contain
hifurcatable embedded derivatives. If the company elects to
hifwreate the embedded derivative from the associated deby,
the denvative 15 accounted for a1 far value and the host
contract 15 accounted for &t amortised cost, adjusted for the
effective portion of any fur value hedges. IT the company
does not elect to bifurcate, the entire hybnd Anancial
irstrum ent 15 designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are initially
measurad ot fair walue plus  transaction  costs  and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. See “Financial assets measured at amortised
cost” above for further information on the effective interest
method. Finance coats, including discounts allowed on ssue,
are recorded in net revenues with the exception of inferest on
long-term subordinated loans, which is recorded in interest
payable and similar expenses, Financial labdlities measured
at amortised cost nglude:

« Certain  repurchase  agreements and  substantmlly  all
securities loaned, and

+ Certain other creditors that have not been designated at fair
value through profit or loss,
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Impairment

The company assesses the expected credit losses associated
with financial assets measured &t amortized ¢ost on a forward=
looking basis in accordance with the provisions of IFRS 9. The
measurement of expected credit losses reflects an uwnbiased and
probability weighted amount that i determined by evaluating a
range of possble outcomes, the time value of money, and
reasomable and supportable information that 15 available
without undwe cost or effort at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of Mulure economic
conditions. Expected credit losses are recorded in net revenues.

The company’s impairment model iz based on changes in
credit quality since wmtial recogration of fnancial assels
measured at amornised cost and incorporates the following
three stapes:

« Stage 1. Financial assets measured a1 amortised cost that
are mol eredit-impaired on mitial recogmtion and there has
been no sigmficant increase i credit risk since wnutal
recognition. The ECL 15 measured at an amount equal to the
expected credit losses that result from default events possible
within the next twelve months.

« Stage 2. Financial assets measured al amoriised cost where
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initaal
recognition, however not yet deemed to be credit-impaired.
The ECL 15 measured based on expected credit losses on a
lifetime hasis.

« Stage 3. Financial assets measured at amortised cost that
are in default, or are defined as credit-impaired. The ECL 15
measured based on expected credit losses ona hfetime basis.

Determination of the relevant staging for each [inancial assel s
dependent on the defimtion of “significant increase 1n credit
nsk” (stage 1 to stage 2)and the definition of “credit-impained”
(stage 3), The company considers a financel asset 1o have
experienced a sipnificant inerease in credit risk when certain
quantitative or qualitative conditions are met Cuantitative
thresholds inchede absolute probabality of default threshoelds on
mvestment-grade Onancial assets and relatve probability of
default thresholds on non-investment grade financial assets.
Cualitative review is also performed as part of the company’s
credit risk management process,  including o back-stop
consideration of 30 days past due. The company considers a
financial asset to be credit-impaired when it meets Credit
Rizk’s defimition of default, which s either when the company
considers that the obligor 15 unlikely to pay s credit
obligations to G5 Group in full, without recourse by the
company (o actions such as realising security (if held), or the
obligor has defaulied on a pavment andor is past due more
than %0 days.
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The ECL 15 determined by projecting the probabality of default,
loss given default and exposure at default for each ndividual
exposure. To calculate expected credit losses these three
components are multiplied together and discounted back to the
reporting date. The discount rate used in the ECL calculation is
the original effective interest rate, The probability of default
represents the lhikehhood of a borrower defaulting on its
financial obligation. The loss given default 15 the company’s
expectation of the extent of loss on the default exposure, and
takes into consideration amongst other things, collateral on the
financial assel. The exposure at defaull s the amount the
company expects 1o be owed at the time the Onancial
obligation defauls. The company wses imernal credit risk
ratings that reflect the assessment of the probability of default
of ndividual counterparties. The company wses multiple
macroeconomic scemarkos within the ECL caleulation, the
weightings for which are subject 1o ongoing nlernal review
and approval.

Forward-looking information, such as key economic vanables
impacting credit nsk and expected credit losses, 1s incarporated
int both the assessment of staging and the caleulation of ECL.
Economie vanables have been forecasted using internally
generated projections to provide an estimated view of the
economy over the mext nine quarters. After nine quarers a
mean reversion approach has been used, which means that
econemic vanables tend 1o either a long run average rate or a

leng run growth rate.

The company writes off financial assets, in whole or in part,
when it has concluded that there 15 no reasonable expectation
of recovery. When a fimancial asset is deemed 10 be
uncollectable, the company concludes this to be an indicator
that there 15 no reasonable expectation of recovery, The
company still seeks to recover amownts it is legally owed in
full, but which have been wholly or partially written off due 1©
no reasonable expectation of full recovery.

Classification of Financial Liabilities and Equity
Financeal habilites and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements, A
financial lability is any liability that is a contractual obligation
tor deliver cash or another financial assct to another entity; or to
exchange financial assets or financizl liabilities with another
entity under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the
entity. An equaty investment 1s any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the entity after deducting all
liahilities. Instruments are evaluated to determine if they
comain both liabily and equity components. The  imitial
carrying amouml of a compound financial instrument is
allocated first to the liability component, measused at fair
value, and the equity 15 assigned the residual amount.
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Offsefting Financial Assets and Liabilities
Fmancial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount

presented in the balance sheet where there 15

« Currently a legally enforceable nght to set-off the recognised
amounts, and

« Intent to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously,

Where these condiions are not met, financal assets and
liabilities are presented on a gross basis in the balance sheet

Fair Value Measurement
See Mote 28 for details about the fair value measurement of the
company's financial assets and liabilities,

Fair Value Hedges

The company applies hedge sccounting under [AS 39
‘Financeal Instruments: Recopnition and Measurement’ [of
certaun interest rate swaps used to manage the interest rate
exposure of certain froed-rate unsecured long-term and short-
term  borrowings. To qualify for hedge accounting, the
derivative hedge must be haghly effective at reducing the nsk
from the exposure being hedged, Additionally, the company
miust formally document the hedging relatioaship a1 inceplion
and te=1 the hedging relationship to ensure the derivative hedge
contmues to be highly effective over the life of the hedging
relationshap

Current Asset Investments

The directors are of the opinicn that it would mot be
appropriate to classify financial instruments owned as current
asset investments or 1o provide an analysis of such securities
between those listed and unlisted,

Collateralised Agreements and Collateralised
Financings. Collateralised agreements nclude  resale
agreements and securities borrowed. Collateralised financings
include repurchase agreements, secunties loaned, secured debt
securities issued, intercompany loans and other bomrowings.
See “"Classification and Measurement: Financial Assets” and
“Classification and Measurement: Financial Liabilities™ above
for details on the classification and measurement of these
instruments. Collateral received or posted can be in the form of
cash or secunities. Cash collateral 15 recognised/derecognised
when received/paid. Collateral posted by the company in the
form of securities is not derecognised from the balance sheet,
whilst collateral received in the form of secuniies is net
recogrised in the balance sheet If collateral receved is
subsequently sold, the obligation to retum the collateral and the
cash received are recogmsed on balance sheei.
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Current and Deferred Taxation. The tax expense for the
pertod consists of current and deferred twxation. Tax s
recognised in the profit and loss account, except to the extent it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively ermacted al the balance sheet date in the countries
where the company operates and generates taxable income,
Dieferred tax is recogrised in respect of all temporary
differences that have originated, but not reversed at the balance
sheet date, where transactions or events have ocourred at that
date that will result in an obligation to pay more tax or a right
1o pay bess tae in the Duture with the following exceptions:

» Diefierred tax assets are recogrised only to the extent that the
directors consider that it i mofe likely than not that there
will be sumtable taxable profits from which the future reversal
of the underlying temporary differences can be deducted,

+ Deferred 1ax is measured on an undiscourted basis at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the penods i which
temporary differences reverse, based on fax rates and laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Dieferred tax is recognised in the profit and loss account or
directly in other comprehensive income according to where the
associated gain or loss, to which the deferred tax is attributable,

15 recognised.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, Provisions are recognised in the firancial statements
when it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle a present {legal or constructive) ohligation,
which has anisen a5 a result of past events, and for which a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation
Legal obligations that may arise as a result of proposed new
laws are recognised as obligations anly when the legislation is
virtually certain to be enacted as drafied,

A contingent ltability 15 a possible obligation that anses from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
CCCMTENGe of non-occirrence of one or more uneerain fulure
evenls not whelly within the control of the company or a
present obligation that arises from past events bt = ot
recognised because enher an outflow of economic benelits is
nat probable or the amount of the obligation cannot be relablby
measured,

A contingent asset 15 8 possible asset that arises from past
events and whose exastence will be confirmed only by the
ooeurrence of mon-ocowrrence of one or more uncertain future
events ned whally withan the ¢ontrol of the company.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets ame not recognised
in the financial statements. However, disclasure is made unleéss
the probability of settlement 1= remote.

l
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Mote 3.

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements

The preparation of [nancel stalements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts recognised in these financial statements. The nature of
estimation mears that sctwal outcomes could differ from those
estimates. The following judgements have had the most
significant effect on amounts recognised in the financal
stalements:

Fair Value Measurement

Certain of the company’s [inancial assets and habilities include
sigmificant unobservable inputs {1e., level 3) See Note 28 for
information about the carrying value, valuation technigues and
significant inputs of these instruments,

Litigation and Regulatory Proceedings

The company estimates and provides for potential losses that
may arise oul of htigation amd regulatory proceedings o the
extent that such losses are probable and can be reasonably
estimated. Significant judgement iz required in making these
estimates and the company”s final habilities may ulumately be
materally different. See Note 20 for further information about
the company’s provisions for liabilities and Note 26 for legal
procesdings that the company 15 involved in

Defined Benefit Pension

The cost of the Plan and the value of the Plan liabilities are
determined using actuarial valuations. This involves making
assumptions about discount rates, fwture salary increases,
momality rates and future pension increases. Due 1o the
complexity of the valuation, such estimates are subject o
significant uncertainty. See Note 10 for further information
about the company”s Plan
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UNLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Mote 4.
MNet Revenues

MNet revemses include net interest expense amd non-interest
income. Met interest expense incledes interest and dividends on
financial assets and liahilities measured at fair value and
amortised cost Non-inlerest income includes:

« Gaing  and losses onm financial  assets and  liabilities
mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss
(including financial liabilities held for trading) which
primarily relate to non-interest gains and losses on Onancial
istrum ents owned, hrancial mstruments sold, bul not vel
purchased and certain collateralised agreements.

Gains and losses on financial habilities desigrmied at fair
value through profit or loss which poimarily relate to non-
interest gains and losses on certain other creditors and
collateralised financings.

Fees and commissions which primarily relates to net
revenues from certain financial advisory and underwriting
engagements, executing and clearing client transactions amd
Cernain investment mManagement Services,

The table below preserits the company”s net frevenues,

Patiod Enchied Hovarmbar
5 in millons g EE]
Initeresit InCom
Rhistad! Boame Bom dabienal oaafteipartid 55014 SE014
Intewrest income from panent and group
wndertakings 1,595 1,566
Total Interest income 7,509 6,520
Inberest eaperse
ehernsl from | {3, 304) 3.212)
Infewest expense from parent and group
undertakings [ ] 3, 565)
Total interest expense 7,704) B, 775)
Het Interest expense {198 [195)
Ferancml aviati and habiBtiet masdatonly
measured st T valos Srough prodt or loss 8,132 4,415
Ferancial assets and linbities designabed
wit fabr valus throwgh prodt or boss {1,548) 1,878
Faat and committions 1,740 1. 770
Hon-irterest income B,207 5051
W revenues T 8,008 17,858
62

In the table above:

« Interest income included income from financial assets and
liabalities measurad at amortised cost of 52,55 hillion for the
period ended November 2019 and 32 41 billion for the period
ended Movember 2018,

s Interest expense included expenses from fimancial assets and
liabtlitics measured at amortised cost of 53,40 hillion for the
periond ended November 2019 and 33,37 billien for the period
ended Movember 2018,

« Financial liabilites designated at fair value through profit or
loss are frequently economically hedped with fimancial assets
and liabilities measured mandatorily at fair value through
profit or loss. Accordingly, gains or losses that are reponed
in [mancial assets and lsbilities desiprated at Gor valee
through profit or loss can be partmlly offset by gains or
lesses reported in financial assets and liabilities measured
mandatesily at fair value through prafit o loss.
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Note 5.
Segment Reporting

The company reports its activities in the following four
business segments: Investment Banking: Instiiutional Chent
Services, Investing & Lending, and Investment Management
See “Results of Operations — Segment Reporting”™ in Pant [ of
this annual report for a description of the company's segments.

Basis of Preparation

In reporting segments, certain of the company”s business lines
have been aggrepated where they have similar economic
charactenstics and are similar in each of the followmg arcas:
(1) the nature of the services they provide; (11) their methods of
distribution; (i1} the types of clients they serve, and (iv) the
regulatory environments in which they operate.

The cost drivers of the company taken as a whole,
compensation, headeount and levels of business sctivity, are
broadly similar in each of the company’s business segments.
Direct costs of employment in the company”s segments reflect,
among other factors, the overall performance of the company
as well as the performance of individual businesses.
Corsequently, operating profit margins in one segment of the
company’s business may be sigruficantly affected by the
performance of the company s other business segments.

The company allocates assets (including allocations of GCLA
and cash, secured chient financing and other assets), revenues
and expenses among the four business segments. Due to the
imegrated nature of these segments, estimates and judgements
are made in allocating certain assets, revenues and expenses,

The allocation process is bazed on the manmer in which
management currently views the performance of the segments.
Transactions between segments are based on specific erniteria or
approsimate third-party rates. Total administrative expenses
include mark-te-market of share-based compensation that has
not been allocated to individual business segments,

In addition to ransactions entered nle with third parties. the
company also enters into transactions with affiliates in the
normal course of business as part of market-making activities
and general operations. Revenues are allocated to, and received
from, such affiliates for these ransactions.

Management believes that the information below provides a
reasonable representation of each segment’s contribution 1o net
revenues, operating profit and total assets. Operating profit has
only been presented for the company™s significan segments,
which are Investment Banking and Institutional Chent
Services,

63
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The segment information presented in “Segment MNet
Revenues™ and “Sepment Operating Prof”™ below s prepared
according 1o the following methodologies:

« Revenue and expenses directly associated with each sepment
are ncluded in determining operating profit.

« Met revenues in the company’s segments include allocations
of mlerest income and expense 10 specific secunties and
other positions i relation 1o the cash generated by, or
funding requirements of, such positions with the exception of
interest on long-term subordinated loans, which is presented
in mterest payable and similar expenses (see Note %) Met
interest 15 included in segment net revenwes as il is consistent
with how management assesses segment performance.

Cwerhead expenses not  directly  allocable to  specific
segments are allocated matably based on direct sepment
r.:xpcnm

Segment Net Revenues
The table below presents the nel revenues of the company's

segments,

Pariod Ended Novembes

3 in maliong Fli] 2018
InvestEnent Banking

Financisl advisary § T4z E ]
Undecwriting s #71
Total Investment Banking 51,917 31,564
Institutionad Client Services

FIG Client Execution 52,763 32353
Equities FXE.] 2 6l
Talal InstiliRicnal Chent Serdces $5.407 4,983
Investing & Lending § 3 3§32
Inveptenent Managemen § 3N $ T
Total net revenues 53,008 57,068

The company updated its methodelogy for allocating funding
costs, reported within net revenues, 10 115 segments. As a resull,
in the table above, comparatives have been updated to conform
to the current period presentation, with no impact to total et
FEVENUCS.

Substantially all interest income and interest expense
recogmsed in net revenues is atinbutable to Institutional Client
Services.
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UNLIMITED COMPANY)
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Segment Operating Profit
The table below presents the operating profit of the company’s

significant segments

Pasriod Encsd Miowsenbisr

5 i mwlons 2016 18
Investment Banking - T
et revenioes 51,57 51564
Adrnivtation sapenies [1.048) {1.078)
Operating pront 5 471 5 408
IsnnLiGnal CRent Servites.

it revanise § 5507 F4.003
Adminiviative expenies [2.330) 2.9
Operaling pront ¥R 5 2003
Total et revenies 5 B096 5 7066
Total adminlstrative expenies {5.440) 14,807}
Total operating profit ] $ 3,250
Inthe table above:

+ Total met revenues included net revenues related to Investing
& Lending and Investiment Management segments of 31.07
billion for the period ended November 20019 and $1.31
billion for the perniod ended November 2018,

« Totl adminstrative  expenses  included  administrative
expenses related to Investing & Lending and Investment
Management segments of $¥89 million for the peniod ended
Movember 2019 and $305 million for the period ended
Movember 2018,

+ Towal administrative expenses included a charge of 5173
million for the period ended Movember 2019 and a credit of
5184 million for the period ended Movember 2018
representing mark-to-market of share-based compensation
that has net been allocated 1o the company's sepments.

Segment Assets
Substantially all of the company's assels are altnibutable to
Institutional Client Services
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Geographic Information

Dwue to the highly mtegrated nature of intermational financial
markets, the company manages its businesses based on the
profitabality of the enterprise as a whole. The methodology for
allocating ln'nfrtahilil}r to geographic regions is dependent on
estimates and management judgement.

Creographic results are generally allocated as follows:

« Investinent Banking: location of the client, investment
bankmg team and underlying risk

« Insirtutional Client Services: location of the markei-making
desk or the primary market for the underlving security.

« Investing & Lending: location of the investing and lending
leam.

= Investment  Management: location of the nvesiment
managermnent Leanm,

The table below presents the total net revenues of the company
by gecgraphic region allocated based on the methodology
referred to above.

Paricd Ended Novembas

$ it rralliong g 2018
EMEA, 54,762 55674
Aneicas 1,480 1,382
Asla L 820
Total net revenues 58,0 57,868
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Note 6.
Administrative Expenses

The table below presents the company's adminstrative
ENpRENSEs.

3§ in millons 2018 M8
Direct conts of smployment T 31,845
Brokerage, cleaning, sxchangs and dedribution Sess w7 Y
Mlarket duveloprment ] &
[+ 1 ard technaloay 122 112
Degsrciation and amaciuation 116 ]
Cesupancy 228 157
Prafeiiicnal Fad 1RE b ]
Marag harges kom group undedaking e [
Management charges to group undertakings [Ergi] 38Ty
ther sxpenses 0] o]
Total adminlsirative expentes B0 54,807
In the table above:

« Oecupancy expenses included net operating lease rentals for
lamd and buildings of 576 million for the period ended
Nevember 2019 and %69 milhion for the peried ended
Movember 2018,

« Other expenses primarily includes expenses incumed 1o
satisfy performance obligations where the company is
principal fto a transaction as requioed by IFRS 15,
miscellaneous taxes, provisions for labilities and charitable
contributions.

« Management charges includes service charges relating to
operational and admimstrative support and management
services, received from and provided to group undertakings

The table below presents the fees pavable to the company’s
auditor, which are included in professional fees
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In the table above:

« Audit related assurance services included fees in connection
with the audit of the company’s financial information and
reporting to G5 Group’s auditor for the purposes of G35
Group’s audit

« Other assurance services included the company’s share of
fiees related to certain services provided by a netwerk firm of
the company”s awditor 1o various GS Group entities. These
fees were apportioned to the varous GS Group enfitics,
including the company, by reference to each entity™s asset
BLEE.

Mate 7.
Staff Costs

The table below presents the company’s average monthly
emplovee headcount, including directors.

Hverage for the
Pariod Ended Novembes
Aomber il 2018
Insesimianl Bankng 19 TH2
Instibutional Clent Services 1,649 1,551
Invesiing £ Lending b 188
Investnont Management 81 555
Support Functions M 81
Total average headcount 4,173 4,067

Total headcount was 4,230 as of November 20019 and 4,210 as
of November 2018

The table below presents employment costs incurred by the
company, including those relating to direcioss

Paricd Erded Movembes

& iy malliong Fiill 2018

Pesiod Ended November Wiaged and salaries 3,073 51,658
£ i il T mn | wie Eotal Lty coas ot 237
Faas Tor the company's sudt S6.0 561 Penin comty;

DBt £cenbribation plan and definad

Huadt related arsurance piniates 4.1 42 ety ban section of th Fykid
Cther assurance wrvices 1.1 15 ponske plan E3] a5
Tacaton complance wevices 0. o1 Db Banaft wection of (e bybed
Othed non-awdd ferices [N ] o penien plan - 4
Total fess for non-audt sendces EX) X Tota direct costs of employment ﬁ:ﬂ 51,845
Total H11.5 120

i

In the table above, total direct costs of employment included a
charge of 5175 million for the period ended November 2019
and a credit of 5184 million for the penod ended November
2018 relating to the mark-to-market of share-based
compensation.

187/375

oOoOooodn
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Mote 8,
Directors’ Emoluments

The table below presents the company's  directors”
emoluments,

Period Ended November
£ in milions 2019 2018
Ageregate emolumsnty 57 55
Company p = i to money
purchas Serdeni - -
Total Gireciors” emoluments 57 55

The table below presents emoluments for the highest paid
director,

Pusiod Ended Navember
5 in millons 2018 W18
Ageregaty emcuments 54 53
Company pansion confribubions to monsy
purchase schames =
dycorund arnual pension st end of the peniod -

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006, directors’
emoluments  above represent the proportion of  todal
emcluments paid or pavable in respect of qualifving services
only. This total only mcludes the value of cash and benefits in
kind, and does not include the value of equity awards in
accordance with the provisions of Schedule 5 of 51 2008/410.
Directors also recerve emoluments for non-qualifying services
which are not required to be disclosed

Three directors were members of a defined contnibation
scheme, Three directors, including the highest paid director,
have received or are due to receive Group Ine, shares in respect
of long-term incentive schemes during the period. Mo director
has exercised stock options during the period.

The aggrepate emoluments of the seven non-execilive
directors who were members of the board of directors for all or
part of the penod ended November 2019 was approximately
51.8 million. Certain non-executive directors received or will
recenve additional ongoing fees i respect of advisory services
provided during the period ended MNovember 2019, the
aggrepate amount of which is approsimately $2.3 million

Hote 9,
Interest Payable and Similar Expenses

Interest pavable and similar expenses consists of interest on
lomg-term  subordimated loans from  parent and  group
undertakings of 3243 million for the penod ended November
2019 and 3237 million for the pentod ended November 2018
See Note 19 for [urther details.
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Note 10.
Pension Arrangements

The company sponsers a penston plan with a hybrid stracture,
having both a defined benefit section (the Plan) and a defined
contribution section. The Plan provides retirement benefits on
the basis of members” final salary, with a nermal retirement
age of 63 for most members, The Plan is funded, with the
assels of the scheme held separately from these of the
company, in separate trustes -admimstered funds

The Flan was closed 1o new entrants with effect from Apnl 1,
2008, and was replaced by a defined contribution plan. As of
March 31, 20146, the Plan was closed to future benefit accruals

fior existing participants,

The Plan operates under trust law and 15 managed and
admmistrated by the Goldman Sachs UK Retirement Flan
Trustee Limited (the Trustee) on behall of the members in
accordance with the terms of the Trust Deed and Rules and
relevant legislation. The Plan's assets are held by the trust.

A full aenerial valuation of the Plan was carmied oul by a
qualificd independent actuary as of July 31, 2019 using the
projected wnit credit method and updated to November 30,
2019, As of Movember 2019, the Plan liabilities consist of 96%
in respect of future beneficianes and 4% i respect of current
beneficiaries,

Risks of the Plan
The main risks of the Flan are:

« Funding Sheortfall. Additonal connbutions will be
required if the investment returns are not sufficient to pay for
benefits. The kevel of equity returns will be a keyv determinant
of overall invesiment return; the investment ponfolio is also
subject to a range of other risks typical of the asset classes
held, in particular interest rate risk and inflation risk on
bonds.

« Asset Volatility. A consequence of the Plan's investment
strategy, with a significant proportion of the assets invested
in equities and other return-seeking assets is that the
difference between Flan assets and Plan liabilitics may be
valatile.

Plan Liabilities Sensitivity. Plan lahilities are sensitive
1o the assumplions made about future inflation and life
expectaney. It s also sensiive to the discount rate, which
depends on market yields on sterling-denominated AA
corporate bonds,
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Financial Assumptions

The table below presents the significant financial assumptions
uzed to determmine the present value of the defined benefit
chligation.
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Defined Benefit Cost

The table below presents the defined benefit gain related to the
Flan recognized in the company’s profit and less account and
in other comprehensive Income.

Pariod Ended Nevsenbier Pariod Ended Novambas
% P annum 2019 2018 3 i raliang Juig 2018
Démcount rate 1.09 34 Profil and loss accounl
Rete of price inflation = RPI 202 360 Past service cost §F - 3 4
Rate of price inflaton = CPI v 2.50 Met Snance income [RE0] [
Rate of increase in pensions in payments Talal ciedited Lo Me profl and 1088 adcouml 1% [T
{post-November 30, 1898 acoual) 2] 3,30
Rate ofincreass in pensions in deferment Gther comprehenaive Income
{posst-Nowsmber 30, 1658 acoual) aar 260 Fbsm on Plan assets iessygreate)
Fate of increase in penséons in defeement Has st ount rate [ 368
{past-Apei &, 2008 accrual) v 2,80 Artusnsl gain = Nabiity sspansnce 21 (ki ]
Actusnial lossqgain} = krancial assumptons S 408
Meortality Assumptions Actusinl lossqgain) = demegraphic sssumptions 13 (14}
The table below presents the mortality assumptions used 1o TMWMEWINHHM "
. . , - - P comprehensine income 1 (81}
determine the present value of the defined benefit obligation o SeneT Tossiga T T

Parind Endad Nowembier
Years _ _ i 218
Lify sxpectancy #1 65 far & membaer currenty 65
Males A 135
Famalad 253 24,7
Lity sxpectancy 81 65 far & member curmenty 45
Makie 5.3 M4E
Famalss 6.6 8T

In the table above, the mortality assumpiions adepted for the
pentod ended November 2019 were the “3APS 53 very light
{All Pensioners) series™ base table with an allowance for future
improvements from 2013 onwards in line with the CMI 2018
core projections with a long-term rate of improvement of
1.25% per annum and an el additon 10 mortality
improvement parameter of 0.50% per annum,

al

Reconciliation of Pension Surplus
The table below presents a reconciliation of Plan assets, Flan
liabilities and the net pension surplus.

Fan Flan  Mal pension

5 i malliang o] bt et Surplus
Perigd Ended Howember 7010
Aa ol Dacembar 1 L F] 1,815 % 408
PmLt werdcn oost - - -
Hat Snance income L [EL]) 13
Awbam on Plan assets greatec{less)

than discount rate A = k]
Actusrial gaindloss) = lability

sxpanence - Fil Fil
Actusial gandlata) — Banscial

assumptions - [EL ] (560)
Actusrial gaind{lossh = demcgraphic

assumptions - {13k {13
Empioyse confributions - - -
Benofts pad (4] o -
Faemign anchange gainileas) 4 {38y 4
A5 of Hovember 30 SLEER 2 A8 3 264
As of January 1 52863 2,343 5
Prst sarvicn oost = i [21]
Hat inance income 8 {50 8
Rabam on Man astels greatecless)

than discount rate (36 - (360
Actusrial gaindlae) — Babiity

expanance - 7 7
Actussinl ghndlass) — Bancial

assumptions - 408 408
Acbussial gaintfleal — dam e aghic

astumptions - 1] 14
Employer conbributions 47 - 47
Benefts paid (34} | -
Forsign mnchange gaind loss) 184} 197 27F
5 of Howembaer 30 32222 H1818 S 406
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UNLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Fair Value of Plan Assets

The Plan Trustees have a long-term asset allocation strategy to
invest 50% of assets in retum seching investments (such as
equities) and 50% in hability matching assets (such as Gilts).
The Flan has a hedging programme investing in swaps and
other dervatives in order 1o reduce the exposure o changes in
interest rates and inflation.

The table below presents the fair value of Plan assets.

5 in milions Dunted Unguoted Total
As of Hovember 2019

Ecuitiat $1400 5 - $1400
e 51 - 351
Swage - 683 B85
Cath and cach squivalents 17T - 177
Othee - a% ]
Total $1,028 B (FIE
Equities 51,126 5 - 51,128
Gita 47 - 497
Ewaps - 305 385
Cath gad cath squivalents 108 - 108
Qthae - ] 2]
Totml 781 T S50
Sensitivity Analysis

The table below presents a sensitivity amalysis of Plan
liabilities for each significant actuarial assumption

lrpct o Plan Linbiities

Incresss in assumption Diecrease in assumption
£ in milions % $ in o %
As of Hovember 2019
0 25% change in
discount rate S(1ea) 1.5 & 206 LR
0.25% change in price
infation 1E4 e [LIE] .3
1 ymar change in ife
oEppCtancy & ar L] (a7
A of November 018
025% change in
dreount rate 138 7.8 315 B3
0.25% changs in peice
infation 104 &0 (127} 7
1 yoar change in ife
WAPREEEAEY T8 4.1 {TE) (4.1}

In the table above, the sensitivities are based on a change in
each assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.

There are inherent hmitations in the sensiivity analvsis, as
sisch dicsyneratic movements are unbkely 1o occur. The
methodology used to calculate the sensitivities are consistent
across the two periods presented in the table above,

it
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MNature of Future Cash Flows

Smce the Plan™s closure to future accruals from March 31,
2016, the company has ceased 1o make regular contnbutions
inte the Flan but will continue to assess the funding
requirements of the Plan with the Trustees on a periodic basis

On a triennial basis, a formal funding valwtion of the Plan s
performed for the Trustees to assess the funding needs of the
Plan. This valuation differs from the actuanal valuation
required for sccounting purposes due to the we of differemt
ASSUMPLIONS.

The most recent funding valuation of the Plan was performed
by a qualified ndependent actuary as of December 31, 2018,
which indicated that the FPlan was in a funding surplus of 3287
million. As such, the company currently does nol expect 1o
miake any further contrnibutions il the Plan.

The company expects 320 million of benefits to be paid cut of
the Flan 1o members in the twelve months [ollowing Movember
2019,

The weighted average duration of Plan habilities was 33 vears
as of Movember 2019,

Mate 11.
Share-Based Payments

Stock Incentive Plan

Group Inc, sponsors a stock incentive plan, The Goldman
Sachs Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan (2018)
(2018 SIF), which provides for, amengst others, granis of
R5Us, restricted stock, dividend equivalent nghts and
incentive stock options. On May 2, 2018, Group Inc's
sharcholders approved the 2018 SIP. The 2018 SIP replaced
The Goldman Sachs Amended and Restated Stock Incentive
Flan (2015) previously in effect, and applies to awards granted
on of after the date of approval.

The company recorded share-based compensation in respect of
the amortisation of gramted equity awards, net of forfeitures, of
%452 mullion for the penod ended November 2019 and $405
million for the period ended MNovember 2018 The
corresponding credit 1o equity has been transferred to liabilities
as a resull of the terms of the chargeback agreement with
Group Inc. under which the company is committed to pay to
Group Inc. the grant-date fair value as well as subsequent
movements in the fair value of those awards 1o Group Inc. a1
the time of delivery to its employees.
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UNLIMITED COMPANY)
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Restricted Stock Units

Group Inc. grants RSUs to the company”’s emplovees under the
2018 S5IP, which are generally valued based on the closing
price of the underlying shares on the date of grant after taking
inte account a Dgudity discount for any applicable post-
vesting and delivery transfer restrictions. RSUs penerally vest
and underlying shares of common sock deliver (net of
required withholding tax) as outlmed i the apphcable award
agreements. Employee award agreements generally provade
that vesting is aceelerated in cenain circumstances, such as on
retirement, death, dsability and conflicted employment
Delivery of the underlving shares of common stock is
comditioned on the grantees satislying cenam vesting and other
requirements outined in the award agreements.

Stock Options

Stock options generally vest as outlined in the applicable stock
option agreement. In gencral, options expire on the tenth
anniversary of the geant date, although they may be subject 1o
earlier termination or cancellation under cerain circumstances
in aceordance with the terms of the applicable stock option
agreement and The Goldman Sachs Amended and Restated
Stock Incentive Plan m effect at the time of grant.

The table below presents options cutstanding. There were no
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Mote 12,
Tax on Profit

The table below presents an analysis of the company’s 1ax on
prafit.

Pericd Ended Novembss

$ in milions pil] 2018
Current fax

UK. tacmtion W 4%
Acpatiranns in reapeet of priod paeiods ] a7
Crwr sy boation ol 182
Total current tax &1 [
Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of emporary difersnces 12 180
Adpritrebetic in reipect of pricr periodt = 3
Tota defermed tax 3 =3
Total tax on profit 524 [IRH

The table below presents a reconciliation between tax on profit
and the amount calewdated by applying the weighted average
rate of UK. corporation tax apphcable 1o the company for the
pericd ended MNovember 2019 of 27.0%% (period ended
November 2018: 27.0%) to the profit before taxation,

Pariod Ended Novembes

options outstanding as of November 2019, All outsianding w _lotg 2016
. . ot balorn axatan 4 33,030
options as of November 2018 were granted in 2008, =
X . Prodt muRiphed by LLE, conparation tax rate of
Weighted  Wieighied 27.0% (paviod anded Neverbar 2018: 27.0%) Bss a1
werage average Changes in resogrition and msatutsmses of
Optir sxeciee  reenaining life " ux 15 §
Exsreive Price cutanding price rees) B & o e
Aol Heveminis 2018 -
575.00- 5 80.09 240,013 57078 008 T h,"".'.’""'"h o from graup an B
Total outsancing HIH m.ve Lo Effect ol higher tames on cversess sarnings 3 4
. . . . . E Exchange differences and othar 4 (1]
For those options exercised during 1.11: period, the weighted Addprstmants In respect of prior perods 5 %0
average share price at the date of exercise was $171.32 for the Total tax on profit 5 na S

period ended MNovember 2019 and 5253.52 for the period ended
MNovember 2013

iy

The UK. government announced i its budget on March 11,
2020 that the UK. corporation tax main rate, which was due to
decrease from 1900 to 1700 from April 1, 2020, will now
remain at 19.0%. This will result in the UK. corporation tax
rate applicable to the company remaiming at 27.0% from April
1, 2020. If this rate change were to have been substantively
enacted as of November 2019, then the company's deferred tax
asset would have been higher by 522 million, of which $1%
million would have been recognised in the profit and loss
account ard 53 million in other comprehensive income
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Mote 13,
Fixed Assets

The table below presents fixed assets

A el "
5 i ervlicns 2018 2018
Tangible fued assets %13 520
mtengibie fred srsets aaz ot
Fiend sl imvesiments 4 1
Total Need dssels 409 518

Tangible Fixed Assets
The table below presents the movements in tangible fixed
assets during the period

Fistures,

Leazshiold fittings and
3 in milions imp nte o gt Totail
Cost
s of Dacamber 1 581 $10 561
Mddtions -] - ]
Disposals 1) (L] =
2t of Heramibe 30 ™ 0 R
Accumulaed degreciation
A of Dacomiber 1 5 [ a
Chistge for the pedicd (e Note §) 7 = T
Dripadals [F7) 11} (]
s of Mereemiber 30 2] 5 F)
Hed boak value
A of Negvamiber 2018 39 §4 13
s of Mervamioee 2010 318 54 5 90

Intangible Fixed Assets
The table below presents the movements in intangible ficed
assets during the penod

Azzelt in the

Compuler courss of
5 in millons sobwane  construction Total
Cost
s of December 1 E41-1 £183 5ara
Adction T ransbers 00 " m
Drpataty [19) - (801
Az of Nerramibie 30 =1 104 5%
Accumilated amortisation
A of Decomber 1 -] - a0
Change far the pavicd (1 MNota ) o] = 109
Dmpasals ] - ()
Az of Neember 30 153 = &
Hit boak value
Az of Nevember 2019 g S 1z
s of Mereemioe 2010 311 L =N

0
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Fixed Asset Investments

Froed asset investments included investments other than loans
of 84 million as of November 2010 and %1 million as of
Movember 2018 and shares in subsadiary underakings of Snil
a3 of both Movember 2019 and November 2018,

The table below presents the subsichary over which the
company exercised control as of November 2019,

Hikdng
and
propoticn  Class of
Mame of Ccsaritry af alvoting  shares Mumber  Nature of
pany ot rights o] beld  Business
Goldman Sachs
Cayman) Cayman Cwcdnary Financial
Limited tslands 100%  shares 20 services

The remstered office address of Goldman Sachs (Cayman)
Limited is the offices of Maples Corporate Services Limited,
PO Box 309, Uglnd House, Gramd Cayman, KY1-1104,
Cayman [slands.

The company has inerests in o numiber of special purpose
entities and capital guaranteed funds which do not meet the
definition of a legal subsidiary, but give rise to the risks and
rewards that are, in substance, no different than if they were
legal subsidimnes. The actvities of these specml purpose
entities and capital puaranteed funds consist of the issuance of
loan notes under the terms of a repackaging programme. These
special purposes entities and capital puranteed funds are
conselidated in the financial statements of Growp Ine.
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERMATIONAL (UNLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Hote 14,

Financial Instruments Owned and Financial
Instruments Sold, But Not Yet Purchased

Financeal irstruments owned and Gnancial instruments sold,
but mot yet purchased consist of financial instruments and
investments within the operating activities of the company,
Financeal imstruments owned includes financial mstruments
owned pledged as collateral. See Mote 28 for further
information.

The table below presents financral instruments owned,
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In the tables above:

« Corporate debt instruments includes corporate loans, debt
seourities, convertible debentures and other debt oblizations.

« Equaty secusities includes public and private equitics arnd
exchange-traded funds.

« Converible debentures previously included within equity
securities  have been  reclassified to comporate  debt
instruments. Comparatives have been updated 10 conform to
the current period presentation.

Mote 15.
Collateralised Agreements

The table below presents collateralised sgreements,

A5 of Novamber
$ in mallong Pl 2018
Aosale sgresments R F¥i] 127474
Securtas boerowed 83578 75,860
Tolal collaerallsed agreements 156,48 S203, 334

Ag o Novernbar

§ in milfons 9 i)
Cash instruments
Moty Rl L UME AL 5 B2 5 4
a 1 and ageeey oblgat 39, 551 33,518
Morigage and other avuet-bacied lcane

and sacanties ™ 455
Coporate debl inWments il 17.514
Equity vecuritien 45,10 .55
Commeditet 5 L]
Total cash irstruments o, 5 B, 556
Derivalive instruments
nterasl rabes 401,471 20, 006
Credit 1,564 W AES
Currencies e v} 111,
Commadites 8,054 12,644
Equities 50,003 4,678
Total derivative instruments BET,42% S 2553
Total financlal instruments owned STHE, 407 5504179

The table below presents financial instruments sold, but not yet
purchazed,

At of Movember

£ in millons s 018
Cash instruments
G and agancy oblig 4§ 16,055 £ N0
Coporate debt insuments 3,813 3545
Exuity secunies Falr. ) e ]
Commodites Fil 2
Total cash Irstruments 44,150 47,800
Derivative instruments
Inhawraad rabes 4B1, 9T 07, nea
Cradit n,3m 26,080
Currencies 1,337 111,853
Commocktes 753 12 7A8
Exuitins 37,847 SET
Total derivative instnamants 670,490 498,397
Total financial instruments sold, But ot yet

purchased 5714, 640 545,867

In the table above:

» Total collateralised agreements included amownis duwe from
growp undertakings of 38843 billion as of Movember 2019
and $129.75 kallion as of November 2018,

« Total collateralised agreements incleded balances due in
more than one vear of $1.72 billion as of November 2019 and
51,16 hillion as of November 2015,
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Mote 18,
Debtors

The table below presents debtors balances.
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Mote 17.
Deferred Tax

The table below presents the components of the company's
defermred tax asset.

Az oM 5
5 i prwlens 2019 2018 A of November
Arnourds. s Trom o= and ¢ 58,102 $h2 084 $ i mallinng 018 016
Amountt due from parent and group undetakings 14,143 12,381 Dt compansanon 453 Rkl
Defirr ad tax (see bote 17) A 58 Postrefirement benats {63y B5)
Gther deblors B w Toenporary efsances felatod 1o foed ansets (L] {68)
Prepayments and accrusd income & i3 Dabt valuation adjustrment a8 1z
Total deblors S8 564,793 Crhiet benpordry dFNTRNCES 12} -
Total deferred tax §333 5158

In the table above:

« Amounts due from parent and group undertakings included
balances due in more than one year relating 1o intercompany
loans of 8527 million as of November 2019 and $134 million
as of Movember 2018, All other debtors are due within one
vear of the balance sheet date.

« Amounts dee from broker'dealers and  customers  and
amounts due from parent and group undenakings included
receivables from contracts with ehients of $203 million as of
Movember 2019 and 5338 million as of November 2015

« Total debtors incheded nancial assets of $73.26 billion as of
Movember 2019 and %6449 billion as of Movember 2018,
andd non-financial assets of 3437 million as of November
2009 and 5306 mallion as of November 20018,

The table below presents changes in each component of the
company s deferred tax asset.

5 in malliang 019 2018
Dufismind compindgation
Beginning balance $431 5477
Transler bo Be profit and loss sccount 22 186y
Ending balance 3453 T 431
Postretirement benelits
Bagenng balanes 505 500
Tranalar bo B proft and ks sesount {8) (Ll
Teanalir to other comprahansin income 40 (14}
Ending balance EXTED] § (B5)
Temporary diflerences retated (o flaed assets
Beginning balance 5 {68} 5 1)
Transher to the profit and |ost sceount {25) {27
Ending balance TR 5 058y
Debit waluation adjustemEnt
Beginning balance 0 5111
Transier bo other comprehensive income S0 P12
Ending balance § 38 501
Otfver lemporany differences
Beginning balance $ - $ -
IFRS 15 trasraititen & dpshme - 1
Transfer bo S profit and |oss scoount (K] {1y
Ending balance 5 2 ¥ -
Toia

Bagirning balance 5250 S&TE
IFRE 15 travaition & dpshen - 1
Teanslar ba B proft and lcas account

(e Note 17) (13 (183}
Teanafer ba athe compnah ineame Ll (137
Ending balance 333 5256

In the tables above, deferred compensation 15 mainly in respect
of share-based compensation,
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERMATIONAL (UNLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 18,
Collateralised Financings

The table below presents collateralised hnancmps.

Mote 19,
Other Creditors
The table below presents other creditors.

A of Nowember As of Nawmiber
£ in millons 2018 28 £ i mallions 18 2B
Amounts Talling dus withim ane year Amigants fallng due within one e
Repurchaze agresments. § 50088 3 Tsn Unzecured bormowings % 19,193 3 20229
Sacuntion loared 668,973 58,112 A due to broker'dealers and B354 53,547
Infecompany loans e - Amounts dus to parent and group wndetakings:
Dbt oz urities issued 1420 2872 Othar unsecursd credions 10,274 12,488
Other bomowings 2,397 3,828 Share-based compsnsaton Aol 418
Total S84, 740 5141,840 Corporation bae payable 42 127
Asnounts falling dus after mons than one year Other baxes and socal seownty costs 305 e
Repurchase agresments. 5 M8 5 6700 Crher credbors and accruals 1,004 827
Sacunbey kansd = 2T Tota 5 B3ATE 3 87151
Dot sezurtes issusd ar 281 Amoants falling due after more than one year
Othar boitowinga 3,154 4,108 Un A il & BE25T § 67461
Total 557 5 10,305 Aencunts dus bo parent and group wndedakings:
Total collateralined Rnancings 5130,087 $152.145 Shirs-babad comeraation 718 575
i cracilers and acerualy o0 59
In the table above: Tola 5 68,060 § 58,085
Tatal ather croders S182,542 S155.246

+ Repurchase agreements falling due afier more than one year
included instruments that are repayable in more than five
vears of 577 million as of Movember 2019 and $74 million as
of Movember 2018 which had maturities falling due in 2030

Dbt securities issued and other berrowings falling due after
more than one yvear ineluded instruments that are repavable in
more than five years of 51.66 billion as of November 2019
and 52.21 billion as of November 2018, As of November
2019, these mstruments had maturities falling due between
2025 and 20500 Pavments on these instruments are typically
referenced to underlving financial assets, which  are
predommately credit, ineres rates and equities-related.

Total collateralised fmancings mncluded amounts due 1o
group undertakings of 38708 hillion as of November 2019
and 398.80 hillion as of November 2018 of which 58599
billion as of Movember 2019 and 395590 hillion as of
Movember 20018 are due within one vear,

Intercompamy  loans, debt secunties 1ssued and  other
borrowings are secured by secumities which have been
pledged as collateral. This pledged collateral s either
recogmsed within “Financial instruments owned” or sourced
through collateralised agreements.

73

In the table above:

« Amounts falling due within one year included financial
liabilities of $93.13 hillion as of November 2019 and 596 69
billion as of November 2018 and non-financial liabilines of
5347 million as of Movember 2019 and 5465 million as of
Movember 2015

« All amounts falling due after more than one vear are financial
linbilities as of both Movember 2019 and Movember 2018,
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Unsecurad Borrowings Debt Valuation Adjustment

The table below presents unsecured borrowings. The company calculates the fair value of debt secunties issued
- that are designated at fair value through profit or loss by

i m’"m T disomn_'lling future cash flows at a rate which incorporates G5

teTcompany Giroup’s credit spreads,

Loans £10493 L3 B ) . . <

Gthae borrawing 1,084 a2 The table below presents information about the cumulative net

Amounts Taling due within one year 11,847 TZAh DVA  painsilosses)  included in accumubated  odher

Loans 48,081 2453 comprehensive income.

Subeedinated loans 5,377 BATT

Othae bortowings 1,168 1,638 Ag of November

AsmoiEns Taling cus aer (more Man one yrar 52,764 39,380 $ in malliong L] R

_Total IFerco pany Unscured berrowings $64,911 561,453 “DVA (pew-tax) 5147} 554

Estamal

Bank lcans 5 68 EL Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Cuwickalts o :5‘:‘ In the “Statements of Cash Flows™, cash flows from financing

gmf”“ﬁ'.':"“ r::: &3: activities includes cash Mows associated with the company’s

Arourts Taling due within one year THE T long-term subordinated loans and associated scerued interest.

Bank loans 0 ] Accrued interest on the company’s long-term subordinated

Dbt socurides ivsuesd 15,258 17854 loans, which is included in cther creditors, decreased by 546

ther barrowings s a2 millim for the penod ended November 2019, due to payments

lmm::'“"ng"“mm“"' ‘::::: S;:::': of 5289 million, partially offset by interest accrued of 5243

Tois tnsecured Domowings TE7 430 86,690 million.  Accrued interest on the company’s long-term

subordinated loans, which is included in other creditors,
Inthe table above: mereased by 5123 mallion for the penod ended Movember

+ Dbt securities issued and other borrowings falling due after
maore than one year included instruments that are repayable m
maore than five years of 39.63 billion as of November 2019
and 310,97 billion as of November 2018, As of MNovember
20019, these mstruments had maturities falling due between
2024 and 2057, Payments on these nstruments are typically
referenced to underlving financial assets, which are
predommately interest rates, equities and currencies-related.

Intercompany loans falling due after more than ome year
included loans that are repayable in more than five vears. As
of November 2019, the company had variable rate loans of
5833 million with maturities falling due between December
I, 2024 and Apeil 7, 2028 As of November 2018, the
company had vanable rate loans of S1.03 bidbon with
maturities falling due between April 8, 2024 and April 7,
2028,

Subordinated loans of 3538 billion as of both November
2019 and Movember 2008 consist of long-term loans from
parent and group undertakings, which are unsecured and
camy interest at a margin over the U5, Federal Reserve's
Federal Funds rate. The margin 15 reset on a periodic basis to
reflect changes in GS Group's weighted average cost of debd.
These loans constitute regulatory capatal as approved by the
FRA, subject to any regulatory capital deductions, and are
repavable subject to FRA approval These loans are
repavable between December 26, 2024 amd Seplember 9,
2025,

74

2018, due to interest accrued of 3237 million, partially offsct
by payments of $54 millwon.

Mote 20.
Provisions for Liabilities

The table below presemts provisions for habilities, which are in
respect of legal and regulatory proceedings in which the

company 15 involved.

§ i g

FAs of Decembar 1, 0B
Charged during the penod
Reducbion in provision
Litilsad duning B pariod
As of Movemnber 30, 2019 5

NEEDY

In the table above, provisions for liabilities utilised during the
period ncluded 345 million related to a fine levied by the FCA
in March 2019 relating to transaction reporting. This fine was
paid in April 20019
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERMATIONAL (UNLIMITED COMPANY)
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Note 21,
Share Capital
The table below presents share capital.

Ordinary shares
Allotted, called up and fully pald of §1 each § in miléons
Az of Decembe 1, 2018 51,064,181 [T
Allomed during the period 7. B3 RES L]
As of Hovember 30, 2018 SE0 602046 S580

On Janwary 21 2019, 7643885 ordinary shares of $1 each
were allotted at 344.48 to G3G UK. The total comsideration
receved was 3340,000,000 in cash incorporating @ share
premium of $332.356,115,

COn May 10, 2018, in order to simplify the company’s capital
structure, the company alletted 17.3 million ordinary shares of
§1 each 10 GSG UK for nil comsideration The company
subsequently cancelled 17.3 million ordinary shares for nil
conzideration, resulting in a reduction in the company’s non-
disiribuiable capital reserve by $17.3 million and an increase in
its profit and loss account in sharcholder's funds by 5173
million.

Note 22,
Other Equity Instruments

The table below presents information about the company’s
unsecured AT notes,

Humbsre of
Manth of i ATH notes 5 millions Inbernsd rate
June 2017 &, B00 54,800 9.00°% p.a
Movernber 2018 2,500 2400 AT poa
s of November 30, 2018 B, 00 500

The company’s AT1 notes of 31 million each have been issued
to GSG UK. They have no fixed maturity date and are not
callable.

The AT1 notes will be mrevocably written-down in the event
that the CET1 capital ratio of the company of the GEG UK
Group falls below 7%,

The table below presemts information about interest paid on the
AT1 netes. Interest pand. met of tax is recognised in
shareholder's funds. The non-cumulative fixed interest is
pavable at the company”s discretion subject to certain solvercy
and regulatory conditions.

Porind Ended Mavsmber
5 milliong 7019 018
meerst paid (pre-tan) I H 503
nfaraal pald (nad ol tEx) 5547 sas7

75
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Mote 23,
Dividends

The directors declared and paid an intenm dividend of $1.00
billion on Movember 26, 20019 to G3G UK representing $1.70
per share.

The directors declared and paid an intenm dividend of $2.50
ballion on November 30, 2018 to G3G UK representing 34.30
peer share,

Mote 24,
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The wable below presents cash and cash equivalemts for the
purpose of the statements of cash flows

A ol Nk
$ in mallong 2018 EOL
Cash at bank and in karmd [ ETH 524 388
Cronr ks (eee Mot 19 {38} {153
Total cash and cash equivalents £r2.250 524 243

I the table above, cash at bank and in hand included cash that
is not available for use by the company of 34.22 billion as of
Movember 2019 and 53,44 billion as of November 2018,
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HNote 25,

Reconciliation of Cash Flows From

Operating Activities

The table below presents a reconciliation of cash Nows from
OpeTaEting activities.
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Note 26.
Financial Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments and Contingencies
The table below presents commitments and contingencies.

A of November
Pwriod Ended Nowsmber f.:':ﬂ:u — . 101-: mws;:
¥ b milicar 2019 A Eolistoralized fnancing 8,006 7,156
Prokt belore tavabon § 2428 5 3030 e 2,900 2400
Adusiments for — S i
Depreciation and amsseSation (s Moles § and 13) ALl &3 Tota ko e w006
Loss of i & - . ) . .
& imhmﬁrm:mnm- ™ 3 . Cnmm:lr.ncnls and Dﬂﬂtlﬂ.gn:l‘&jll:'s mclud.::\d._bahmcs with group
Foreign sachange lozses 123 1432 undertakings of 541.73 hillion as of Movember 2019 and
Share-based comp - LU 48 $23.13 hillion as of Movember 2015,
IFRS 15 transiion adustment = 7}
Provisions ke kabities @ &8 Collateralised  agreement commitments includes  forward
::;" paymble ::::""’w {ee Note i i) =T stariing resale and securities bomowing agreements, and
g 4 Fasgis m epeating - ) - . .
asants and b . i collateralised financing commitments mechedes forward starting
repurchase and secwed lending agreements that settle at a
Changes in cperafing assets future date, generally within three business days. Collateralised
Decraasefincreass) in fnancisl instraments owned (184,275 45,035 agreement commitments also include ransactions where the
Dactoas in colataralived agresenants '::':::J ;;: company has entered into commitments 1o provide contingent
m‘;:ﬁ"""ﬁg X ST R e financing to its cliemts and counterparties through resale
agreements. The company’s [unding of these commilments
Changes in operating liabilties depends on the satisfaction of all contractual conditions to the
' Ao i i Financial i 5 resale agrecment and these commitments can expire unused
wold, bl not yel purchased 188,853 [LER: "]
Diecrease in collateralived fnancings (22,058 123,302} (ther commitments primarily relate to collateral commitments.
crents in ofer credibors 6,393 11,827
Dacrease in prevition e Sabities 14 - In addition, there are registered charges on the company’s
_Changed i oporating ksbiies L {55.610) assets which have arisen in the ordinary course of business.
Coniibutiony paid 1o defined beanei plan
{soe Hote 14} - 147}
Cagh generated Irom operabions 5 510 5 5980 Leases

In the table above, cash gencrated from operations included
interest paid of $7.02 billion for the period ended November
2019 and 56.76 billion for the pertod ended November 2018,
and mterest received of 37.60 billion for the period ended
Movember 2019 and $6.36 billion for the pericd ended
Movember 2015

The company leases certain buildings under non-cancellable
lease agreements. Under these lease agreements, which are
subject to renegotiation at various intervals specified in the
leases, the company pavs all insurance, manienance and
repairs of these properties.

The table below presents total future minimum rental paymenis
under non-cancellable opemting leases for cach of the
following periods.

As of Nosembser
% i mllng 7018 e
Lovss BuBn oA yRar 51 5 B2
Eltwisn ons Bnd v ysers Fo 113
O Bl yars 4 &
Totd £ 201

Total future minimum sublease payments expected to be
received wnder non-cancellable subleases were 39 million as of
Mevember 2019 and 321 mallion as of November 2018,
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Legal Proceadings

The company 15 iwolved in a number of judicial, regulatory
and arbitration proceedings (including those described below)
cOnCeming matters arising in connection with the conduct of
the company’s business, however it 15 nol praciicable to
reliably estimate the Onancial impact, if any, of these
proceedmes on the company, except as disclosed inMote 20,

1Malaysia Development Berhad (1MDB)-Related
Matters. G5 Group has received subpoenas and requests for
documents and information from vanous povemmental and
regulatory bodies and self-repulatory organisations as part of
investigations and reviews relating to financing transactions
and other matters involving 1 MDE, a sovereign wealth fund in
Malaysia. Subsidiaries of Group Ing., including the company,
acted as amangers or purchasers of approcamately $6.5 billion
of debt securities of 1MDB

Cn Movember 1, 2018, the U5, Department of Justice (DOT)
unsealed a criminal miormation and guilty plea by Tim
Leissner, & former participating managing director of G35
Group, and an indictment against Mg Chong Hwa, a former
managing direcior of G5 Group, and Low Taek Jho. Leissner
pleaded puilty to a two-count eriminal information charping
him with conspiring to launder money and conspiring to
violae the U5, Foreign Corrupt Practices Act’s (FCPA) anti-
bribery and internal accounting controls provisions. Low and
Mg were charged in a three-count indictment with conspiring to
launder money and conspiring o vielate the FCPA’s anti-
bribery provisions. On August 28, 2018, Leissner’s guilty plea
was accepled by the US. Dhstnel Court for the Eastern Dastrict
of Mew York and Lewssner was adjudicated guilty on both
coumts, Mg was alse charged in this indictment with conspiring
to violate the FCPA’s internal accounting controls provisions.
The charging documents state, among other things, that
Leissner and Ng participated in a consparacy 1o misappropriate
procecds of the IMDEB offenings for themselves and 1o pay
bribes to various government officials to obtan and retan
IMDBE business for GS Group, The plea and charging
documents indicate that Lemssner and MNg knowingly and
wilfully circumvented G5 Group's system  of internal
accounting comtrols, in part by repeatedly lving to control
personnel  and  mternal commattees  that reviewesd  these
offerings. The indictment of Mg and Low alleges that G5
Grroup’s system of intemnal accounting controls could be easily
cireumvented and that G5 Group's business  culture,
particularly i Southeast Asi, al umes  prienbtised
consummation of deals ahead of the proper operation of its
compliance functions. On May 6, 2019, Ng pleaded not gulty
to the DONs criminal charges.

7
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On February 4, 2020, the FRE disclosed that Andrea Vella, a
former participating managing director of G35 Group whom the
DO) had previously referred to as an unindicted co-
conspirator, had agreed, without admitting or denying the
FREE's allegations, to a consent order that prohibited him from
partcipating in the banking mndustry. Mo other pemalties were
imposed by the consent order.

On December 17, 2018, the Attorney General of Malaysia fled
criminal charges in Malaysia against the company, as the
arranger of three offerings of debt securities of IMDE,
agprepating appeovamately 36,5 lllion in principal amount, for
alleged disclosure deliciencies o the offenng  documents
relating to, among other things, the use of procesds for the debt
securities, as well as apainst two other subsidiaries of Group
Ing. Criminal charges have also been fled aganst Leissner,
Low, Mg and Jasmine Loo Al Swan. In a related press release,
the Attomey General of Malaysia indicated that prosecutors in
Malaysia will seek criminal fines against the accused in excess
of 327 hillion ples the 5600 million of fees recewed in
connection with the debt offerings. On August 9, 2019, the
Attorney General of Malaysia announced that coiminal charges
had also been filed agamst five current and former directors of
the company, including the company s chief executive afficer,
and twelve current and former directors of the two other
subsidiares.

The Malaysia Securities Commission issued notices to show
cause agunst 3 subsidiary of Group Ine. m December 2018 and
March 2019 that (1) allege possible viclations of Malaysian
securities laws and (i) ndicate that the Malavsia Secunities
Commission is considering whether to revoke the subsidiary's
licence to conduct corporate finance and fund management
activities in Malaysia,

G5 Group has received multiple demands, beginning in
MNovember 2018, from alleged shareholders under Section 220
of the Delaware General Corporation Law for books and
records relating te, among other things, G5 Group's
involvement with 1MDB and its compliance procedures. On
December 13, 2019, an alleged shareholder of Group Ine, filed
a lawsuit in the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware
seeking books and records relating to, among other things, G5
Group's  wnvolvement with IMDB and its  compliance
procedures.
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On February 19, 2019, a purported sharcholder dervative
action relating to 1MDB was filed in the US. District Court for
the Southern District of Wew York againgt Group Inc. and the
directors at the time and a former chairman and chief executive
officer of G5 Group. The amended complaint fled on July 12,
2019, which seeks unspecified damages, disporgement and
ingunctive reliel, alleges breaches of fduciary duties, including
in connection with alleged msider trading by certan current
and former directors, unjust enrichment and violations of the
anti-frand  provisions of the Exchange Act, including in
comnection with Group Ine’s common stock repurchases and
solicitation of prosaes, Defendants moved 1o dismiss this action
on September 12, 2019,

Beginming i March 2019, GS Group has also received
demands from alleged shareholders 1o investizate and pursue
clatms against certain current and former directors and
executive officers of Group Inc. based on therr oversight and
public disclosures reparding IMDB and related internal
controls.

On Movember 21, 2018, a summons with notice was filed
Mew York Supreme Court, Counly of MNew York, by
International  Petroleum  Investment  Company,  which
guaranteed certain debt securities 1ssued by IMDB, and its
subsidiary Aabar [nvestments PIS, The summaons with notice
makes unspecified claims relating to IMDB and secks
unspecified compensatory and punitive damages and other
relief against Group Ine. and a number of Group Inc’s
subsidianes, ncluding the company, Lessner, Mg and Vella,
as well as individuals (who are not current or former
employees of GS Group) previowsly associated with the
plaintiffs

On December 20, 2018, a putative securities class action
lawsuit was filed in the US. Distnict Court for the Southern
District of New York against Group Inc. and centain former
efficers of G5 Group alleging vioktions of the anti-fraud
provisions of the Exchange Act with respect to Group Inc.'s
disclosures concerming 1MDB  and  secking  unspecified
damages. The plaintiffs filed the second amended complaint on
October 28, 2019, which the defendants moved to dismiss on
January 9, 2020,

]
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G5 Group 15 cooperating with the DOJ and all other
governmental and regulatory iwestigations relating to 1MDE.
G35 Group is also engaged in discussions with certain
governmental and regulatory suthonties with respect to
potential resolution of their investigations and proceedings.
There can be no assurance that the discussions will lead o
resolution of any of those matters, Any such resolution, as well
as proceedimgs by the DO or other governmental or regulatory
authorities could result in the imposition of significant fines,
penalties arsd other sanctions against G35 Group, including
restnictions on GS Group's aclivities. Any such losses, which
have been reserved for by the ultimate parent undertaking,
Group Inc., are expected o be bome by Group Inc. With
regard to any other legal or regulatory proceedings agamst the
company related to IMDE, it s not practicable to reliably
estimate the financml impact, if any, of these procesdings on
the company.

Interest Rate Swap Antitrust Litigation. The company is
among the defendants named in a putative antitrust class action
relating to the trading of interest rate swaps, filed in November
2015 and consolidated in the U5 District Court for the
Southern District of New York. The company 15 also among
the defendants named i two antitrust actions relating to the
trading of interest rate swaps, commenced in April 2016 and
June 2018, respectively, in the U5, District Court for the
Southem Distnict of Mew York by three operators of swap
execution facilities and certain of their affiliates, These actions
have been consolidated for pretnal  proceedings.  The
complaints generally assert claims under federal antitrust law
and state common law in conmection with an alleged
conspiracy ameng the defendants to preclude exchange trading
of interest rate swaps. The complaints in the individual actions
also assert claims under state antitrust law. The complaints
seek declaratory amnd injunctive relief, as well as ireble
damages i an unspecified amount. Defendants moved to
dismiss the class and the first individual action and the district
court dismissed the state common law claims asserted by the
plainiifls in the first individual action and ctherwise limited the
state common law clum in the putative class action and the
antitrust claims in both actions to the pertod from 2013 1o
2006, On MNovember 20, 2018, the courl granted n part and
dented in part the defendants’ motion 1o demiss the second
indwidual action, dismissing the state common law claims for
unjust enfichment and tortious interference, bl denving
dismissal of the federal and state antitrust claims. On March
13, 20019, the court dened the plainuffs’ motion in the putative
class action to amend their complaint to add allegations related
to 2008-2012 conduct, but granted the motion to add hmited
allegations from 2013-2016, which the plamtiffs added in a
fourth consolidated amended complaint filed on March 22,
2019, The plaintaffs in the putative class action moved for class
certification on March 7, 2019,
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Commaodities-Related Litigation. The company 1s among
the defendants mamed in putative class actioms relating to
trading m plainum  and  palladium, filed beginning on
Movember 25, 2014 and most recently amended on May 15,
2017, in the 1.5 District Court for the Southern District of
Mew York. The amended complaint generally alleges that the
defendants violated federal antitrust laws and the Commodity
Exchange Act m connection with an alleged conspiracy to
manipulate & benchmark for physical platinum and palladium
prices and seek declaratory and igunctive relief, as well as
trehle damages in an unspecified amount. Defendants moved to
dizmizs the third comsolidated amerded complaint on July 21,
20017

The company is among the defendants in & number of putative
class and individual actions fled beginning on August 1, 2003
and comsolidated in the UL, District Court for the Southern
District of MNew York The complaimts generally allege
vialatens of federal antitrust laws and state laws in connection
with the storage of alumimum and aluminum trading. The
complaints seek declaratory, mjunctive and other equitable
relief, as well as waspecified monetary damages, ineluding
treble damages. In December 2016, the district court granted
defendants’ motions to dismiss as to all remaining claims.
Certatn plaintiffs subsequently appealed in December 2016, On
August 27, 2019, the Second Circun vacated the district court’s
dismizsals and remanded the case to district court for further

proceedings.

Regulatory Investigations and Reviews and Related
Litigation, Group Inc. and certain of its affiliates, including
the company, are subject 1o a number of other investigations
and reviews by, and in some cases have received subpoenas
and requests for documents and information from, various
povernmental and regulatosy  bodies and  self-repulatosy
organisations and liigation relating (o vanous matters relating
1o (35 Group®s businesses and operations, including:

+ The public offering process,
» Investment management and financial advisory services,
« Conflicts of interest;

« Transactions involving povemment-related hnancings and
other matters;

T
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« The offenng, auction, sales, tading and clearance of
corporate and  govemment  securities,  currencies,
commaodities and other financial products and related sales
and other communications and activities, as well as G5
Group’s supervision and confrols relating to such activities,
including compliance with applicable short sale rules,
algenthmie, high-frequency and quantitative trading, futures
trading, ophions trading, when-issued trading, transaction
reporting, technology systems and controls, securities lending
practices, trading and clearance of credn  derivative
instruments and mberest rale swaps, commodities achivilies
and metals storage, private placement practices, allocations
of and wading i secuniies, and trading activities and
communications 1 <omection with the establishment of
benchmark rates, such as currency rates;

« Compliance with the UK. Bribery Act and the FCPA;
« Hiring and compensation praclices,
= Svstem of risk management and controls; and

« Insader wrading, the potentml misuse and dissemination of
material non-public information regarding corporate and
governmental developments and the effectiveness of insider
trading controls and mformation barriers.

In addition, mvestigations, reviews and litigation involving the

company's affiliates and such aflistes’ businesses and

operations, including various matters referred to above but also
other matters, may have an impact on the company’s
businesses and operations

Note 27.
Financial Risk Management and Capital
Management

Certain disclosures in relation o the company”™s financial risk
mamgement and capital management have been presented
alongside other nsk management and regulatory information in
Fart I of this annual report and are identified as audited, where
relevant
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Mote 28,
Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial Assets and Liabilities by Category
The tables below present the camying valee of the company’s
financial assets and liakalities by category,

Finnngial Attt
Mandatority Amortived

5 in milfons il Fair vakin cd Total
As of Hovember 2010

Ferancial msruments cwned  § TERADT E] - 5 TRRAOT
Collateraised agresments. 1,588 &4, 762 156, 4%
Drtatiz . = 3,256 T3,756
Cash at bank and in hand = FrT 22,997
Total Tinancial assets 3 E7093 SE0A1S 51,040,400
Ferameial mslrumanty cwned 5 S 5 - 5 SMaTR
Colateralised agresments 146 76T 55067 2053+
Diatirs 80 B3 ERT 84,487
ash o1 bank and in hand - H& 24,355
Total Bnencial avaets 5 741,685 5144560 5 BBE,345

Financial Lisbdties
Held For  Desigrated  Amtined

£ in milions trascing  af fair value ot Total
As of Hovember 2016

Amounts Falling due within one year

Ferancial imridrumenty wold,

but o yet purchased S840 5 - % = § Ndei0

Collataraised Bnancings = EEAS 56,284 124,740
Other credions - HBEEE 4,241 #3120
Total 14,840 T3 140,525 932,500
Amaounts falling due after more than one year

Colateraised Snancings - LR - 5.7
Othar cradion = 40,351 Fiy k] &0,066
Total - [EXT 28,715 4413
Totm nancial Iabaies  STI8.640  S125,042  S160,200 51,006,003
Az of Norvember J018

Amounts Falling due within one year

Ferancial rrglruments wold,

bast ot yet purchased $5a5 00T & - 5 = & B45fAT

Coilateralised Smancings - §7,865 4318975 141840
Cthar credions = 60 7092 5600
Tatal BAEGET 106,558 131,867 [EEEDR
Amounts falling dus after more than one year

Collaterafised Snancings = 10,308 - 10,308
Other cradion = 42,35 15,858 58085
T ol - EFET 16,858 0 400

Total Ensncinl labating, 3545987 S159.100 5147808 5 B52913

In the tables above financial instruments owned included
dervative instruments designated as hedges of 318 million as
of Movember 2019 and 526 million a3 of November 2018

EDINETOOOO

OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

Fair Value Hierarchy

The far value of a financial instrument 1s the amount that
woukd be recenved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between markel participants a1 the
measurement date, Financial assets are marked to bid prices
amd firancial liabilities are marked 1o offer prices. Fair valbue
measwrements do not include transaction costs. The company
measures certain financial assets and lishilities as a portfolio
{1.e., based on its net exposure to market and/or credit resks).

UK. GAAP has a three-level hierarchy for disclosure of fair
value measurements. This hicrarchy prioritises inputs to the
valmtion techniques used to measure far value, giving the
highest priarity to level 1 inputs and the lowest priceity 1o level
3 imputs. A financial instrument’s level in the hierarchy 1s
based on the lowest level of mnput that is sigmficant 1o its fair
value measurement.

The fair value hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1. Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices inactive markets
to which the company had sccess at the measurement date for
wlentical, unrestncted assets or habilities.

Level 2. Inputs 1o valuation technigques are observable, either
directly or indirectly.

Level 3. One of more inputs to valeation technigques are
sigmficant and unobservable.

The fair values for substantially all of the company’s financial
assets and liabilities that are faar valued ona recurring basis are
based on observable prices and inputs and are classified in
levels 1 and 2 of the fair value hierarchy, Certain level 2 and
level 3 financial assets and labilites may require appropriate
vahmtion adjustments that a markel participant would regquire
to amve @t far value for factors such as counterparty and the
company's and G5 Group's credit quality, funding risk,
transfer restrictions, haquadity and bad/offer spreads. Valuation
adjustments are generally based on market evidence.
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Valuation Techniques and Significant Inputs

Cash Instruments. Cash mstruments include government
and agency obligations, corporate debt mstruments, equity
securities, and other non-denvative financial  nstruments
owned and financial instrumerts sold, but not yet purchased
Vahmtion techniques and significant inputs for each level of
the farr value herarchy include:

Level 1 Cash Instrumenis

Level | cash mstruments are valued usimg gquoted prices for
identical wnrestricted instruments in active markets. The
company defines active markets for equity instruments based
on the average daily trading volume both in abzolute terms and
relative to the market capitalisation for the mstument. The
company defines active markets for debt instruments based on
both the average daly trading volume and the number of days
with trading activity.

Level 2 Cash Instruments

Level 2 cash instruments can be venbhed to quoted prices,
recent trading activity for identical or similar instruments,
broker or dealer quotations or alternative pnicing sowrces with
reasonable levels of price ransparency. Consideration is given
tor the mature of the guotations (e.g., mdicative or firm) and the
relationship of recent market activity to the prices provided
from alternative pricing sources.

Vahmtion adjustments are typically made to level 2 cash
instruments (13 if the cash instrument 15 subject to transfer
restrictions and'or (1) for cther premiums and lhgudity
discounts that a market participant would reguire to amive at
fair value. Valustion adjustments are generally based on
market evidence.

Lavel 3 Cash Instruments

Level 3 cash mstruments have one or more sigmficant
valuation inputs that are not observable. Absent evidence to the
comrary, level 3 cash mstruments are imitially valued at
transaction price, which 15 conssdered to be the best imitial
estimate of fair value, Subsequently, the company uses ather
methodelogies to determine fair value, which vary based on the
wpe of instrument. Valuation inputs and assumplions are
changed when corroborated by substantive  observable
evidence, including values realised on sales of financial assets.

&l
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Valuation techniques of level 3 cash mstruments vary by
instrument, bat are generally based on discounted cash flow
technigques. The wvaluation techniques and the nature of
significant inputs used 1o determine the fair values of each type
of level 3 cash instrument are described below:

« Mortgages and Other Asset-Backed Loans and
Securities. Significant inputs are generally determined
basad on relative value analvses and include:

» Market yvields implied by transactions of similar or related
i

» Transaction prices in both the urderlying collateral and
mstrumenis with the same or similar underlying collateral,

« Current performance of the bormower or loan collateral and
recovery assumplions if a default oceurs; and

« Timing of expected future cash flows (duration) which, in
cerlain cases, may  incorporate the  impact of other
unebservable inpuls (... prepavment speeds).

Corporate Debt Instruments and Government and
Agency Obligations. Significanmt inpuls are generally
determined based on  relative wvalue analyses, which
incorporate compansens both o prices of credit default
swaps that reference the same or similar underlying
instrument or entity and to other debt instruments for the
game or similar issuer for which ohservable prices or broker
quatations are available. Significant inputs inclade:

-

« Miarket vields implied by transactions of similar or related
assels,

« Cumrent levels and changes in market indices, such as the
iTraes and CIEX (indices that track the performance of
corparate eredit),

» Current performance of the borrower or loan collateral and
recovery assumplions if a defaull occurs;

» Maturity and coupen profile of the mstrument; and

« Market and transaction multiples for comporate  debt
mstruments with convertibility or participation options.

« Equity Securities. Equity securilies consists of pavale
equity securities. Recent third-party completed or pending
transactions (e.g., merger proposals, tender offers, deby
restructurings) are considered to be the best evadence for any
change in fair value. When these ane not available, the
fcullnwing valuation methadologees are used, as appropriate:

« Industry multiples and public comparables;
« Transactions in similar instruments; and

+ Discounted cash flow technigues
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Derivative Instruments. Denvatives may be traded on an
exchange (exchange-traded) or they may be privately
negotiated comtracts, which are usually referred to as OTC
derivatives. Certain of the company’s OTC derivatives arne
cleared and settled through central clearing counterpariies
(OTC-cleared). while others are bilateral contracts between
two counterparties (bilateral OTC).

The company’s level 2 and level 3 derivatives are valued using
denvative pricaing models (e g, discounted cash flow models,
comrelation models, and models that incorporate option pricing
methodologies, such as Monte Carlo simulations). Price
tranmsparency of derivatives can generally be characterised by
product tvpe, as descnibed below.

« Interest Rate. In peneral, the key inputs used to value
interest rate denvatives are transparent, even for most long-
dated contracts, Interest rate swaps and options denominated
in the currencies of leading industnialised nations ane
characterised by high trading volumes and nght bid'offer
spreads. Interest rate derwvatives that reference indices, such
as an inflation index, or the shape of the vield curve (e.g.. 10-
year swap rate vs, Z-vear swap rate) are more complex, but
the key inputs are generally observable.

Credit. Price transparency for credit defaull swaps,
including both single names and baskets of credits, varies by
market and underlying reference entity or obligation. Credit
default swaps that reference indices, larpe corporates amd
major  sovereigns  generally  exhibit the most  price
transparency. For credit default swaps with other underliers,
price transparency varies based on credit rating, the cost of
bomowing the underlying reference ohligations, and the
availability of the underlying reference obligations for
delivery upon the default of the issuer. Credit default swaps
that reference loans, asset-backed secunities amd emerging
market debt mstruments tend to have less price transparency
than those that reference corporate bonds, In addition, maore
complex credit denvatives, such as those sensiive 1o the
correlation between two or more underlying reference
obligations or to secured funding spreads, generally have less
price Iransparency.

Currency. Prices for currency derivatives based on the
exchange rates of leading industnalised nations, including
those with longer tenors, are generally transparent. The
primary difference between the price transparency of
developed and emerging market currency derivatives 13 that
emerging markets tend 1o be only observable for contracts
with shorter temvors.
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« Equity. Price transparency for equity denvatives varnes by
market and underlier. Options on indices and the commaon
steck of corporates included m major equity indices exhibit
the most price transparency. Equity derivatives generally
have obaervable market prices, except for contracts with long
tenors of reference prices that differ significantly from
current market prices. More complex equaty dermvatives, such
as those sensitive to the comelation between two or more

individual stocks, generally have less price transparency,

Liquidity 15 essential to observability of all product types. 1

transaction volumes decline, previously transparent prices and
other inputs may become unchservable, Conversely, even
highly structured products may at times have trading volumes
large enowgh to provide observability of prices and other
irpus,

Levef 1 Derivatives

Level | derivatives include shom-term comtracts for [utire
delivery of secunities when the underlying security 15 a level 1
instrument, and exchange-traded derivatives if they are actively
traded and are valued at their quoted market price.

Level 2 Derivatives

Level 2 derivatives include OTC denvatives for which all
significant valuation inpuls are corroborated by market
evidence and exchange-traded derivatives that are not actively
traded and'or that are valued wsing models that calibrate o
market-clearing levels of OTC denvatives. In evaluating the
significance of a valuation imput, the company considers,
among other factors, a portfolioc’s net risk exposure to that
inpu

The selection of a particular model to value a derivative
deperdds on the contractual terms of and specific nsks inherent
in the instrument, as well as the availabilny of pricing
mformation in the market. For dervatives that trade i hgud
markets, model selection does not  inwvolve  significant
mamagement judgement because outputs of models can be
calibrated to market-clearing levels

Valuation models require a vanety of inputs, such as
contractual terms, market prices, yield curves, discount rates
(including those derived from imterest rates on collateral
receved and posted as speaified in credit suppost agreements

for collateralised derivatives), credit curves, measures of

volatility and correlations of such inputs. Significant mputs to
the valuations of level 2 derivatives can be verified to market
transactions, broker or dealer guotations or other allernative
pricing sources with reascnahle levels of price transparency.
Consideration s given to the nature of the quotations (eg.,
indicative or firm) and the relationship of recent market
activity to the prices provided from alternative pricing sources.
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Level 3 Derivatives

Level 3 derivatives are valued using models which ufilise
cbzervable level 1 andior level 2 nputs, as well as
unobservable level 3 inputs. Uncbservable imputs include
certzin comrelations, illiquid credit and secured funding
spreads, recovery rates and certain equily and interest rate
volatilities.

Subsequent 1o the initial valwtion of a level 3 denivative, the
company updates the level 1 and level 2 mputs o reflect
chservable market changes and any resulting gains and losses
are classified in level 3, Level 3 inputs are changed when
corroborated by evidence such as similar markel transactions,
thard-party pricing services and/or broker or dealer quotations
or other empirical market data. In circumstances where the
company cannol venly the model value by reference 1o market
transactions, 0 15 possible that a differem valustion model
could produce a maternally different estimate of fair value, See
below for further information about significant uncbservable
inpuls used in the valuation of level 3 dervatives.

Where there is a difference between the initial transaction price
and the fair value caleubited by imernal models, a gain or loss
15 recopmised after mitial recogmition only to the extent that it
arizes from a change n a factor (including time) that market
participants would consider in setting a price,

Valuation Adjustments

Valuation adjustments are mntegral 1o determiming the fair value
of dertvative portfolios and are used to adjust the mid-market
valuations produced by derivative pricing models to the exit
price valuation. These adjustments ncorporate  bid'afTer
spreads, the cost of ligudity, CVA and funding valuation
adjustments, which account for the credit and funding risk
inherent in the uncollateralized portion of derivative portfolios.
The company also makes funding valuation adjustments to
collateralised derivatives where the terms of the agreement do
not permit the company 1o deliver or repledge collateral
received. Market-based inputs are generally used when
calibratmg valustion adjustments 1o market-clearing levels.

In  addmion, for  derivatives that  include  sigmificant
unobservable inputs, the company makes model or exnt price
adjustments to account for the valuation uncertainty present in
the transaction,

B3
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Qther Financial Assets and Liabilities. Valuaton
techniques and sigmificant inputs of other financial assets and
linhilities include:

« Resale and Repurchase Agreements and Securities
Borrowed and Loaned. The significant inputs o the
valuation of resale and repurchase agreements and securitics
borrowed and loaned are funding spreads, the amount and
timing of expected future cash lows and interest rales.

« Debtors. Debtors measured at fair value primarily consist of
secured lending and prepaid commodity conteacts, The
sigmificant inpats 1o the valuation of such receivables are
commodity prices, mterest rates, the amount and timing of
expected future cash flows and funding spreads.

Ll

Qther Secured Fimancings. The sigmbicant inpaas to the
valuation of secured debt secunties 1ssued, other borrowings
and ntercompany loans measured @ Guor value are the
amount and timing of expected future cash flows, interest
rates, funding spreads, the fair value of the collateral
delivered by the company (which i3 determined using the
amount and uming of expected future cash Nows, market
prices, market vields and recovery assumptions) and the
frequency of additional collateral calls.

Other Creditors. The sigmficant inputs to the valuation of
ursecured other creditors measured an fair value ase the
amount and tming of expected future cash flows, interest
rates, the credit spreads of G3 Group, as well as commodity
prices in the case of prepaid commodity contracts, The inputs
wsed 1o value the embedded denvative component of hybrid
financial instruments are consistent with the inputs used to
value the company” s other derivalive instrum ents,
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Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities by Level
The table below presents, by level within the far value
hierarchy, financial assets and liabalities measured at fair value
o a recurring basis,

Significant Uncbservable Inputs Used in Level 3 Fair
Value Measurements

Cash Instruments. The company had level 3 cash
mstrument assets of $78% million as of November 2019 and
%1.08 hallion as of MNovember 2018, Level 3 cash imstrument

3 in milions Lewel Lovel 2 Lowel 3 T: A )
= o == liabilities were not material.
Financial Assets . )
T — STEGIE S 2OME 5 TEE  S10608F The table below presents the amount of level 3 cash instrument
Deivatva instrumants 13 BTGATS 4,537 GE142% assets, and ranges and weighted averages of sigmificant
Ferancial matruments owned  To,88 700,183 iaEs FRaAOT unobservable inputs used 1o value level 3 cash instrument
Colatersized agresmants - 01,598 - a1, 598 ts
— B - _ - assels.
Total Tinancial assets §TH,92% 5TOT009 5 5,03% SETD993
Level 3 Cash Insbuments Assets and

Finanial Linbiies Range of Sigrificant Uncbuervabie mputs
Amounts falling dus within ane year — (Weighted Averaga) as of Hovember
Cash instnaments 518564 5§ 5337 0§ 8§ 44050 5 in millions 2019 2018
Dhint v i | FrErU Fraprns. 1% BT830 2,758 BrO450 Mortgages and othier asset-backed loars and secunties
Feraricial mstroments soid Lovel 5 anzels 5126 1T

but not yel purchimssd 8608 ETI0NT 3014 FHAE0 Yield L% to TRE% (7.2 24%to 16.5% (6.5%)
Collateraized fnancings - BIMs 1111 63,458 Facovery rate ART% bo TEO% (B1.8%)  1500% bo 7500 (50.0%)
Gther craditors - 120 2702 8,838 Duration {years) 0.5 1 10,6 (4.3 0.5 be 134 (5.1)
Totad 18,609 A8 A% (2] 71,084 Corporate debt and g and agency obligaticns
Amounts falling dus after more than one year Livil 3 pniels 607 887
Cllsbaralved Enancings = ST - ST Yiald LE% bo 1R2% (54%)  O.7% 1o 28.2% (5.9%)
Othas cradior - e 5,413 40,351 Rucevery rate 0.0% t0 S0L5% HZA%)  0.0% 18 TEO% (51.7%)
Toisl . Sy AS.eee Duration {years) 61z 165 7.5 05t 13.225)
otal Tnancial llabafies iﬁ.ﬁ HIE!“ :‘Ii.ﬁ Ei!.ﬁ Bty $6¢ .
Wil derivativeinatrnsents 3 (B 5 0085 5 1747 § 10,035 Livel 3 asaels 0 E

Mulksplas 405 0o 11.0% (3.45) 4 0 b 19 O (5.4x)
Financial Assets In the table above:
Eash instnaments 453308 § 27378 1083 5 81868 )
TR T — 17 SOR3MS 4731 512,563 « Conwvertible debentures previowsly included within equaty
Feancial maroments cwned 53,227 535,583 5314 84128 securities  have been reclassified 1o corporate  debt
Collatoralsed agraemants = g - s instruments and government and agency  obligations.
See .. = = C res have be ted to conform to th 1
Total inancial sviets SE.047 96051505 5914 ST41.688 omparatives have been updaled to conform ko the curren
period presentation.

Financial Liabifities L .
Asnounts Talling due wilhin ofe year » Ranges rq.:arcm:m the .glgmﬁ.cant unnlm:n':lth inputs that
Cah inginsmants $42061 5 4837 0§ 12 5 4700 were used in the valuation of each tvpe of cash instrument
Diavivativn instruments I 4B5883 AT 4347
Francial neraments sod, » Weighted averages are calculated by weighting each input

but not yet purchated 42072 500,630 135 S45067 by the relative Fair valee of the cash instruments.
Coilabarml yind Enancng = 88,848 =T 87 BES
Dther eracion = 8272 2422 B4 » The ranges and weighted averages of these i:npuls are not
Tas 41972 603.850 5704 651548 representative of the appropriate inputs 1o use when
Mﬂ:‘:”““wmmﬂnm " 10308 caleulating the fair value of any one cash instrument. For
Colla 5 BNCINgS - X . v K i . iy
Othee erach ~ asips . 4708 example, the highest yield for morigages Elnc.1 other asset
Taal = 45381 750 BTEal backed loams and securities is appropriate for vahung a
Total Enancial labities S4287F  W4B.241  S12874  5705,087 specific morigage but may not be appropriate for valuing any
Hi dat R S i $12322 1888 S 14176 other mongages. Accordingly, the ranges of inpuls do net

represent uncertainty in, or possble ranges of, fair valee
measurements of level 3 cash instruments.,
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« Increases in vield or duration wsed m the valuation of level 3
cash instruments would have resulted in a lower far value
measurement, while increases in recovery mate or multiples
would have resulted in a higher fair value measurement as of
both MNovember 2019 and MNovember 2018 Due to the
distinective natere of each level 3 cash instrument, the
nterrelationshup of mputs 15 ot neces=anly uniform withan
each product type.

« Mortgapes and other asset-backed koans and securities and
corporate debt mstruments and government and agency
obligations are valued using discounted cash flows, and
equity securities are valued using market comparables amd
discounted cash flows.

« The fair valug of any one instrument may be determined
using multiple valuation techniques. For example, market
comparables and discounted cash flows may be used
together o determine fair value. Therefore, the level 3
balance encompasses both of these techniques.

Derivative Instruments. The company had net level 3
denvative instruments of $1.74 hillion as of November 2019
and 51.36 hillion as of November 2018,

The company’s net level 3 financial instruments relating 1o
commodities derivatives was 38 million as of November 2019
and 32 million as of MNovember 201% for which the range of
significant unobservable inputs has net been disclosed as the
amounts are not material.

The table below presents the amount of net level 3 dervative
instruments, and ranges, averages and medans of sigmificant
unobservable nputs used to value inberest rates, credit
currencies and equities derivative instruments.

Het Level 3 Dawtvative Instrements and
Range of Significant Unobssrmble Inputs

LiweragaMadian) as of Hovember

5 in miliong 2018 2018
Inberest rabes ¥ £hé
Cormelation A% 1o 18% (I HWER) T1% to T2% [T 2% Z%)
Wialmtility {Egad S0 1o T (H262) B4 1o 143 (BUTH)
Credit 2,344 §2,003
Credit ypreads (bpe) T 132 FRET) 2 bo 5B (141104)
Uipfront credt points 6 o B2 [BOET) 1 1o A (2220
Recovery rales 0% to 1% [2F%9%) 5% to 5% (ATHMIN)
Currencies 540 S(115)
Correlaticn 0% to 3 (FERTN) % b 3T (TR
Equities 562} S108y
Comslation (TOF% o 7% (494S5) (B3 bo SE [4THSN%)
Velnlility % to T (1R A% b BT [1TRAIN)
In the table above:

« Met dervative assets are shown as positive amounts and net
derivative liabilities are shown as negalive amounis

« Ranges represent the sigmficant unobservable mputs that
were used in the valumtion of each type of derivative,

S
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« Averages represent the anthmetic average of the inputs and
are not weighted by the relative fair value or notional of the
respective financial instruments. An average greater than the
median indicates that the majority of inputs are below the
average,

The ranges, averages and medians of these inpuls are not
representative of the appropriate inputs to use when
caleulating the fair value of any one denvative. For example,
the highest comelation for imerest mate derivatives 1s
appropriate for valuing a specific interest rate dervative but
may not be appropriate for valuing any other interest rate
derivative. Accordingly, the ranges of inputs do not represent
uncerlainly in, or possible ranges of, fair value measurements
of level 3 denvatives,

-

« Interest rates, currencies and equities derivatives are valued
using option pricing models, and credit derivatives are valued
using oplion prcing. correlation amd discounted cash flow
mexdels.

« The fair value of any one instrument may be determaned
using muluple valuation techniques. For example, oplion
pricing models and discounted cash flows models are
typically used together to determine fair value, Therefore, the
level 3 balanee encompasses both of these techniques

« Comrelation within currencies and equities includes cross-
product type comelation

Range of Significant Unobservable Inputs

The following is information abowt the ranges of significant
uncbservable inpuls wed to value the company's level 3
dervative Instruments:

« Correlation. Ranges for comelation cover a vanely of
urderliers both within ane product type {e.g. equity index
and equity single stock names) and across product types (eg.
correlation of an interest and 2 currency), as well as across
Tegions.

« Volatility. Ranpes for volatility cover numercus underhiers
across a variety of markets, maturities and strike prices. For
example, volatility of equity indices 15 generally lower than
volatility of single stecks.

- Credit spreads, upfront credit points and recovery
rates. The ranges for credit spreads, wpfromt credit points

and recovery rates cover a varely of underliers (index and
single names), regions, sectors, maturities and credit qualities
(high-vield and investment-grade) and also includes secured
funding spreads. The broad range of this population gives
nse to the width of the ranges of significant unobservable

inputs,
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Sensitivity of Fair Value Measurement to Changes in
Significant Unobservable Inpuis

The following is a description of the directional sensitivity of
the company's level 3 fair value measurements to changes i
significant unohservable inputs, in isalation, as of each penod-
enid:

» Correlation. In peneral, for comtracts where the holder
benefits from the consistent directional performance of the
underlymg assel or mdex prices (eg., nterest rates, credit
spreads, foreign exchange rates, inflation rates and equity
prices), an increase in comelation results in a higher fair
vilue measurement

« Volatility. In general, for purchased options, an increase in
volatility results in a higher fair valug measurement

+ Credit spreads, upfront credit points and recovery
rates. In general, the fair value of purchased credit
protection increases as credit spreads or upfront credit points
increase or recovery rates decrease, and the fair value of
secured funding capacity increases as secured funding
spreads increase. Credil spreads, upfront credit points and
recovery rates are strongly related to distinctive nisk factors
of the underlving reference obligations, which include
reference entity-specific factors such as keverage, volatility
and industry, market-based nsk factors, such as borrowing
costs or liquidity of the underlving reference obligation, amd
macroeconomic conditions.

Due to the distinctive nature of each of the company™s level 3
denvatives, the mterelationship of inpats 15 nol necessarily
uniform within each product type.
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QOther Financial Assets and Liabilities., Sigmificamt
unobservable inputs of other financial assets and lhabilities
include:

« Resale and Repurchase Agreements and Securities
Borrowed and Loaned. As of both MNovember 2019 and
Movember 2018, the company had no level 3 resale
agreements, securities borrowed or securities loaned. As of
both Mevember 2019 and MNovember 2018, level 3 repurchase
agreements were nol material.

Debtors. As of both November 2019 and Navember 2018,
the company had no level 3 debtors.

Other Secured Financings. As of both Movember 2019
and November 2018, the significam uncbservable inputs used
to value level 3 other secured fnancmgs are incorporated
it the demvative mstruments and cash  instruments
disclosures related 1o uncbservable nputs. See “Cash
Instruments” and “Dervative Instruments” above,

Other Creditors. As of both MNovember 2019 and
Movenber 2018, the significant unobservable mputs used to
value level 3 other creditors are mcorporated o the
derivative instruments and cash  instruments  disclosures
related to unobservable inputs. See “Cash Instruments™ and
“Diervative Instruments™ above.

-

Ll

Transfers Between Level 1 and Level 2 of the Fair
Value Hierarchy

Duning the period ended November 2019 and penod ended
Movember 2018, there were no sigrificant transfers between
level 1 and level 2 financial assets and habilities measured at
fiair value on a recurring basis.
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Fair Value Financial Assets and Liabilities Valued
Using Techniques That Incorporate Uncbservable
Inputs

The fair value of financial assets and labilities may be
determined in whole or part using a valuation technique based
on assumplions that are not supported by prices from
ohservable current market transactions in the same mstrument
or based on available observable market data and changing
these assumptions will change the resultant estimate of fair
valug, The potential impact of wsing reasomable possible
alternative assumplions for the valuations, including sigruficant
unobservable inputs, has been quantified as approximately
5205 million as of November 201% and 5356 million as of
Movember 2018, for favourable changes, and 3237 million as
of Movember 2019 and 3240 million as of Movember 2018, for
unfavourable changes, In determining reasorably  possible
alternative unfavourable assumplions, a Jdetmbed business and
position level review has been performed to identify and
quantify instances where potential uncertainty exists. This has
taken into account the posiions’ fair value as compared o the
range of available market information. As of November 2019
and Movember 2018, the impact for favourable changes was
primarily driven by changes in the assumplions around secured
funding spreads and valuation adjustments n equity and fixed
income derwvatives, and the impact for unfavourable changes
wias prmarily droven by changes in the assumplions around
secured funding spreads, volatility and comelation imputs.

The table below presents the amounts nod recogmsed n the
profit and loss account relating to the difference between the
fair value of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss at initial recognition (the transaction price) and
the amounis determined at initil recognition using  the
valuation techniques (day 1 P&L).

Period Ended Movember
5 i owlans H19 2am8
Eagnning balance 5148 5181
Mo iracsactions a0 &2
Apnounts recognised in te prodit and loss szcount
during the peiod i) (107}
Ending balance 5153 5 148

BT
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Level 3 Rollforward

The table below presents a summary of the changes in fair
value for all level 3 financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value on a recurring basis.

Pariod Ended Novemba:

5 i mallang 2me 2e
Tt Ainancial assots
Bginning halance 5 53W 5 4044
Gansifioses) T [
Purchases 658 By
Sales 245 [P
Sattiemonts {1,039) (820
Transfors info level 3 445 BT
Transfors out of leved 3 4N ]
Ending balmce § 5325 3 5314
Tota inancial Banilines
Baginang balance SUIZRTY  SOI0AO0T
Gainsifiosses) {1,745} ang
Purchases T 15
Sales (3] (424
lmsuances ({8 7,75
Sattiemonts 8,710 5038
Transfors into level 3 855 (Bdi)
Tranales out of evel 3 1,218 41
Ending balance S1ZI06) 512874
In the table above:

« Financial assets relate 1o financial instruments owned.

o IF & financial asset or financial liability was transferred to
level 3 duning a reporting pericd, its entire gain or loss for the
peniod 15 classified m level 3. For level 3 fnancial assels,
increases are shown as positive amounts, while decreases are
shown as negative amounts. For level 3 financial liabilities,
increases are shown as negative amounts, while decreases are
shown as positive amounts.

« Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are
recogmised at the beginning of the reporting perniod m which
they ocour. Accordingly, the tables do not include gains or
lesses for level 3 financial asseis and labilities that were
transferred out of level 3 prior to the end of the period.

« Level 3 [mancial assets and liabilities are frequently
economically hedged with level 1 and level 2 financial assets
and liabilities. Accordingly, level 3 gains or losses that are
reported for a particular class of financml asset or financial
liabality can be partially offse1 by gains or bosses attnbutable
to level 1 or level 2 in the same class of financial asset or
fimancial bablity or gaims or losses attnbutable to level 1,
lewel 2 or level 3 in a different class of fnancial asset or
financial liability. As a result, gains or losses included in the
level 3 rollforward do not necessarily represent the overall
impact on the company’s results of operations, liquidity ar
capital resources.

« The net gains on level 3 Onancal assets for the penod ended
Movember 2019 and period ended November 2008 are
reported in “Met revenues” in the profit and boss account.
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« The et losses on level 3 Gnancial habalities of $1.75 hallion
for the period ended November 2019 included losses of 51.63
hillion reported in et revenues” in the profit and loss
account and losses of %120 mullion reported in “Debt
valmtion adpsiment” in the statements of comprehensive
incame. The net gains on level 3 financial liabalities of $468
million for the period ended November 2018 included gains
of $33% million reported in “Met revenues™ in the profit and
loss account and gains of 3129 million reported in “Debt
valution adjpstiment” in the statements of comprehensive
IO

The table below disagpregates, by the balance sheet line items,
the mformation for fnancial labilities included i the

summary table above.
Perind Endad Movember

§ in evilions e vl ]
Financial instruments soid, bul not yel purchased

Baginning balance: 2 mE &2 281)
Gainu'losue) 1515 [275)
Pufchied T 18
Sales (L] [424)
Saltiements 545 655
TraePers inbo leval 3 () [244)
Traesbers et af hesl 3 My 158
Ending balance £3,0m4) 512, 304)
Collateralidad Nnandngs

Bagnning balance § (594 5 (842
Gainslsasa) L B2
hsunnces (E] {33
Eaitamants 1 17
TrarsPers el af hesl 3 19 -
“Emding balance H1,111) 3 (88)

credilors

Baginning balance 5(9,553) ST, B4}
Gaintilorie) 595 a5
Wwuancet {6,589 {7.343)
Saltemanty 064 5158
Trarrfers inta hivel 3 1358) (387}
Trarsfers out of kewed 3 50 253
Ending balance 8, 181) (5,563

Transfers Between Level 2 and Level 3 of the Fair
Value Hierarchy

Transfers between level 2 and level 3 generally occur due to
changes in the transparency of level 3 inputs, A lack of market
evidence leads w reduced transparency, whereas an incérease in
the avalability of market evidence leads to an increase in

IFATEPATEncY,

B

EDINETOOOO

OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

Financial Assets.

Period Ended November 2019

Transfers into level 3 financial instruments owned primanly
reflected transfers of certain credit dervatives from level 2,
principally due to reduced transparency of certain credit spread
inpiits and transfers of certan equaty denvatives from level 2,
principally due 1o reduced transparency of certan volanlity and

correlation inputs.

Tranmsfers out of level 3 financial instruments owned primanly
reflected transfers of certain credit derivatives to level 2,
principally due to increased transparency of certain credit
spread inputs, transfers of cerain equity derivatives to level 2,
principally due to increased transparency of certain volatliy
and correlation inputs, and transfers of certain cash instruments
to level 2, prmcipally due o increased transparency of certain
yield inputs.

Period Ended November 2018

Transfers into level 3 financial mstruments owned primanly
reflected transfers of certain credit dertvatives from level 2,
principally due to reduced transparency of certamn credit spread
inpadts, transfers of cerain cash instruments from level 2,
principally due to reduced transparency of certain vield imputs
and transfers of certain cumency derivatives from lewel 2,
principally dwe reduced transparency of certam modelling
ASSUMPLIONS.

Transfers out of level 3 financial instruments owned primanly
reflected transfers of certain equity dervatives to level 2,
principally due to increased transparency of certain volatility
and carrelation inpants, and transfers of certain cash instruments
to level 2, prmcipally due to increased transparency of cenain
yield inputs.

Financial Liabilities.

Period Ended November 2019

Tranafers into level 3 financial instruments sold, but not vet
purchased primanly reflected transfers of certain credit
derivatives  from  level 2, prncipally due to  reduced
transparency of certain credit spread inputs and tramsfers of
centain equity derivatives from level 2. principally due w
reduced transparency of certain volatility and correlation
inputs. Transfers into level 3 other creditors primarily reflected
transfers of certain hybrid fnancial instrumemts from level 2,
principally due 1o reduced transparency of certain volatility and
correlation inpuls,
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Transfers out of level 3 financial instruments sold, bat not vet
purchased primarly reflected transfers of certain credit
denivatives to level 2, principally dug 1o increased transparency
of certain credit spread inputs and transfers of certain equity
denvatives to level 2, pnincipally due to increased transparency
of certain volatility and correlation inputs. Transfers out of
level 3 other creditors primarily reflected trnsfers of certain
hybrid financial instruments to level 2, prneipally due to
increased transparency of certain volatility and correlation
IngLs,

Period Ended November 2018

Transfers imto level 3 Gnancial instruments sold, but net vet
purchased pnimanly reflected transfers of ¢enain currency
denvatives from level 2, principally due reduced transparency
of certmn modelling assumptions. Tramsfers o level 3 other
creditors pnmarily reflected  transfers of cetain  hybnd
financial instruments from level 2, principally due reduced
trarsparency of certain volatility and comrelation mputs,

Tranzfers out of level 3 financial instruments sold, but not vet
purchased primanly reflected wansfers of certain equity
denvatives 1o level 2, principally due 1o increased transparency
of certamn volatulity and comrelaton inputs. Transfers out of
level 3 other creditors primanily reflected transfers of certamn
hvbeid financial instruments to level 2, principally due to
increased transparency of certain volatility and correlation
s,

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities Mot
Measured at Fair Value

The company had current financial assets of 316042 billon as
of Movember 2019 and $144.66 hillion as of November 2018
that are not measured at fair value. Given that substantially all
of these balances are short-term in nature, their carrying values
in the balance sheet are a reasonable approximation of fair
value,

The company had current Gnancial labalities of $140.53 hllion
as of Movember 2019 and $131.97 hillion as of November
2018 that are not measured ab fair value. Given the short-term
nature of these istruments, their carrving values inthe balance
sheet are a reasonable approximation of fair value The
company had financial liabilities that are dee after maore than
one vear of 328,72 hillion as of November 2019 and 315,86
billion as of November 2018 that are not measured af far value
which predominantly relate to long-term intercompany loans
The interest rates of these loans ane variable in natere and
approximate prevailing market inlerest rates for instrumenis
with similar terms and characteristics. As such, their camying
values in the balance sheet are a reasomable approximation of
fair value
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Maturity of Financial Liabilities

The table below presents a summary of the cash flows of the
company's financial habilitiez by contractual maturity except
for financial instruments sold, but not vet purchased, which are
classified as trading/on demand,

#s of Nosmember
5 i mralleng o] 21e
Teadngion derrand ETE 652,378
Loss Hsan 1 month 08,100 112,088
1 =3 months 30,811 26,661
I monthis = 1 year xear 47 85
i =S years %8, 080 50,385
Grsater than & years 17,8 20,483
Total SLOTEAID 510516

The tables below present an analysis of the cash flows of the
company's financial labilities by contractual maturity except
for Gnancial instruments sold, but not vel purchased, which are
classified as trading/on demand.

oOoOooodn

Financisl
inurumenty
sobd, but not  Collaieralsed Oher
5 in millons yol purchased francings  cneditors Tatal
A5 of November 3019
Amiounts falling due within one year
Tradnglon demand 574,540 FABME § M43 5§ 35913
Luss fean 1 month = 404 1 T
1= 3 moati = 5,350 LTI fokre
3 months = 1 year - 18,652 14,03 30,61
1 = fyears - - = -
Graater than & ysars = = = =
Total §714,040 ST aHT  § e
Ampants falling due alter more than ong year
Tradingfon demand § - ¥ - 3 - 3§ -
Less tusn 1 month - - L ol
1-3monde = 1 e 180
3 maiie = 1 year = = b w00
i = fynars - R 54,552 55,560
Grpater than 5 years - 1730 16,105 A7, 844
Total § - 5 LME S TREM 5§ iTAT4
Tatal - on balance
shest 714,840 F130.902  F16543%F  §1,000.175
Contingant and
forward starting
eollatoralkisad Oparating
5 in malliong BOIMTTL lwaies Other Total
A3 of Hovember 2019
Tradngion demand § - 5 - % I7s 5 2,750
Loss tan 1 month 8,553 2 = 58, 255
-3 mont 1385 3 1 2400
3 maanth = 1 year 2,258 12 k- 2,308
1 =Eysart 458 ] - 00
Graaber than & ysars - 4 4
Talal = off Balance
sheet § 03,292 § 46 5 2506 5 80,044

B
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Firnansial
nstrumsnts
#old, bt it Colatécaliiad Othae
5 e owlens ot purchased financings  creditons Tkl
s of Hovember 2018
Amounts Falling due within one year
Tradinglan denand 845 o0 T % afofe % &Bbie £ S8DOTE
Less than 1 month = S.me 1,852 51,668
1 =3 months = nme 278 26657
3 manghi — 1 year - 22,974 2338 46,388
1 =5 years - - - -
Graator than 5 yoars - - - -
Total SEAE GET 131,846 5 S6.858 To4.652
Asnounts Taling due afler more Man one year
Tradngycn demand 5 - 5 - § - -
Laas than 1 moeth - i Bl 1]
1 =3 months = - 162 1682
I monthe =1 year - = B0 1]
1 =8 years = 8,006 42,148 £0.178
Greater than § yeamn = 2.2 18,198 200477
Total — 5 - 510908 56147 5 7175
Total = on balance
e 848 ol T S182184 S8 508 £ BlEaal
Contingsnt and
forward starfng
B n -
§ in milfons agreETBE lemiat Othaer Total
g of Novermber JO18
Trading'on demand % = k] = % 2288 5§ 2
Lews than 1 mosth B0.X32 T - 80,339
1 =3 months 140 14 - 2
3 enonthy — 1 year - & - L]
1 =16 yoars - "3 1 ki
Grester than § years = & - &
Tetal —off balance
et § 60530 F 2 0§ 2400 3 &1
Inthe tables above:

« Cash lows by contractum] maturity include interest that will
accrue on financial liabilities.

« Financial Labilties, with the exeeption of those that are held
for trading or designated at fair value through profit or loss,
are disclosed at their undiscounted cash flows, The fair
values of financial liabilities held for trading and firmncial
lisbilities designated at fair valee through profil or loss have
been disclosed as this is consistent with the values used in the
liguadity risk management of these instruments.

« Ligudity risk on denvatives is mitigated through master
netting agreements and cash collateral arrangements,
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Collateral Received and Pledged

The company receives cash and secunties (eg, govemment
and agency obligations, corporate debt secunties, equity
securities) as collateral, primarily in connection with resale
agreements, securnities borrowed, derivative transactions and
customer margin loans. The company obtains cash and
segunties as collateral on an uplront or contingent basis for
derivative instruments and collateralised agreements to reduce

its credit exposure to individual counterparties.

In many cases, the company is permitted to deliver or repledge
financial instruments received as collateral when entering into
repaschose agreements and secunities lemding agreements,
primarily in connection with secured chent Anancing activity.
The company i1s also permitted to deliver or repledge these
financial instruments n connmection with  other  secured
financings, collateralising derivative transactions and meeting
company or customer settlement requirements.

The table below presents fnancml instruments receved as
collateral that were available to be delivered or repledged, and
that were delivered or repledged by the company

Ag ol Noamba
§ in mrallians T = 2018
Collsteral avalable 1o ke delfivieed or repledged SABEABD [Ty
Collsterl that was delivieed o regledged 19,742 428,161

The company alzo pledges certain financial instruments owned
in connection with repurchase agreements, securities lending
agreements and other secured financings to counterparties who
may or may not have the night to deliver or repledge.

The table below presemts information about assets pledged.

A of Moreambsad

S in milang 2010 2016
Financial instrummests ownid pledged b countepartios that:
Had th right 1c delroie of repledge Brpa5 S20E50

Diel vt v thee #ight 1o diloir of riplisdge RL072 30177

The company has received cash collateral of 35871 billion as
of Movember 2019 and 35410 billion as of November 2013
and posted cash collateral of $48.83 hillion as of Movemnber
2019 and 344.597 billion as of November 2018, Amounts
received and posted are mainly in respect of [financial
mstruments owned and Onancial mstruments sold, bl not yet

purchased.

212/375

oOoOooodn



GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UNLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

In addition to repurchase agreements and securities lending
trarsactions, the company funds certain assets through the use
of other secured financings and pledges financial instruments
as collateral m these tramsactions. These other secured
financings consist of habilities related to special purpose
entities, ransfers of financial assets that are accounted for as
financings rather than sales and other structured financing
armangements, Other secured financings include armangements
that are nom-recourse,

Hedge Accounting

The company designates certain interest rate swaps as fair
value hedges that are used 1o manage the inlerest rale exposure
of certain Oxed-rate unsecured long-term and short-term debt
These interest rate swaps hedge changes i far value
attnbutable 1o the relevamt benchmark interest rate (eg.,
LIBOR), effectively convertmg fixed-rate obligations into
floating-rate obligations,

The company applies a statstical method that utlises
regression analysis when assessing the effectivencss of its fair
value hedging relationships in achieving offsetting changes in
the fair values of the hedging instrument and the risk being
hedged (1e., interest rate msk). An interest rate swap is
corsidered highly effective in offsetting changes in fair value
attributable to changes in the hedged risk when the regression
analysis results in a coefficient of determination of 80% or
greater and a slope between 80%% and 125%. Possible sources
of ineffectiveness on these hedges incluede:

+ Differences in timing of cash flows between the hedged item
and hedging instrument.

« Differences in discounting between the hedged item and the
hedging instrument, as cash collateralised derivatives are
discounted using Overmight Indexed Swap discoumt curves,
which are not consistently applied to the hedged item.

« Counterparty eredit risk impacting fair value movements on
uncollaterahised interest rate swaps but not the underlving
hedged item.

For quahfying far value hedges, gains or losses on derivatives
and the change in far value of the hedged item attributable to
the hedged risk are included in met revenses. When a derivative
is no longer designated as a hedge, any remaining difference
between the carrying value and par value of the hedged tem is
amortised over the remaining life of the hedged item using the
effective interest method.

|
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The table below presents the notional of hedging instruments
by contractual maturity date,

As ol Novamber
§ in mallong 2018 2008
Lokt tHuan 1 month i - ¥ -
1 =3 monis ] -
3 maniie - 1 year L] g
1 =Gysars 125 14
Graaber than 5 ysars 2,30 2,738
Totn S0 5,

The average fixed rate of the company’s hedging instruments
was |,25% for the period ended November 2019 and 1,19%% for
the period ended November 2018,

The table below presents  information  about  hedging
instruments, which are classified in derivative instruments,
A ol Narebiribi

% it el 2018 28

Aanet camying value I‘I-H 3‘2_\3

LigkidRy carrying valis - 5 -

The table below presemts the carrving value of the hedped
fems that are currently designated in a hedging relationship
and  the related cumulative  hedeing adjustment
(increase/{decrease)) from current and prior  hedging
relationshaps included in such carrving values

Curnulat|ve

Camying hedging

5 i mullions value adjustment
As of November 2019

Lini d ghed-biem b ) § 3 5 -

Unsecured long-term bomowings 52,841 5133
£ ol Hovember 2010

Ly | shor-teem b ") i 3 -

Unsacunsd long-tenm borowings $2.502 5 28

The table below presents the gains/{losses) from interest rate
derivatives accounted for as hedges, the related hedged
borrowings and the hedge inctfectivencss on these denivatives,
recogmised in net revenues,

Pariod Ended November

% i rafbons E‘D'I:_i 2018
Interest rate hadges 5108 18
Hadged boirowings 1105 {22}
Hadge inafocivendss 5 - 5 05
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UNLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Unconsolidated Structured Entities

The company has interests in structured entities that it does not
comtrol (uncorsolidated structured entities), which primarily
includes: senior and subordmated debt, denvatives and
guasantees.

Structured entities generally Ninance the purchase of assets by
issuing debt securities that are either collateralised by or
indexed to the assets held by the structured entity. The debt
securities 1ssued by a structured entity may include tranches of
varying levels of subordination. The company’s involvement
with structured entities primanily includes securitisation of
financial assats.

In certain instances, the company provides guarantees,
including denvative guarantees, 1o unconselidated structuged
entities or holders of interests i uneonseldated structiured
entities.

The table below presents a summary of the unconsohdated
structured entities in which the company holds mterests.

Ax of Mowsmber
5 in mvlhons 201% ma
Agnpts in wnchred enbbies 55,563 56,467
Carrying vales of interests - sssets $ J0d § a8
Carying valse of imerests - Eabiities 20 5 05
LRI PO bO boes 1,787 SAES
In the table above:

« The carrving values of the company™s interests are ineluded
in the balance sheet in “Financial instruments owned™ or
“Financial instrum ents sold, but not yet purchased™.

+ The company”s maxinmum exposure 10 kss 15 mainly a result
of derivatives, commitments and guarantees, for which the
meaximum exposure bo loss 1z the notional amownt, which
does not represent anticipated losses and also has not been
reduced by unrealized losses already recorded. As a result,
the maximum exposure to loss exceeds habilities recorded
for derivatives, comm iments and guarantees.

Transferred Assets

Assets Continued to be Recognised in Full, During the
pentod, the company transferred certam financial assets where
the transfers faled to meet the derccogrution cniternia, as
comatned in IFRS 9, and as a result of which the company
continues to recognise these assets in full inthe balance sheet.
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The company transfers assets owned o counterparties in the
ordinary course of business to collateralise repurchase
agreements and other secunties lending transactions, In these
transactions the transferred assets continue to be recognised by
the company for accounting purposes because the transactions
require the financial instruments 1o be repurchased at maturty
of the agreement and the company remains exposed to the
price, credit and interest rate nisk of these instruments. When
the company receives cash proceeds from the transfer of the
assel, a financial labiliy s recogrised in respect of the
consileration  recewved and recorded 1 “Collateralised
financings”. When the company receives non cash collateral
(i the form of secunties) mo lability 15 imtally recogmsed. IF
collateral recenved 15 subsequently sold, the obligation to retumn
the collateral is recognised as a liability in “Financial
irstrements sold, but pot vet purchased”

In addition to repurchase agreements and secumities lending
agreements, the company obtaing funding through the wse of
other arrangements that fal 10 meet the derecognitlion criteria.
For example, sales of secunties with related dervatives, such
as total retum =waps, through which the company retains
substantially all of the risk and reward of the transferred assets.
A fmancial hability 15 recognised in such cases for the
proceads received.

Other financial assets transferred that continue to be recognised
on balance sheet for accounting purposes relate to pledges of
securities as collateral, primarily for denivative Fansaclions.
The oblgations under such derivatives are recorded in
“Financal instruments sold, but not yet purchased”.

The table below presents [inancial asseis which have been
transferred but which remain on balance sheet for accounting

purposes.

A of Movember
$ i mallons 208 2018
“Menny markat nstumesty 5 2 5 -
Goweenmant and agency okl gations 276 22,951
Mertgage and olfer aavet-Backed loans
e pheurting ur =
Coeporate deld insbaumants 9,180 7318
Equity securities 32453 20,460
Totnl S, 08 550,727
In the table above:

« The carrying amount of the associated financial habalities
generally approsimate the carrying amount of the assets
transferred.

« Convertible debentures previowsly incleded within equaty
securities  have been  reclassified to  corporate  debt

nstruments. Comparatiyes have been updated to conform to
the current period presentation.
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UNLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Derecognised Assets With Ongoing Exposure. The
company has continuing imvolvement in the form of dervative
trarsactions and guarantees with certain  unconsolidated
structured entities to which the company had transferred
financial assets. These denvatives may be credit-linked to the
assel transferred and result in the company retaining specific
risks in the transferred asset or require the company to make
pavments to the structured entity to compensate losses on the
asset if certain contingent events occur

In addition, the company transters financial assets to
securitisation vehicles. The company generally receives cash in
exchange for the transferred assets bul may have continuing
invalyement with the transferred assets, including ownershap of
beneficial interests in the secuntised financial assets, primarily
i the form of debt imstrumemts. The company may also
purchase semor or subordinated  secunities  1sswed by
securitisation vehicles in connection with secondary market-
making activities

Where the company’s continuing involvement in transferred
assets i through denvatives or guarantees, the maxamum
exposire 10 loss is the notional amounts of the derivative of
puarantee. For retamed or purchased interests i securitised
assets, the company’s risk of loss 1= mited to the fair value of
these interests. In all cases these retained interests are carred at
fair value.

The company accounts for assets pending transfer at fair value
and therefore does not typacally recognise significant gains or
losses upon the transfer of assets. The company does not have
comtinuing invalvement that could require the company 1o
repurchase derecognised financial asseis
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The tables below present mformation about the company's

exposwre through continuing involvement and the gains or
losses related to those ransactions

Macdmum
Carryng Aapdiadid
§ i mallang ameunt o kit
Aa of Movgebee 19
Ansels
Cash intrumsnis 1 § 45
Darrative intruments ) 6873
Financial instruments owned ] Faa
Tols EED IR
“Labilities
Darivatives instruments. e 5145
Financial instrumeets sold, but not yet purchased (] M5
Tals S (=TT
A5 of Wovermber 2018
Assels
Cash insrurments 5 - 5 -
Darivativs instrumsnts L) 8Oz
Financial infrursaty ownid &3 B0
Tetel 3E3 802
Liabdiices
Darratives instrumsnts 3 (1 111
“Financial inaerumsets o, Bl not yat puechased [} [EE]
Total 5 (1 g
ncomed!  Cuenulsbee
[#xpensa) incoma
5 i aliang i Ehi pais (g
As of Hovesnber 2019
Assels
Cath intrursnis £1 §133
Darhatios nstrumsnts BE 189
Financial instruments cwned [2] frF]
Talal ) [=FF]
“Dabilities
Derrvatives instumaents 33 5
Financisl instrumseats soid, but nat yet purchased 3 [T]
Crher creditors - L]
Tota [E]) S (2
5 ol Hoverber 2018
Addta
Cash instrumrssats 5= 5132
Cartvatie nsumsms (k1] 12
Financisl ingtrurseats owned (3 253
Tetel 303 3252
Liabdliges
Darbeal it insirumspaty 5 - 5{35)
_leniidinﬂmrl'mm sodd, but not yet parchased - {35
] - i1
Total 3= TR

215/375

oOoOooodn



GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UNLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 23,
Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The tables below present the company’s fnancil assets and
liabilities that are subject to enforceable netting agreements
and offsetting. Amounts are only offsel in the balance sheet
when the company currently has a legally enforceables right to
set-off the recognised amounts and an intention either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and sentle the liabality
simultanecusly. In the tables below:

« Gross amounts exclude the effects of both counterparty
netting and collateral, and therelore are not representative of
the company” s cCONOMIC ¢XPOSUTE.

+ Amounis not offset in the balance sheet include counterparty
netting (1Le., the netting of financial assets and habilities for
8 given counterparty when a legal right of set-off ests
under an enforceable netting agreement), and cash and
security collateral received and posted under enforceable
credit support agreements, that do not meet the cntena for
offsetting under UK. GAAP
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« Where the company has received or posted collateral under
credit support agreements, but has not yet determined
whether such  agreements are enforceable, the related
collateral has ot been included in the amounts not offsst in
the balance sheet,

Gross amounts included derivative assets of 34.65 billion and
derivative habilities of 34.96 hillion as of November 2019,
and derivative assets of $6.15 billion and derivative liabalities
of 85,10 billion as of November 2018, which are not subject
to an enforceable netting agreement or are subject to a netting
agreement that the company has not vet determined 1o be
enforceable

Ll

Substantially all resale agreements and secunities borowed
within collateralised agreements and repuschase agreements
and securities loaned within collateralised financings are
subject to enforceable netting agreements as of November
2019 and November 2018

As of November 2019

Amounts ned offsel In the balance sheet

oOoOooodn

Amounis Nt amsount
cffsst iRt presenied in

Gross balance e balance  Counterparty Cash  Gecurity Hel
$ in miliens amounts shaet shaat netting  collsteral  collateral amount
“Einancial Bssers
Cash insinsments $ IBTIZ S (12EM) §  S47E 5 o(e0E % - 5 hasm 5 a2
T 0zAN (10979 BaL42s (10681} @038 (11,280 19,125
Ferancial msraments cwned 1,118 [FEELET] BAT. B0 (811,780} [TIREEN] [ENEE ] 10445
Collataraised agraements 16,018 {60,583) 158,348 (65, 240} - (ER,TI5 2,373
Debiors B4 (23,008 $RATR 4,180} 39,238 {10,156 5018
Firanicial a5sets SUDFBCE L0 BNIoICeakin Neting dgroements T A0E (OEZE3)  60a.148 621,228y (78,035 (1145 ;
Fenamcial assets not sy in o0 for ceabile AR BEEHTBME 137, 255 - VIF R0 - - - 137,258
Total fmancial assets $1.14B601  5(108,283) 51040408 S(BR1,Z28)  5{70,558)  S(114.627) 5168095
Einpncla LinbiiRigs
Amounts falling dus within one year
Cash inttnaments 5 14723 5 LM 5 ikl 5 - 5 - & - 5 0
Derivatve instruments &R1,774 {11,284) B0 A0 (B10020) {38,198 (R 188 13,198
Farancial Pslroments soid bl not yet purchased SE3,187 (12,302 670,585 [610,820)  {38,188) [E.188) 13801
Colatersised Snancings 203,558 (RS 408 RRET ] (65,270} 404) (51,060 1,042
Gthae crachions 67,018 {2.585) 83,373 WA @097 - 20,182
Taal #5467 100,513 BE4,160 [BE1,007)  {7H,09%) 50,2561 TR
Amounts falling due afler mane than one year
Collataralived Snancings 0,639 (B, 086) 3503 [LEF] 1500 (24571 509
Other craditors 3,000 [ 1086 158y ELY] - 1,20
Tetal — 12,729 [ERELT] [XIT] [LELT] 1578 [FXEH] 1,748
Fanancial kaCalbes subct (o enirCoabi noting age 3 7 A0 {108,283 559,119 [BE1.228)  (79,398) 61,708 36,025
Fendacinl kablilas nol wulgist ba el sl AalnG &F i 147,803 = T 20D = = = 147 803
Total Tevarcial ok e $1.115,205  S(108,280  §1,008.002 S(BE1, 08 S70,555 560708 S1BAAIE

g
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UNLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

s off Movember 2018
Amncunts not offest in the balands shaet

Amounts  Melamount
wlfesd inthe  predented n

Gran Hup Bl c P Cath Sacurity Mt
5 in milfons amounts shiest shaet nesing collateral collateral amount
Cash insinaments § 10880 $ e § 54T (1565 F @Y 5 (a4aly 5 34T
Diwivatvn insbrumaents £23,203 (10,7205 512 563 [ 268 34, B (10,785 1, B
Feramcial Pralraments cwned 1163 4127 516,006 {48858 (3a82E (A2 18081
Colateralzsd 8gesmants 270,218 (66, 881} 208,334 (83,337} - (116,825} 3472
Diadtsled 4 68,213 {15,727 53,488 (5450 (32439 (7415} B 162
Frangial anuets subjedt to enh iohy roptling sy w1501 (106,735 74,606 (BT T (6T 368 (130457 RS
Fnancial aviets not subject 1o an e okable neSng agreementt 111,450 - 111,450 - - - 111,450
Tolal frencial ausebs LR S(106.738 % BES G T SOET EE)  S[1MEALT) 5141 8
Amnounts Malling due wilhin one year
Cath inginamaniy 5 T 5 (®m 5§ Fil 5 = 5 - 5 - 5 i |
Diwivatv e insbrumants 508,108 {10,720 258388 [448.3485 30,815 (5,867} 13,328
Feranicial imstruments sold, but not yet purchased 00 038 11 825 A03 400 (LT 30,815 [EXTH] 13,378
Colateralived Snancngs 218104 2.6 136480 (S 130 {1181 =.TED 1,387
Othar credion 66,003 [N Lrdery] 8650 3, a4 - 20,735
Tolal THEO25 EE 120 I3 51
Amourts [aling due afler more than one year
Goilaberaised francings 14,456 [7.106) 7.551 [245) 28 (6,070} 608
Othaée £raditon 3,264 (1.725 1,538 (371 - - 1,168
Total 17,720 CHESON 8,830 ({301 {42 (603 1,778
Feranicial kabaties mitsect b enkeoeabin neting agreemants CIFRIT LR ) TOEo0 i Y ; 1 ;
Francial lnblities nol sublect to enforceable netling agresments 146 803 - 146, 83 - - - 18, 90
Tolal brarcial habdtins 5 GSOB4E  5(106.735 5 BECO1  S530.B46) 5067385 S(62710y  SIB4.1B0
HNote 30,

Non-Adjusting Post Balance Sheet Events

Since the balance sheet date there has been a global outbreak
of a novel strain of coronavinus (COVID-19) which is causing
widespread disruption o financial markets and normal patterns
of business activity across the world, including the UK. In
view of s curmently evolving nature, it is not cumently
possible 1o estimate the financial impact of COVID-19 on the
company, See “Future Outlook™ and “Principal Risks and
Uncertainties Unforeseen or Catastrophic Events™ in the
strategic repent for funther information.

a5
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UNLIMITED COMPANY)
Directors’ Report

The directors present therr report and the audited financial
statements for the period ended Movember 2019,

Intreduction

In accordance with section 414A of the Companies Act 2006,
the directors have prepared a strategic report, which is included
i Part [ of this annual report and which contains a review of
the company’s businesses and a descripiion of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the company. The directors have
chosen to disclose the company’s risk management objectives
and policies, including exposures 1o market nsk, credit risk and
liquidity nisk, and the future outleok of the company in the
strategic report in accordance with section 414C(11) of the
Companies Act 2006

Dividends
The directors declared and pard an interim dividend of 51.00
billion an Movember 26, 2009

The directors declared and paid an interim dividend of 52.50
bilhiom on November 30, 2018,

Exchange Rate

The British pound/11. 5. dollar exchange rate was £/51.2932 as
of Movember 2019 and £/51.2743 as of November 20138 The
average rate for the periods was £51,2748 for November 2019
and £/51.3347 for November 2013,

Employment of Disabled Persons

Applications for emplovment by disabled persons are fully and
fairly considered with regard to the aptitudes and abiliies of
exch applicant. Efforts are made to enable any emplavees who
become disabled during emplovment to continue their caresrs
within G5 Group. Training, career development and promotion
of dizabled persons are, to the extent possible, identical to that
of other emplovees who are not disabled.

Charitable Contributions

The company made donations to charity of 328 million for the
period ended November 2019 and 522 million for the period
ended Movember 2018, This included domations of $26 millien
for the period ended November 2019 ard 520 million for the
penod ended November 2018 1o Goldman Sachs Gives (UK, a
registered chanty, for general chartable purposes in England
and Wales.

Employee Invalvement

It is company policy that there should be effective
communication with all emplevees who, subject to practical
and commercial considerations, should be made aware of
financial and economic factars affecting the performance of the
company and consulied on and involved in decisions that affect
therr current jobs or future prospects. Emplovees share in
performance-based incentive schemes.
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Statement on Corporate Governance with Reference
to Internal Contrel over Financial Reperting

Management of the company is resporsible for establishing
ard mamtuining  adequate internal control over fnancial
reporting. The company™s mtemal control over financial
reporiing 15 designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding  the reliability of [nancial reporting and  the
preparation of the company's financial statements for external
reporting purposes in accordance with UK. GAAP,

The company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes  policies and procedures that  pertain  to the
mainterence of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
ard [uirly reflect tansactions and dispositions of assets;
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary Lo permit preparation of firancial statemeris in
accordance with UK. GAAP, and that receipts and
expenditures  are being made only in accordance  with
authorisations of management ard the directors of the
company, and provide reasomable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the company’s financial statements.

Disclosure of Information to Auditors
In the case of each of the persoms who are directors of the
company al the date when thas report was approved:

« S0 far as each of the directors 15 aware, there 15 no relevant
audit information of which the company’s aueditors are
urnaware, and

« Each of the directors has taken all the steps that they ought 1o
have taken as a director to make themselves aware of any
relevant awdit information and 10 establish that the

company”s auditors are aware of that information.

Independent Auditors

Frior to 1 October 2007, the company passed an elective
resolution under section 386 of the Comparies Act 1985 o
dispense  with  the anmual  reappointment  of  avditors,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP will, accordingly, continee in
office as auditors of the company pursuant to section 483%2) of
the Companies Act 2006 and paragraph 44 of Schedule 3 o the
Companies Act 2006 (Commencement Mo, 3 Consequential
Amendment, Transittonal Provisions and Savings) Order 2007,

The GSI Board Audit Commitice has approved the
appointment of Mazars LLP as the company s statutory auditor
for the financial period commencing on or after December 1,
2020
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GOLOMAN SACHS INTERHAT IOMAL (UNLIMITED SOMPANY)
Directors’ Report

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the strategic report,
the directors® report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations. Company law requires the
directors to prepare accounts for cach financial peried which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company
as ol the end of the financial peried and of the profit or los of
the company for that peried. In preparing those accounts, the
directors are required to:

s Select suitable accounting policics and then apply them
consistently;

« Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
pruadent;

« State whether applicable accounting standards have been
followed subject to awy material departurcs disclosed and
explained in the inancial statements; and

» Prepare the accounts on the going concem basis unless it is
mappropriate to presume tat the company will comtinue in
business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any lime
the financial position of the company and to enable them to
ensure that the accounts comply with the Companies Act 2006
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assels of the
company and, hence, for taking reasomoble steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulantics.

The directors are responsible for the mainienance and integrity
of the company’s financial statements on the Goldman Sachs
wihsile. Legizlation in the UK. governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may  differ  from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

The directors confirm 1o the best of teir knowledge:

« The financial statements, prepared in accordance with
applicable set of accounting standards, prve a true and fair
view of the assets, labilities, financial position and profit or
loss of the company; and

» The stratepie report meludes a Gnr review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the
cotnpany, togetler with a deseription of the principal risks
and uncertainties that the company faces.

43
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Directors
The directors of the company who served throughout the
period and 1o the date of this report, except where noted. wene:

Harmn

4 M, O, Bamrosa, Charman
5. A Boyle

C. Cripps {appaintes on Apri 1, 2018)

A. J. Grodde, Chied sxetutive offcer

Lord Grabiner OC

H. Harman

. 5. Kby restignad DecemBer 31, 20408
D, W, MeDomogh

T.L Mller DBE

E. E. Secher
M. 0. Winksiman

Mo director had, at the period end, any interest reguiring note
herein.

Date of Authorisation of |ssue
The hnancial statements were authorised for ssue by the
Board of Darectors on March 11, 2020,

Al w@m&

By order of the board
D. W. McDonegh
Director

March 23, 2020
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2018 11 30
@
2018 11 2017 12
4, 5 $ 7,866 \ 854,326 $ 6,508 \ 706,834
6 (4,607) (500, 366) (4,119) (447, 365)
3,259 353,960 2,389 259,469
9 @37 (25,741) (301) (32,692)
10 8 869 3 326
3,030 329,088 2,001 227,104
12 (832) (90, 364) (534) (57,998)
$ 2,198 \ 238,725 $ 1,557 \ 169,106
@)
2018 11 2017 12
$ 2,198 \ 238,725 $ 1,557 \ 169,106
10 61 6,625 198 21,505
19 465 50,504 (259) (28,130)
17 @37 (14,880) 16 1,738
1 109 2 217
( ; /¢ ) 390 42,358 (43) (4,670)
$ 2,588 \ 281,083 $ 1,514 \ 164,436
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(€))
2018 11 2017 12
13 $ 315 \ 34,212 $ 210 \ 22,808
(2018 11 2017 12
20.550 14 594,129 64,528,351 640,264 69,539,073
24,178 )
15 203,334 22,084,106 204,820 22,245,500
16 64,793 7,037,168 74,052 8,042,788
24 24,396 2,649,650 20,727 2,251,159
886,652 96,299,274 939,863 102,078,520
14 (545,987)  (59,299,648) (589,922) (64,071,428)
18 (141,840)  (15,405,242) (158,069) (17,167,874)
19 (97,151)  (10,551,570) (103,584)  (11,250,258)
(784,978)  (85,256,461) (851,575) (92,489,561)
101,674 11,042,813 88,288 9,588,960
101,989 11,077,025 88,498 9,611,768
18 (10,305) (1,119,226) (17,378)  (1,887,425)
19 (58,095) (6,309,698) (39,730)  (4,315,075)
(68,400) (7.428,924) (57,108)  (6,202,500)
20 (78) (8,472) (10) (1,086)
33,511 3,639,630 31,380 3,408,182
10 406 44,096 321 34,864
$33,917 \ 3,683,725 $ 31,701 \ 3,443,046
21 $ 582 \ 63,211 $ 582 \ 63,211
4,864 528,279 4,864 528,279
( ) - - 17 1,846
20,070 2,179,803 20,727 2,251,159
101 10,970 (289) (31,388)
22 8,300 901,463 5,800 629,938
$33,917 \ 3,683,725 $ 31,701\ 3,443,046
2019 15
D.W.
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()

2018 11 2017 12
$ 582 \ 63,211 $ 582 \ 63,211
17 1,846 - -
an (1,846) - -
582 63,211 582 63,211
4,864 528,279 4,864 528,279
4,864 528,279 4,864 528,279

( )

17 1,846 17 1,846
an (1,846) - -
- - 17 1,846
20,727 2,251,159 22,316 2,423,741
IFRS 15 ( ) ) © (=43 ) B
2,198 238,725 1,557 169,106
17 1,846 _ _
23 (2,500) (271,525) (3,000) (325,830)
Tier ( ) 22 (367) (39,860) (146) (15,857)
405 43,987 405 43,987
(405) (43,987) (405) (43,987)
20,070 2,179,803 20,727 2,251,159
(289) (31,388) (246) (26,718)
/C ) 390 42,358 (43) (4,670)
101 10,970 (289) (31,388)
5,800 629,938 - -
Tier 22 2,500 271,525 5,800 629,938
8,300 901,463 5,800 629,938

$33,917 \3,683,725 $31,701 \3,443,046

222/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

OooooOodd
®)

2018 11 2017 12
25 $5,980 \ 649,488 $3,928 \ 426,620
1 109 1 109
(252) (27,370) (406) (44,096)
5,729 622,227 3,523 382,633
@172) (18,681) (109) (11,838)
172) (18,681) (109) (11,838)
Tier 22 2,500 271,525 5,800 629,938
23 (2,500) (271,525) (3,000) (325,830)
- - (3,581) (388,932)
Tier 22 (503) (54,631) (201) (21,831)
19 (54) (5,865) (587) (63,754)
(557) (60,496) (1,569) (170, 409)
5,000 543,050 1,845 200,385
20,654 2,243,231 16,881 1,833,445
) / (1,411) (153,249) 1,928 209,400
24 $24,243 \ 2,633,032 $20,654  \ 2,243,231

2018 11

UK 17.3 17.3
21
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Q)
)
GSG UK
6SG UK
( 10-Q
GS
200
EU ( CRR

GSG UK 2018 11
www . goldmansachs.com/disclosures/

2013 ( )

GSG UK 2018 11
www . goldmansachs.com/disclosures/

( FRS 101

) 2006
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133
UK ( GSG UK
EC4A 2BB 133
GSG UK
)
10-K )
GS )
10282
www . goldmansachs.com/shareholders/
GSG UK
GSG UK
2019 12 31
FRS 101
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101
IFRS

IFRS 15
119 (a) ©)
1AS
1AS
IAS 16
1AS
1AS
IAS 24
IAS 24

IFRS

IFRS

IFRS

IFRS

IFRS

EU
45 (b) 46
120 127 129
38
79 (@)(iv)
73 (e)
10 (F) 16
17
2018
DVA )
IAS 39
2018
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OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

OooooOodd
( IFRS ) FRS
52
110 113 (@) 114 115 118
40 A D
30 31
GS 100%
2006 402
IFRS ( IFRS )
2016 IFRS
( IAS 39 )
IFRS
18.2
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IFRS
( )
2018
$640,264 $ - $640,264
138,545 66,275 204,820
653 72,725 73,378
- 20,727 20,727
$779,462 $159,727 $939,189
IAS 39
( )
2018
$640,264 $ - $ - $640,264
- 140,360 64,460 204,820
- 653 72,725 73,378
- - 20,727 20,727
$640,264 $141,013 $157,912 $939,189
IFRS
IFRS IAS 39
( ECL )
12
IFRS 2018 IFRS
IFRS 15 2018 IFRS 15
( )
2018
2018
( )
2018 11 609
DVA
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2018

GS

DVA

DVA
S1 20087410

2018

2018

IFRS 15

40

IFRS 15
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(

19

IFRS 15
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IAS 38

2018 IFRS

( ) IFRS
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2018 IFRS

IFRS
IFRS

ECL 12

ECL

ECL

30

GS

ECL

ECL

ECL

ECL

2018 IAS 39

234/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

28

IAS 39

235/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

28

236/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

237/375

ooooooo
20 26
10
(
)
IFRS 2018
IAS 39
2018
( 2018 11 2017 12
$ 5,014 $ 3,248
1,566 1,227
6,580 4,475
(3,212) (2,192)
(3,563) (2,087)
(6,775) (4,279)
/( (195) 196
4,416 7,230
1,875 (2,442)
1,770 1,530
- (6)
8,061 6,312
$ 7,866 $ 6,508
2018 11
24.1 2017 12 11.6



(

33.7

2017 12

)

(GCLA

(

)

2017 12

(

)

952

238/375

19.6

14.5

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

2018 11

)



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

2018 11 2017 12
$ 693 $ 514
871 662
$ 1,564 $ 1,176
FICC $ 2,203 $ 2,117
2,812 2,365
$ 5,015 $ 4,482
$ 494 $ 318
$ 793 $ 532
$ 7,866 $ 6,508
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( ) 2018 11 2017 12
$ 1,564 $ 1,176
(1.,067) (748)
$ 497 $ 428
$ 5,015 $ 4,482
(2,901) (2,627)
$ 2,114 $ 1,855
$ 7,866 $ 6,508
(4,607) (4,119)
$ 3,259 $ 2,389
2018 11
12.9 2017 12 850
2018
11 801 2017 12 575
2018 11
184 2017 12
144
2018 11 22
2017 12 25
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) 2018 11 2017 12
( EMEA ) $5,674 $4,897
1,352 1,185
840 426
$7,866 $6,508
) 2018 11 2017 12
$1,945 $2,395
/ 205 56
767 702
81 80
112 97
58 39
157 156
203 193
/ 210 189
869 212
$4,607 $4,119
2017 12 57
2017 12
2018 11
2017 12 72
IFRS 15
/
/
) 2018 11 2017 12
$ 460 $ 345
(255) (289)
/ 205 56
341 292
(131) (103)
/ 210 189
$ 415 $ 245

241/375
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( ) 2018 11 2017 12
$6.1 $4.1
4.2 2.0
1.5 0.1
0.1 0.2
0.1 0.1
5.9 2.4
$12.0 $ 6.5
2018 11 2017 12
2018 11
2.2
2018 11
GS
GS
( ) 2018 11 2017 12
754 714
1,495 1,449
193 149
546 563
1,079 1,451
4,067 4,326
2018 11 4,210 2017 12
2017 12 2017 12
( ) 2018 11 2017 12
$1,659 $2,049
237 278
45 67
4 1
$1,945 $2,395
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362
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2018 11 184
2017 12 144
2017 12 57
( ) 2018 11 2017 12
$5 $6
$5 $6
( ) 2018 11 2017 12
$3 $3
2006
SI 2008 /410
2018 11
1.6 2018 11
2.4
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10

2008
31

UK

31

96%

2017 12

2018 11 30

%

301
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19

65

2016
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oooooog
2018 11 2017 12
3.14 2.40
RPI 3.50 3.35
cPI 2.50 2.35
(1996 11 30 ) 3.30 3.15
(1996 11 30 ) 2.50 2.35
(2009 ) 2.50 2.35
2018 11 2017 12
65
23.5 23.6
24.7 24.7
65
24.8 25.0
26.2 26.2
2018 11 S1
2002 CMI 2017 1.25%
) 2018 11 2017 12
$ 4 $ -
- 1
® ®
® @
/( ) 368 (184)
/C ) (@) 5
/C ) (408) 48
(14 (67)
(61) (198)
$ (65) $ (200)

245/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

( )
2018 11
$2,663 $(2,342) $ 321
- O] ®
58 (50) 8
/( ) (368) - (368)
C ) - 7 7
C ) - 408 408
- 14 14
a7 - 47
35 Y -
/() (144) 117 @n
1 30 $2,222 $(1,816) $ 406
2017 12
$2,159 $(2,106) $53
- () @
59 (56) 3
/( ) 184 - 184
/C ) - ® ®
C ) - (48) (48)
- 67 67
50 - 50
12) 12 -
/C ) 223 (205) 18
12 31 $2,663 $(2,342) $ 321
50% ( ) 50%
)
( )
2018 11
$1,126 $ - $1,126
497 - 497
- 395 395
108 - 108
- 9 96
$1,731 $491 $2,222
2017 12
$1,042 $ - $1,042
638 - 638
- 615 615
133 - 133
172 63 235
$1,985 $678 $2,663
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2018 11
0.25% $(138) (7.6) $ 151 8.3
0.25% 109 6.0 az2n (7.0)
75 4.1 (75) 4.1)
2017 12
0.25% $(192) 8.2) $ 209 8.9
0.25% 171 7.3 172) (7.3)
104 4.4 (103) “.49)
2016 31
2015 12 31
66.3 2016 12 31 73.3
2017 40.0 (50 )
2018 33.3 47 ) 2018 12
2019
2018 11 12 37
2018 11 33
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11
RSU
2018 ( 2018 SIP )
2018 2018 SIP 2018  SIP
2015
2018 11
2017 12 405
2018  SIP RSU
RSU
(
)
10
2018 11 2008
( ) ( )« )
2018 11
$ 75.00 $ 89.99 249,813 $78.78 0.08
249,813 $78.78 0.08
2017 12
$ 75.00 $ 89.99 625,556 $78.78 1.00
625,556 $78.78 1.00
2018 11 253.52

2017 12

239.34
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27.0%(2017 12

12
( ) 2018 11 2017 12
$430 $267
37 (25)
182 147
649 389
180 119
3 26
183 145
$832 $534
2018 11
27.25%)
( ) 2018 11 2017 12
$ 3,030 $ 2,001
27.0%(2017 12 27.25%
¢ D 818 570
6 8
32) 2
- (50)
4 5
@ @
40 1
$ 832 $ 534
13
( ) 2018 11 2017 12
$ 20 $ 27
294 182
1 1
$315 $210

249/375

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO

OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

oOoOooodn

(
54 10 64
1 - 1
@ - @
11 30 51 10 61
31 6 37
) 6 - 6
@ - (@)
11 30 35 41
2018 11 $16 $4 $20
2017 12 $23 $4 $27
(
113 101 214
/ 89 82 171
(¢X)) - an
11 30 191 183 374
32 - 32
) 52 - 52
(O] - (O]
11 30 80 - 80
2018 11 $111 $183 $294
2017 12 $ 81 $101 $182
2018 11 2017 12
2018 11 2017 12
2018 11
( )
( 100% 250
( )
( KY1-1104 PO Box 309 )
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14

28
2018 11 2017 12
$ 428 $ 434
33,516 21,095
485 641
16,482 15,535
30,567 35,944
88 406
81,566 74,055
294,986 356,901
28,463 30,158
111,791 108,600
12,644 11,222
64,679 59,328
512,563 566,209
$594,129 $640,264
2018 11 2017 12
$ 21,700 $ 13,055
3,486 2,406
22,412 18,335
2 3
47,600 33,799
287,789 348,980
26,080 28,106
111,863 110,955
12,758 11,218
59,897 56,864
498,387 556,123
$545,987 $589,922
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15
) 2018 11 2017 12
$127,474 $122,539
75,860 82,281
$203,334 $204,820
2018 11 1,297.5
1,195.1
2018 11 11.6
12 522
16
) 2018 11 2017 12
/ $52,084 $62,988
12,301 10,386
« 17 256 575
29 34
33 69
$64,793 $74,052
/
2018 11 2017 12 44
2018 11 134 2017 12 95
/
2018 11 338 2017 12
2018 11 644.9 2017 12
2018 11 306 2017 12
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20

733.8
674
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17
( ) 2018 11 2017 12
$431 $577
(95) 72)
(68) (41)
12 11
$256 $575
( ) 2018 11 2017 12
$ 577 $ 672
(146) (95)
$ 431 $ 577
$ (72 $ (13)
(©)) ®
) (50)
$ (95) $ (72)
$ (41 $ -
@n 1)
$ (68) $ (41)
$ 111 $ 45
(123) 66
$ (12) $ 111
IFRS 15
$ - $ -
IFRS 15 1 -
@ -
$ - $ -
$ 575 $ 704
IFRS 15 1 -
« 12 ) (183) (145)
(137) 16
$ 256 $ 575
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18
) 2018 11 2017 12
$ 79,521 $ 98,892
56,122 56,038
2,672 1,253
3,525 1,886
$141,840 $158,069
$ 5,709 $ 11,226
221 2,063
261 405
4,108 3,684
$ 10,305 $ 17,378
$152,145 $175,447
74 2017 12 83
22.1 2017 12 13.0
2023 2050
2018 11
1,203.6
959.0 2017 12 1,164.0

254/375
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988.0

2018 11

2018 11

2018 11
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19
) 2018 11 2017 12
$ 29,229 $ 27,544
/ 53,647 57,675
12,465 16,210
418 702
127 66
338 301
927 1,086
$ 97,151 $103,584
$ 57,461 $ 38,924
- 44
575 697
59 65
$ 58,095 $ 39,730
$155,246 $143,314
2018 11 966.9
1,032.2 2018 11 465
367
2018 11 2017 12
) 2018 11 2017 12
$21,232 $20,276
892 779
22,124 21,055
32,453 14,920
5,377 5,377
1,539 1,800
39,369 22,097
$61,493 $43,152
$ 164 $ -
153 73
6,483 5,329
305 1,087
7,105 6,489
6 170
17,854 16,411
232 246
18,092 16,827
$25,197 $23,316
$86,690 $66,468

255/375
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ooooooo
2018 11
109.7 2017 12 94.6 2018 11
2023 2057
2018
11 2024 2028 10.3
2017 12 2023 2027 12 22 12.1
GS
DVA /( )
( ) 2018 11 2017 12
DVA ( ) $465 $(259)
DVA /( )
( ) 2018 11 2017 12
DVA ( ) $54 $(411)
GS
( PRA ) ( )
PRA
2018 11 2017 12 53.8 2024 12 26 2025
2017 35.8
2018 11
54 237 183
2017 12 587
301 286
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ooooooo
20
( ) 2018
$10
68
11 30 $78
IAS 37
21
( ) ( )
2018 581,964,161 $582
17,300,000 17
(17,300,000) an
2018 11 30 581,964,161 $582
2018 10 GSG UK 17.3
17.3 17.3
17.3
22
Tier ( AT )8,300
83.0 GSG UK
2017 8.55% AT 5,800 2018 11
8.67% AT 2,500
AT
GSG UK CET % AT
2018 11 20 AT 503
2018 11 367
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ooooodo
2017 11 20 AT 201
2017 12 146
23
GSG UK 2018 11 30 4.30 25.0
GSG UK 2017 27 0.86 500 2017 28
4.30 25.0
24
) 2018 11 2017 12
$24,396 $20,727
( 19 ) (153) (73)
$24,243 $20,654
2018 11 34.4 2017
12 32.0
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25

( ) 2018 11 2017 12
$ 3,030 $ 2,001
( 13 ) 58 39
9 —
¢ 10 ) (O) @
/() 1,432 (1,938)
249 574
IFRS15 o -
68 10
( ) 237 301
5,072 1,075
46,135 22,681
/C ) 1,486 (20,220)
/C_ ) 8,944 (4,505)
56,565 (2,044)
(43,935) (23,989)
C ) (23,302) 27,259
11,627 1,677
(55,610) 4,947
( 10 ) “n (50)
$ 5,980 $ 3,928

2018 11 67.6
2017 12 40.2 2018 11
63.6 2017 12 45.9 2017 12
14.5
26
( ) 2018 11 2017 12
$60,530 $58,756
27,155 20,511
2,400 3,691
$90,085 $82,958
2018 11 231.3
2017 12 511.3
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( )
( ) 2018 11 2017 12
$ 82 $ 89
113 177
6 5
$201 $271
2018 11
21 2017 12 36
(
)
20
( MDB ) GS
MDB
65 MDB
2018 11 ( DOJ ) GS
GS
FCPA
FCPA
2018 28
FCPA
MDB GS MDB
GS
GS

GS
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220

GS
2018 12 17 () 65
600
GS 2018 11 MDB  GS
2019 19 GS
MDB
2018 11 21 MDB
MDB
(GS
2018 12 20 GS
GS DOJ
GS
2015 11
2016 2018
2017 20

28
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GS
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2016 2018 30
2018 10 26
2018 11 20

2017

2017 11

2014 11 25

2017 15

2017 21

GS

2008

GS

FCPA
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27
(
)
28
( )
2018 11
$594,129 $ - $594,129
146,767 56,567 203,334
790 63,697 64,487
- 24,396 24,396
$741,686 $144,660 $886,346
( )
2017 12
$640,264 $ - $ - $640,264
- 140,360 64,460 204,820
- 653 72,725 73,378
- - 20,727 20,727
$640,264 $141,013 $157,912 $939,189
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( )

2018 11
$545,987 $ - $ - $545,087
- 97,865 43,975 141,840
- 8,694 87,992 96,686
545,987 106,559 131,967 784,513
- 10,305 - 10,305
- 42,236 15,859 58,095
- 52,541 15,859 68,400
$545,987 $159,100 $147,826 $852,913

2017 12
$589,922 $ - $ — $589,922
- 113,947 44,122 158,069
- 7,784 95,433 103,217
589,922 121,731 139,555 851,208
- 17,378 - 17,378
- 21,046 18,684 39,730
- 38,424 18,684 57,108
$589,922 $160,155 $158,239 $908,316

2018 11 IFRS 2017 12 IAS 39
2018 11 26
2017 12 38
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( )
2018 11
$53,205  $27,278  $ 1,083 $ 81,566
17 508,315 4,231 512,563
53,222 535,503 5,314 594,129
- 146,767 - 146,767
- 790 - 790
$53,222  $683,150  $ 5,314  $741,686
$42,051 $ 4,637 $§ 12 $ 47,600
21 495,993 2,373 498,387
42,972 500,630 2,385 545,087
- 96,948 917 97,865
- 6,272 2,422 8,694
42,972 603,850 5,724 652,546
- 10,286 19 10,305
- 35,105 7,131 42,236
- 45,391 7,150 52,541
$42,972  $649,241  $12,874  $705,087
$ (4 $12,322 $1,858 $ 14,176
2017 12
$51,047 $ 22,437 $ 571  $ 74,055
5 562,731 3,473 566,209
51,052 585,168 4,044 640,264
- 140,360 - 140,360
- 653 - 653
$51,052  $726,181  $ 4,044  $781,277
$30,201 $ 3,588 $ 10  $ 33,799
22 553,830 2,211 556,123
30,223 557,418 2,281 589,922
- 113,314 633 113,947
- 5,896 1,888 7,784
30,223 676,628 4,802 711,653
- 17,369 9 17,378
- 15,050 5,996 21,046
- 32,419 6,005 38,424
$30,223  $709,047  $10,807  $750,077
$ (17) $ 8,901  $1,202 $ 10,086
2018 11 10.8 2017 12
571
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( )
( ) 2018 11 2017 12
$171 $144
2.4%  16.5%(6.5%) 2.3%  19.4%(6.9%)
19.0%  75.0%(50.0%) 37.9%  89.0%(76.9%)
() 0.5 13.4(5.1) 0.7  14.0(4.2)
$841 $365
0.7%  10.5%(5.2%) 3.6%  13.9%(7.1%)
0.0%  78.0h(51.8%) 0.0%  74.0%(44.5%)
() 0.5 13.2(2.6) 0.5 5.4(2.3)
$71 $62
4.1 11.0 (5.4 ) 3.0 3.0 (3.0 )
2018 11 2017 12
2018 11
2017 12 12.0
2018 11
2017 12
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Oooooooo
( / )
) 2018 11 2017 12
$76 $51
7%  THQT2W/TH) 7% 9SH(BTH/BTH)
(bps) 64  143(84/78) 75 138(107/107)
$2,003 $1,794
28%  BA%(61%/60%)
(bps) 2 589(141/104) 505(87/56)
1 46(2/22) 55(36/53)
25%  ASW(3TW/A0%) 2% 73%(70M/73%)
$(115) $(110)
% S2%(IBW/IS%)  10%  33%(22%/21%)
$(108) $(533)
(63)%  9BM(ATW/S3K) (36)%  94%(53%/65%)
% 8I%(L7%/13%) % 63%(20%/20%)
2018 11
) (
)
( )
( )
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2018 11 2017 12
(
)
2018 11
2017 12
2018 11 2017 12
2018 11 2017 12
2018 11 2017 12
2018 11 2017 12

2018 11 2017 12
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11 356 2017 12 259
240 2017 12 230
2018 11 2017 12
( )
) 2018 11 2017 12
$161 $149
92 92
(107) (80)
$146 $161
) 2018 11 2017 12
$ 4,044 $ 5,152
C ) 688 594
647 383
(223) (520)
(620) (1,223)
974 188
(196) (530)
$ 5,314 $ 4,044
$ (10,807) $ (9,628)
¢ ) 468 (1,439)
16 6
(8,159) (5,285)
5,838 4,483
(641) (39)
411 1,095
$ (12,874) $(10,807)
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2018 11 2017 12
2018 11 468
339 129
2017 12 14.4
13.4 100
2018 11 2017 12

$ (2,281) $ (2,228)
/( @75) (653)
16 6
424 (237)
665 465
(244) (18)
158 384
$ (2,385) $ (2,281)
$ (642) $  (536)
/( 82 (26)
(393) 147)
17 67
$ (936) $  (642)
$ (7.884) $(6,864)
/( 661 (760)
(7.342) (4,901)
5,156 3,951
397) (21)
253 711
$ (9,553) $ (7,884)
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ooooood
2018 11
2017 12
2018 11 1,446.6 2017 12
1,579.1 2018 11 1,319.7 2017 12
1,395.6
2018 11 2017 12
158.6 186.8
( )
( ) 2018 11 2017 12
/ $662,378 $762,281
112,088 91,555
26,951 20,888
47,289 39,779
50,389 41,071
20,483 18,396
$919,578 $973,970
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oooooog
( / )
( )
2018 11
/ $545,987 $ 45,078  $ 69,014  $660,079
- 50,016 1,652 51,668
- 23,778 2,799 26,577
- 22,974 23,394 46,368
545,987 $141,846 $ 96,859  $784,692
/ $ - $ - $ - s -
- 1 80 81
- - 162 162
- - 860 860
- 8,026 42,149 50,175
- 2,281 18,196 20,477
- $ 10,308 $ 61,447 $ 71,755
$545,987 $152,154  $158,306  $856,447
( )
2018 11
/ $ - 3 - 0§ 2,299 $ 2,299
60,332 7 - 60,339
198 14 - 212
- 61 - 61
- 113 101 214
- 6 - 6
$60,530 $ 201 $ 2,400 $ 63,131
( )
2017 12
/ $589,922 $ 91,724  $76,361  $758,007
- 30,915 2,768 33,683
- 19,306 1,186 20,492

- 16,134 23,139 39,273

$589,922 $158,079  $103,454  $851,455

/ $ - $ - $ - 3 -
- - 2 2

- - 72 72

- - 438 438

- 15,999 24,895 40,894
- 1,379 17,012 18,391

$ - $ 17,378  $ 42,419 $ 59,797

$589,922 $175,457  $145,873  $911,252
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( )
2017 12
/ $ 882 $ - $ 3,392 $ 4,274
57,863 7 - 57,870
10 15 299 324
1 67 - 68
- 177 - 177
- 5 - 5
$ 58,756 $ 271 $ 3,691 $ 62,718
( )

( 2018 11 2017 12
$484,249 $491,634
$429,161 $444,650

( 2018 11 2017 12
$20,550 $24,178
$30,177 $23,358
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ooooooo
2018 11 541.0 2017 12 591.0
2018 11 449.7 2017 12 500.7
( LIBOR)
( )
80%
80% 125%
(
OIS ) OIS
( ) 2018 11
$ —
93
14
2,728
$2,835
2018 11 1.19%
( ) 2018 11 2017 12
$ 26 $ 38
$ - $ -
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))
2018 11
$ 8 $ -
$2,582 $28
/C )
2018 11 2017 12
$ 16 $(35)
@2 16
$ (6) $(19)
(
2018 11 2017 12
$6,467 $7,643
$ 419 $ 538
$ (6) $ (34
$3,816 $4,119
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IFRS

2018 11 2017 12
$22,951 $14,629
6,434 5,766
21,342 27,141
$50,727 $47,536
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(
2018 11
$ - $ -
63 802
63 802
$ 63 $ 802
$ @ $ 111
[ 111
$ $111
2017 12
$ 10 $ 21
85 902
95 923
$ 95 $ 923
$ (2 $ 112
D) 112
$ (2 $ 112
( /C ) /C )
2018 11
$ - $ 132
@) 121
@) 253
$ @) $ 253
$ - $ (35)
- (35)
- (€))
$ - $ (36)
2017 12
$ 1 $ 132
1 124
2 256
$ 2 $ 256
$ - $ (35)
- (3%)
- @
$ - $ (36)
29
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ooooood
2018 11
61.5
51.0 2017 12 56.9
62.7
2018 11 2017 12
2018 11
)
$ 18,880 $ (13,407) $ 5,473 $ (1,595) $ (43) $ (3.448) $ 387
523,283 (10,720) 512,563  (448,264)  (34,886)  (10,769) 18,644
542,163 (24,127) 518,036  (449,859)  (34,929)  (14,217) 19,031
270,215 (66,881) 203,334 (83,337) - (116,825) 3,172
69,213 @15,727) 53,486 (5,450)  (32,439) (7,415) 8,182
881,591  (106,735) 774,856  (538,646)  (67,368)  (138,457) 30,385
111,490 - 111,490 - - - 111,490
$ 993,081 $(106,735) $886,346 $(538,646) $(67,368) $(138,457) $141,875
$730 $ (09) $ 21 % - 3 - 8 - $ =2
509,108 (10,720) 498,388  (448,348)  (30,815) (5,867) 13,358
509,838 (11,429) 498,409  (448,348)  (30,815) (5,867) 13,379
219,104 (62,614) 136,490 (83,130) (1,181)  (50,782) 1,397
66,083 (3.862) 62,221 (6,552)  (34,944) - 20,725
795,025 (97,905) 697,120  (538,030)  (66,940)  (56,649) 35,501
14,456 (7.105) 7,351 (245) (428) (6,070) 608
3,264 (,725) 1,539 @71) - - 1,168
17,720 (8,830) 8,890 (616) (428) (6,070) 1,776
812,745  (106,735) 706,010  (538,646)  (67,368)  (62,719) 37,277
146,903 - 146,903 - - - 146,903
$ 959,648  $(106,735) $852,913 $(538,646) $(67,368) $ (62,719)  $184,180
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2017 12

( )

$ 17,333 $(13,570) $ 3,763 $  (523) $ (368) $ (2,230) $ 642

580,749 (14,540) 566,209  (496,655)  (37,222)  (12,206) 20,126

598,082 (28,110) 569,972  (497,178)  (37,590)  (14,436) 20,768

267,424 (62,604) 204,820 (83,213) - (117,657) 3,950

68,567 (9,013) 59,554 (5.803)  (36,896) (7.673) 9,182

934,073 (99,727) 834,346  (586,194)  (74,486)  (139,766) 33,900

104,843 - 104,843 - - - 104,843

$1,038,916  $(99,727) $939,189  $(586,194)  $(74,486) $(139,766) $138,743

$ 768 $ (718) $ 50 $ - 3 - % - 8§ 50

570,661 (14,538) 556,123  (496,609)  (35,821) (6,833) 16,860

571,429 (15,256) 556,173  (496,609)  (35,821) (6,833) 16,910

227,069 (71,560) 155,509 (81,610) (440)  (70,660) 2,799

70,730 (3,482) 67,248 (6,250)  (37,699) - 23,299

869,228 (90,298) 778,930  (584,469)  (73,960)  (77,493) 43,008

22,294 (7,553) 14,741 (1,646) (446)  (11,679) 970

3,720 (1,876) 1,844 (79) (80) - 1,685

26,014 (9,429) 16,585 (1,725) (526)  (11,679) 2,655

895,242 (99,727) 795,515  (586,194)  (74,486)  (89,172) 45,663

112,801 - 112,801 - - - 112,801

$1,008,043  $(99,727) $908,316  $(586,194)  $(74,486)  $(89,172)  $158,464

30
2019 21 7,643,885 GSG UK 44.48
340,000,000 332,356,115
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2018 11
2006 414A
2006 414C(11)
2018 11 30 25.0
2017 27 500 2017 28 25.0
2018 11 1.2743 2017 12
1.3524 2018 11 1.3347 2017 12
1.3020
GS
2018 11 22 2017 12 25
2018 11 20 2017 12 22
2019 21 UK
7,643,885  44.48 340,000,000

332,356,115
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2006

2007 10 1985
2006 487(2) 2007
GSI 2016
17
J.M.D.
S.A. 2018 20
C. 2019 15
I. 2018 20
R.J.
QC
N.
S.S 2018 12 31
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44

2020

2006



D.W.
T.L. OBE 2018 7 31
K. 2018 31 2018 11 15
E.E. 2018 31
M.0.

2019 15
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATICHAL (UMLIMITED COMPANY}
Profit and Loss Account

Paricd BEnded

Havamibsar December
5 if) fmilioE Hali i“l.'l1_B AT
Met revenues 4,5 § 7,868 6308
Administrative expenses G (4,607} (4.118)
Qperating profit 3,258 2,389
Interest payakle and similar expensas o (237) (301)
Het finance income 10 ] 3
Profit before taxation 3,030 2081
Tax on profit 12 {832) (534)
Profit for the financial period § 2188 5 1,857
Net revenues and operating proft of the « o are demed from o ing opsrations in the curment and prior perods.
Statements of Comprehensive Income

Pariod Bnded

Howvember December
& i RGNS Haote 2111_3 2T
Prafit Tor the financial period §2198 51557
Other comprehensive incame
Iterms that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Actuarml profit relating to the: pengion scheme 10 B1 158
Debt valuation adjustment 19 ABE (258)
WKL cheferned tax atbributabie (o the components of other comprehensive income i7 {137) 16
UK. curnent tax attributablie fo the components of other comprehensi'e intoma 1 2
Other comprehensive incomef{loss) for the financlal pariod, net of tax 380 {43)
Total comprehensive income for the financial period § 2,588 51514

The accompanying notes ane an integral part of Sese francial stetements,

49
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GOLOMAN SACHS INTERNATICNAL (UNLIMITED SOMPANY)

Balance Sheet
A5 of
Hovembar Decennber
§ in milvcna Hate 2018 047
Fixed assets 13 % 315 5 210
Current assets
Financial instruments owned (includes $20,550 and $24 178 plediged as collaberal) 14 584,129 640,264
Caollateralised agresmeants 15 203,334 204,830
Detiors 18 54,793 74,052
Cirsh o bank and in hand 24 24,396 20.727
886,652 538 853
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Financial mstruments sold, but not yet purchased 14 [545,987) 1388 522}
Collateralised fmancings 18 [141,840) {158,069
Other crediors 19 97,151} {103 584}
[T84,978) {851 575)
Het current assets 101,674 Ba, 788
Total assets less current liabilities 101,989 a8 458
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than ene year
Collateralised financings 18 [10,305) {17.378)
Other crediors 15 [58,085) {359, 730)
[E8,400} (57, 108)
_Provisions for liabilities 20 (78) {10}
Het assets excluding pension surplus 33,511 31,330
Pengion surplus 12 406 3z
Net assets including pension surplus $ 13917 5 31,70
Capital and reserves
Called up share captal 21 % 582 - oS82
Shiare pradmium #eoownt 4,854 o 864
Capdtal feserse (non-distnbutable) = 17
Proft and loss account 20,070 20727
Accumulated cther comprehensive income 101 [28:3)
Other aquity mstruments 2 8,300 5,800
Total shareholder's funds § 33,817 5 31,7

The financial staternants were aperaved by the Board of Ditectors on March 15, 2019 and signed on its behalf by

BBt eN

D. W. McDonogh
Director

The sccompanying nobes afe an inlegral San of Hess Snancial statemenis
Campany Aumber: 02203551

50
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UNLIMITED COMPANY)
Statements of Changes in Equity

Pariod Ended
Newsambsar December
& i) imilions Hatw 2018 T
Called up share eapital
Beginning balance § 582 5 5az
Shares issuad 17 -
Shares cancelled {17} -
Emding batance 682 82
Share premium account
Beginning balance 4,884 4 854
Ending balance 4,884 4 884
Capital reserve (non-distributakbile)
Beginning tatance 17 17
Subsgcription for shares {17} =
Ending balance - 17
Profit and less account
Beginning balance 20,727 238
Cumulative effect on retained samings due to adoption of IFRS 15, net of tax 2 {5) -
Profit for the financial period 2,198 1557
Cancellation of shares 17 -
Interim dividends paid 23 (2,500) (3,000)
Interest on Additional Tier 1 notes, net of tax X2 {3867} (146)
Share-based payments 405 A05
_Management recharge related to share-based payments {405) (405)
Ending balance 20,070 20,727
Accumulated olher comprehensive income
Beginning batance (284) (248)
Other comprehensive incomeiloss) 330 {43)
Ending balance 101 {288)
Other equity instruments
Beginning batance £,800 -
Additional Tier 1 nobes issued 2 2,600 5,800
Ending balance 8,300 5800
Tetal shareholder's funds $33.917 531,701

Tha acesmpanying notes ane an inlegral pan of Shese Inancial datemants,
&1
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UMLIMITED COMPANY)
Statements of Cash Flows

Pariod Ended

Neawsambsar December
& i imilions Hatw 2018 AT
Cash flows frorm operating activities
Cash generated from operations 25 § 5,980 %3528
Taxation recased 1 1
Taxation pakd _ {252} (406)
Mt cash from operating activities &728 3523
Cash flows from investing activities
Capital expenditure for fied assets {(172) {109)
Met cash used in investing actvities (172) (108)
Cash flows from financing activities
Receipts from issuing Additional Tier 1 nobes 2 2,500 5,800
Irrbesin dividends paid 3 (2,500) (3.000)
Repayment of long-term subardinated loans - (3.581)
Interest paid on Additional Tier 1 notes 22 (503) (201)
Interest paid on long-term subordinated loans 13 {54) (58T)
Met cash used in financing activities {557} {1,569)
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 5,000 1,845
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning balance 20,654 16,881
Forelgn exchange gains/{lnsses) on cash and cash equivalents (1,411} 1.928
Cagh and cazh equivalents, ending balance 24 524,243 520,654

Man-cah actibin: during the perid pndied Nevember 2018

= The company aliotbed 17.3 milion crdinary thares of 31 each fo Goldman Sache Group UK Limited and subsequently cancelied 17.3 millon ordinary shares. Both
ions were for nd o . Swe Note 21 for Girther information

The accompanying rotes e an integral pan of Bete Irancial stabements,
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UMLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Mote 1.
General Information

The company 15 a provate unlimited company and s
incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales. The address
of its registered office is Peterborough Court, 133 Fleet Street,
London, EC4A 2BB, United Kingdom.

The company’s immediate parent undertaking and the parent
company of the smallest group for which consolidated
financial statements are prepared 15 Goldman Sachs Group UK
Limited {(G3G UK), a company incorporated and domiciled in
England and Wales. Copies of its consoludated fimancial
statements are avalable on request from the Company
Secretary, GSG UK, Peterborough Court, 133 Fleet Street,
London BEC4A 2BB, United Kingdom, GSG UK together with
its conselidated subsidharies forms “GSG UK Group™.

The ultimate controlling undertaking and the parent company
of the largest group for which consolidated Onancial statements
are prepared 5 The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc, a company
incorporated in the United States of America. Copies of its
consolidated financial statements, as well as cenan regulatory
filings, for example CQuarterly Reports on Form 10-0) and the
Annual Report on Form 10-K, that provide further information
about G5 Group and its business activities. can be oblained
from Investor Relations, 200 West Street, New York, WY
10282, United States of America, GS Group's principal place
of business, or al www. goldmansachs com/sharchalders.

Basel Il Pillar 3 Disclosures

The company 15 ncluded in the comsoldated Pillar 3
disclosures of G3G UK, as required by the CRE. G5G UK's
Movember 201% Pillar 3 disclosures will be made available in
comjunction with the publication of its consalidated fimancial
information at www_ goldmansachs com/disclosures.

Country-by-Country Reporting

The company is included in the consolidated country-by-
coumtry reporting disclosures of G3G UK, as requred by the
Capital  Requirements  (Country-by-Country  Reporting)
Regulations 2013, GSG UK’s November 20018 Country-bw-
Country Reporting will be made available by December 31,
2019 at www, goldmansachs. com/disclosures,

53
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Note 2.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The company prepares financial statements under UK. GAAP.
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with FES 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework™ (FES 101}

These financial statements have been prepared on the going
concern basis, under the historical cost convention (modified
as explaned in “Pension Armangements” and “Firencial Assets
and Firancial Liabilities™ below), and in accordance with the
Companies Agt 2006,

Duning the penod, the company changed s accountng
reference date from December 31 to November 30 to conform
to the pericd used by the company for US. tax reportmg
purposes. As such, these financial statements have been
prepared for the eleven months ended November 30, 2018,
with comparative information being presented for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2017, As a result, amounts
presented in this annual report are not directly comparable.

The following exemptions from the disclosure requirements of
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFR3) as adopted
by the EU. have been applied in the prepasation of these
financial statements in accordance with FRS 101:

« IFES 2 *Share-based Payment” paragraph 45(b) and 46 1o 52
These disclosures are provided in the consolidated financial
statements of Group Inc.;

« [FRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ second

sentence of paragraph 110 and paragraphs 113(a), 114, 115,
118, 119a) 1o (), 12010 127 and 129,

« 1AS 1 "Presentation of Firancial Statements” paragraph 38 to
present comparative information in respect of-

« [AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements” paragraph
THaN ) and
« [AS 16 ‘Froperty, Plant and Equipment” paragraph 73(e).

« [AS 1 “Presentation of Financial Stiements’ paragraphs
10(f), 16, and 40A-Lx,

« IAS £ “Accounting Policies, Changes in  Accounting
Estimates and Errors’ paragraphs 30 and 31,

« 1AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures” paragraph 17, and

= [AS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures” requirements 1o disclose
transactions with companies also wholly owned within G5
Croup

291/375
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UMLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Consolidation

The company has elected not to prepare consolidated financial
statements as permitted by section 402 of the Companies Act
2006 as s subsidianes are not matenal for the purpose of
giving a tree and fair view,

These financial statements are individual Ninancial statements.

New Standards, Amendments and Interpretations
IFRS 2 ‘Financial Instruments’. From January 1, 2018, the
company  adopted the remaining provisions of IFRS 9
‘Francial Instruments” (IFES 9), having early adopted the
requirements related to changes m the fair value of financial
liabilities attnbutable to own credit spreads (debt valuation
adjustment or DVA) effective from January 1, 2016, As
permitted by IFRS 9, the company continues o apply the
hedge accounmting requirements of [AS 39 ‘Financial
Instruments: Recogmition and Measurement” (LAS 399,

The remaining provisions ef [FRS 9 adopted by the company
related to classification and measurement and impairment. As
permitted by the transiional provisions of [FRS 9, the
company has elected to not restate comparative figures. There
was no change to the carrving value of the company s financial
assets and financial liabilities at the date of transition

Classification and Measurement

IFRS 9 mtroduces a principles-based approach to the
classification of fnancial assets, resulting in the following
categories: fair value through profit or loss; farr value through
other comprehensive income, and amortised cost

IFRS 9 requires debt assets 1o be clissified based on a
combimation of the company™s business models and the nature
of the asseis” cash Nows.

As a result of the adoption of IFRS 9, the company reclassified
5182 hilbion of collateralised agreements from far value
through profit or loss to amortised cost as of January 1, 2015

R
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The table below presents the measurement categones and the
carying amounts of financial assets in accordance with IFRS @
and 1AS 39 as of January 1, 2018

IFRS @
Mandatadly Amirtiied

§ i mallons il By valug £ait Tetal
As of January 1, 2018
Einancial instrumenits owned 640,784 5 - S840,784
Collstarlived agreamants 139,545 68,375 204,530
Dabbors B33 TLTES TLITE
Cash at bani s in Besd - HTE 0TI
Total financial assels 5779482 199,727 $509,139

]

Hedd for Dwnignated  Loant and

£ i ullions radng ot firvalus  recebabieg Total
Az of Janyery 1, 2018
Financial instrumests owned S840.204 3 - % = SE0e
Collsteralived agrmamants - 0,360 gl AB0 0 ERD
Darbtors = Lk TET2S TRATE
Caih il bank and in Basd - - T LTI
Tolal financial assets SBA0264 141,013 S137.912 5909139

The company’s classification and measurement of fnancial
liabilities remained unchanged on adoption of [FRS 9,

Impairrment

IFRS 9 changes the impairment methodology for financial
assets measured at amaortised cost, replacing the incurred loss
model of TAS 39 with a forward-looking expected credit loss

(ECL) approach.

The company 15 required 1o assess expecied losses based on the
probability of default in the next twelve months, unless there
has been a significant increase i credit risk since ongination,
in which case, the expected credit loss is based on the
probability of default over the life of the asset.

The company has developed and tested an impaiment model
that complies with the key requirements of 1IFRS 9 Credn
losses on adoption of IFRS 9 were not material as of January 1,
2008,

IFRS 15 '‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’.
From Janwary 1, 2018, the company adopted IFRS 15 under the
cumulative effect transition approach. This standard, as
amended, provides comprehensive guidance on the recogmition
of revenue earned from contracts with customers arising from
the transfer of goods and services, guidance on accounting for
cerlain contract costs and new disclosures.

As a result of adopling this standard from January 1, 2018, the
company delavs recognition of non-refundable and milestone
payments on  fnancial  advisory  engagements until  the
engagemenis are completed. The cumulative effect of adopting
this standard on January 1, 2018 was a decrease in retmned
camings of 33 million (net of tac).
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The company also prospectively changed the presentation of
certain costs from a net presentation within net revenues to a
pross basis, resulting in an increase in both net revenues and
administrative expenses by 3602 million for the period ended
MNovember 2018 in comparison to the company’s past
presentation.

Accounting Palicies

Revenue Recognition. Met revenues include the net profit
arising from transactions, with both third parties and affiliates,
in derivatives, secunties and other financeal instruments, and
fees and commissions, This is inclusive of associated interest
and dividends. MNet revenues have been disclosed instead of
wmmever as this reflects more meamngfully the nature and
resulis of the company s activities.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities Measured
at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Financial assets and fmancial habalities measured at fair value
through profit or loss are recogrused at bur value with realised
and unrealised gains and losses as well as associated mterest
and dividend income and expenses included 1 net revenuwes,
with the exception of DVA, which 5 recopmised in other
comprehensive income, unbess this would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss, Financial assets are
marked to bid prices and frencl lablities are marked to
offer prices. Fair value messurements do not  include
transaction costs, The company measures certain financial
assets and fnancial habilities as a portfolio (e, based on its
net exposure to market and'or credit nsks).

Unrealsed gains and losses related 1o the change in fair value
of hnancil assets and financml labilies measured at far
value through profit or loss are recognised from trade date in
net revenues or olher comprehensive income in the case of
Dva

In applying the provisions of IFRS @ relating to DVA, the
company 15 departing from the requirements of paragraph 40 of
Schedule 1 of SI 2008410 relating to recogrising the changes
in the fair value of financial instruments in the profit or loss
account. The directors consider this departure 15 necessary in
order for the accounts 1o give a true and far view. See RNote 19
for further information.

Revenue from Confracts with Clients

From January 1, 2018, the company accoumts for revenues
eamed from contracts with clients for services such as
investment banking, investment mansgement, and execution
and clearing (comtracts with clients) under IFRS 15, As such,
fevenues from  these services are recopmised when the
performance obhigations related 1o the underlying transactions
are completed.

]
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In addition, from January 1, 2018, if the company is principal
to the transaction, the company recognises revenue on
contracts with clients, gross of expenses incwred to satisly
some or all of its performance obligations. The company is
principal to the transaction if it has the primary chligation i
provide the service to the client. The company satisfies the
performance obligation by nself, or by engaging other G3
Group entities to satsfy some or all of s performance
obligations on its behalf, Such revenue is recognised in met
revenues  andd  expenses  mcurmmed  are  recogmised  in
adm mstrative expenses. Pnor 1o January 1, 2018, revenue on
contracts with clients was presented net of certain expenses
mcurred 1o satisfy some or all of the performance obligations.
See “New Standards, Amendments and Interpretations — IFRS
15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers™ for further
information abowt the adoption impact of IFRS 15,

Met revenues are recognised as follows:

« Investment Banking
Fees from financial advisory and underwriting engagements
are recognsed in profit and loss when the services related 1o
the underlving transactions are completed under the terms of
the engagement.

Investment Management

Management fees are recognised on an acerual basis and are
generally calculated as a percentage of a fund or a separately
managed account’s average net asset value. All management
fees are recogmsed over the pertod that the related service 15

provided,

-

Incentive fees are calculated as a percentage of a fund's
return or & percentage of a fund's excess retum above a
specified benchmark of other performance target

Commissions and Fees

Bevenwe from commissions and fees from executing and
clearing client transactions on steck, options and [uiures
markets, as well as OTC transactions 15 recognised in net
revenues on the day the trade is executed. The company also
provides third-party research services to clients in conmection
with sofi-dollar arangements.

Operating Leases. The company has entered inte operating
lease arrangements as the lessee. Leased assels are not
recogrised in the balance sheet Costs in respect of operating
leases, adjusted for any incentives granted by the lessor, are
charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term and
included in administrative expenses.
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Short-Term Employee Benefits. Short-term  employes
benefits, such as wages and salaries, are measured on an
undiscounted basis and accrued as an expense over the period
in which the emplovee renders the service to the company.
Provision is made for discretionary year-end compensation
whether to be paid in cash or share-based awards where, a5 a
result of company policy and past practice, a constructive
ohligation exists at the balance sheet date.

Share-Based Payments. Group Inc issues awards in the
form of restricted stock units (RSUs) and stock options to the
company”s employees in exchange for employee services
Awards are classified as equity settled and hence the cost of
share-hased transactions with employees is measured based on
the grant-date fair value of the award. Share-based awards that
do not regquire future service (e, vested awards, including
awards granted to retrement ehigible employvees) are expensed
immediately, Share-based mwards that require future service
are amortised over the relevant service period. Expected
forfertures are included in determining share-based employes
COmMpensalion expense.

Group Ine. generally issues new shares of common stock upon
delivery of share-based awards. Cash dividend equivalents,
unless prohibited by regulation, are generally paid on
oulstanding RSUs. The company has also entered mnto a
chargeback agreement with Group Inc. under which it is
committed to pay the gramt-date fair value as well as
subsequent movements in the fair value of those awards to
Grroup Inc. at the time of delivery to its employees. As a result,
the share-based payment transaction and chargeback agreement
creates a total charge 1o the profit and loss account based on
the grant-date fair value of the awards adjusted for subsequent

movements in the fair value of those awards prior to delivery.

Dividends. Final equity dividends are recognised as a liabaliy
and deducted from equity in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the company’s shareholder, Intenim eguity
dividends are recognised and deducied from equity when paid.

Pension Arrangements. The company is a sponsor of o
defimed contribution pension plan, and a hybrid pensien plan
for the benelit of certain employees. The hybrid pension plan
has both a defined benefit section (the Plan) ond a defined
comtribution section. These are accounted for as follows:

« For the defined comribution pension plan and the defined
contribution  section of the hyvbnd pension plan,  the
contributions payable for the period are charged to operating
profit. Differences hetween comtributions payable for the
period and contributions actually paid are shown as either
accruals or prepayments in the balance sheet.
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« For the Plan, the amounts charged to operating profit are any
past service costs, admimistration costs and any gains or
lesses on settlemerts and curtailments. These amownts are
included in direct costs of employment. The net interest is
included in net finance income. Actuarial gains and losses are
recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. Plan
assels are measured st far value and Plan habiliies are
measured on an actuarial basis wing the projected unt credit
method and discounted at a mte equivalent to the current rate
of return on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalemt
currency and term 1o the Plan habihties. Full actuarnal
valustions are obiained at least nennlly and updated at
each balance sheet date. Any surplus or deficnt of Plan assets
aver Plan habilities 15 recogmsed in the balance sheet as an
asset (surplus) or liability (deficit).

Fixed Assets.

Tangible Fixed Assets

Tangible fved assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and provision for impairment. Fistures, fillings
and equipment are depreciated on a straighi-lme basis over
their estimated useful lives, which is between 3 to 7 years.
Depreciation is included in sdminstrative expenses.

Leaschold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of
the wseful economic life of the asset of the remaining life of the
lease when the asset is brought into use. Depreciation policies
are reviewed on an annual basis,

Intangible Fived Assets

Intangible ficed assels are sated at cost less sccumulated
amarisation and provision for impairment. Subject to the
recogmtion criteria in LAS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’ being met,
costs incurred during the period that are directly attnibutable to
the development or improvement of new business application
software are capitalised as assets in the course of construction.
Assets in the course of construction are transferred to computer
software ance completed and ready for their imended use,

Computer software is amortised on a straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life, which is three vears, No amortisation is
charged on assets in the course of construction. Amortisation 15
mcluded 1 administrative expenses and the amortisation
policies are reviewed on an anneal basis.

Intangible fixed assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances suggest that an asset’s or
assel group’s carryving value may not be fully recoverahle

Fixed Asset Investmenis

Fioed asset investments are stated at cost or amortised cost, as
applicable, less provision for impairment. Amoriisation is
meluded m administrative expenses.
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Cash at Bank and In Hand. This includes cash at bank and
in hand and highly liguwd overnight deposits held i the
ordinary course of business

Foreign Currencies. The company’s financial statements
are presented in ULS. dollars, which is alse the company’s
functional currency.

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated
inte U5, dollars at rates of exchange ruling on the date the
trarsaction occurred. Monetary assets and liabalities, and non-
monelary  assets and  liabilites measured at G value,
denominated m foreign cwrencies are translated into U5,
dollars at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in operating
profit,

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.
Recognition and Derecognition

Financeal assets and Onancial habalities, other than cash
instruments purchased or sold in regular way transactions, are
recognised when the company becomes party 1o the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecogrsed
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire or if the company transfers the financial asset and
the transfer qualifies for derecognition. A transferred financial
asset qualifies for derecognition if the company transfers
substartially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset or does not retain control. Financial Labilites
are derecognized only when they are extingushed, 1e., when
the ohligation specified in the contract is discharped or
cancelled ar expires

Cash instruments purchased or sold in regular way transactions
are fecopnised and derecognized using settlement date
accounting.
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Classification and Measurement: Financial Assets
From January 1, 2018, the company has adopted the provisions
of IFRS 9 related 1w classification and measurement of
financial assets and classifies financial assets as subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value through profit ar loss
on the basis of both the company’s business model for
mamaging fnancial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the fmancial assets. The business model
reflects how the company manages particular groups of assels
in order 1o generate future cash flows. Where the company’s
business model 15 w0 hold the assets 1o collect contractual cash
flows, the company subsequently assesses whether the
financial assets” cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and nterest. Fmancial assets with  embedded
derivatives (hybrid instruments) that are not bifurcated from
their hest are also subject to the same assessment, See “New
Standards, Amendments and Interpretations — IFRS 9
‘Financeal Instruments™ for further information abowt the
adoption impact of [IFRS 9,

« Financial assets measured at amortised cost.
Financial assets that are held for the collection of contractual
cash flows amd have cash fows that represemt solely
pavments of pnncipal and interest are measwred at amortised
cost, unless they are designated at fair value through profit o
loss. The company considers whether the cash flows
represent basic lending amangements, and where contractual
terms intraduce exposure to nisk or volatility inconsistient
with a basic lending arrangement, the fnancial asset 1s
mandatonly measured at fair value through profit or loss (see
below),

Financial assets measwred at amortised cost are imitially
measured at  fair wvalue plus  transaction costs  and
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The effective interest method s a method of
caleulating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and
allocating the interest income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate thal exacly discoums
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset or, when appropriate, a shorter pertod to the
nel carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating
the effective mterest rate, the company estimates cash flows
conzidening all contractual terms of the financial asset but
does not consider future credit losses. Finance revenue is
recorded 1 net revenues. Fimancial assets measured at
amortised cost include:

» Certain collateralised agreements, which consists of certain
resale agreements and securities bomowed;

» Substantially all debtors, amd
« Cash at bank and in hand,
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« Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets that are not held
for the collection of contractual cash flows and'or do mot
have cash flows that represent solely paymentz of principal
and interest are mandatorily measured at fair value through
proft o loss. Financial assets mandatorily measured a1 fair
value are imtially measuwred at far value with transaction
costs expensed in profit or loss, Such financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains or losses
recogmised in ometl revenues. Financial assets mandatorily
measured at fair value include:

« Financial instruments owned, which consists of cash
instruments and denvative mstruments;

» Certain collateralised agreements. which consists of certain
resale agreements and securities borrowed, and

« Certain debtors, which consists of transfers of assets
accounted for as secured loans rather than purchases, and
prepaid commaodity contracts.

Priar to Jammry 1, 2018, the company classified its fimancial
assets into the following categories under [AS 39:

+ Financial assets held for trading. Financial assets held
for trading included financial instruments owned, which
consisted of cash instruments and derivative nstruments.
Financial instruments owmned were initially recogrsed at fair
value with transaction costs expensed in profit or loss. Such
financial assets were subsequently measured at fair value
with gains of losses recognised in net revenues,

« Financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss. The company designated certain of s cther
financial assels at fair value through profil or loss. This
ncluded resale agreements, securities borrawed within FICC
Client Execution and certain debtors, which consisted of
transfers of assets accounted for as secured loans rather than
purchases and prepaid commodity contracts, Financial assets
designated at fair valee through profit or loss were intially
recogmised at farr value with transactions costs expensed in
profit or loss. Such Nnancial assels were subsequently
measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised in net
TENVERUES,

Loans and receivables. Loans and receivables were non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They
included certain collateralised agreements, substantially all
debtors and cash at bank and in hand. Such financial assets
were initially recognised at far value plus ransactions costs
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, Finance revenue was recorded m
miet Fevenses

-
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Classification and Measurement: Financial Liabilities

The company classifies s financial liabilities into the below
categories based on the purpose for which they were acquired
or originated.

« Financial liabilities held for trading. Financial liabilities

held for trading are initially measured at far value and
subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, with gains or
loases recopnized in net revenues, Financial liabilities held
for wading inchede financial instruments sold, but not yet
purchased, which consist of cash instruments and denvative
instruments.

- Financial liabilities designated at fair value through
prefit or loss. The company designates certain financial
liabilities at far valwe through profit or loss. Financial
habilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at fair value
through profit or loss, with DVA being recognised in other
comprehensive income, if it does not create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch, and the remaining changes in the fair
valwe being recognised in net revenues, Amounts recognised
in other comprehensive income attribwable 10 own credit
spreads are not subsequently tramsferred to profit or loss,
even upon derecognition of the fimancial lability. The
primary reasons for designating such fnancial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are:

« To eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from
measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and
losses on them on different bases, and

« The group of firancial liabilites, or financial assets and
financial habilities, 15 managed and ns  perfomance
evaluated on a fair value basis.

Financial habilites designated ab fair valwe through profit ar
loss include:

» Repurchase agreements,

« Securities loaned within FICC Chent Execution,

» Secured debt secunties issued and other borrowings, which

consist of hybeid Orancial instruments and transfers of
assets accounted for as financings rather than sales;

« Certain umsecured  debt  secunties  wssued  and  other
borrowings, which consist of hybnd financial instruments;
and

« Certain  other creditors, which consist of certain
mtercompany loans, and prepaid commaodity contracts.
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Hybrid financial instruments are instruments that contain
ifurcatable embedded dervatives. If the company clects to
hifwrcate the embedded derivative from the associated deb,
the denvative 15 accounted for at fair value and the host
contract is accounted for at amortised cost, adjusted for the
effective portion of any fur value hedges. IT the company
does ot elect to bifurcate, the entire hybrd Onancial
instrument 15 desipnated at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost,
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are mtially
measured  at  fair wvalwe plus  transaction costs  and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. See “Financial assets measured al amortised
cost” above for further information on the effective interest
methad. Finance costs, including discounts allowed on issue,
are recorded in net revenues with the exception of inferest on
long-term subordinated loans, which is recorded in interest
payable and similar expenses, Financial labdlities measured
al amonised cost include:

» Certain repurchase agreements and securities loaned, and

« Certain other creditors that have not been designated at fair
value through profit or loss,

Impalrent

From January 1, 2008, the company has adopted IFRS 9 and
assesses on a forward-leoking basis the expected credit losses
associaled with [mancial assels measured al amortised cost
Thie measurement of expected credit losses reflects an unbiased
ard probability weighted amount that i determaned by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes, the ume value of
money, and rexsonable and supportable information that is
avatlable withowt undue cost or effort at the reporting date
aboul past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Expected credit losses are recorded inonet
revenues,  See  “MNew  Standards,  Amendments  and
Interpretations — IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments™ for further
information about the adoption impact of IFRS 9.

The company’s impairment model s based on changes in
credit quality smce mitial recogniion of financial assets
messured at amortised cost and mcorporates the following
three stages:

» Stage 1. Financial assets measured at amortised cost that
are not credit-impaired on initial recognition and there has
been no significant increase in eredit risk since initial
recognition. The ECL 153 measured at an amount equal to the
expected credit losses that result from default events possible
within the next twelve months.
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« Stage 2. Financial assets measured at amortised cost where
there has been a signficant increase in credit nisk since initial
recognition, however not vet deemed to be credit-impaired.
The ECL is measured based on expected credit losses on a
lifietirne hasis.

« Stage 3. Financial asscts measured &t amortised cost that
are in default, or are defined as credit-impaired. The ECL 15
measured based on expected credit losses on a lifetime basis.

Determination of the relevant staging for each financial asset is
depersdent on the defimtion of “significant increase in credit
risk” (stage 1 1o stage 2) and the definition of “eredit-impaired”
(stage 2 to stage 3). The company considers a financial asset to
have experienced a significant increase in credit risk when
ceftain  guantitative of gualitative conditions  ane  met
Cuantitative thresholds include absolute probability of default
thresholds on investment-grade Onancial assets and relative
probability of default theesholds on non-investment grade
financial assets. Qualitative review s also performed as pant of
the company’s credit rnisk management process, including a
back-stop consideration of 30 days past due. The company
consuders a financial asset to be creditampaired when it meets
Credit Risk Management's defimtion of default, which is either
when the company considers that the obligor is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to GS Group in full, withouwt recourse by
the company to actions such as realising security (f held), or
the ohligor has defaulted on a payment and/or is past due more
than 90 days,

The ECL is determined by projecting the probability of default,
loss given default and exposure at defauki for each individual
exposwre. To calculste expected credit losses these three
components are multiplied together and discounted back to the
reporiing date. The disceani rate used in the ECL caleulation is
the orginal effective interest rate. The probability of default
reprezents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its
financial obligation. The loss given default is the company’s
expectation of the extent of loss on the default exposwre, and
takes into consderation amongst other thangs, collateral on the
financial asset. The exposure ot default is the amowt the
company expects o be owed at the tme the Onanceal
obligation defaults. The company uses mternal credit nsk
ratings that reflect the assessment of the probability of default
of individual counterparties. The company uses multiple
macroeconomic scenarios within the ECL calculation, the
weightings for which are subject to ongoing intemnal review
and appraval
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Forward-looking information, such as key economic vanables
impacting credit nsk and expected credit losses, 15 incorporated
into both the assessment of staging and the calculation of ECL.
Economic vangbles have been forecasted using internally
generabed projections to provide an estimated view of the
economy over the nexd mne quarters. After nine quarers a
mean reversion approach has been used, which means that
economic vanahles tend to either a lomg nun average rate or a

long run growth rate.

The company writes off financial assets, in whole or in part,
when it kas concluded that there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery, When a financial asset is deemed 1o be
uncollectable, the company concludes this to be an indicator
that there 15 no reasonable expectation of recovery. The
company still seeks 1o recover amounts it 15 legally owed mn
full, but which have been wholly or partially written off due to
no reasonable expectation of full recovery.

Prior to January 1, 2018, the company applied the impairment
requirements of [AS 39 and assessed its loans and receivables
at cach balance sheet date for any objective evidence of
impairiient. 1T there was no objective evidence that an
impairment loss had been meurred, the amount of the loss was
measured as the difference between the financial asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s onginal effective
interest rate, The amount of the loss was included within net
revenues, if trading related, of in administrative expenses if
non-trading related.

Classification of Financial Liabilities and Equity
Financeal lLiabilities and equity instrumenis are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements. A
financial liahility is any liability that is a contractual ohligation
to deliver cash or another financeal asset to ancther entaty; or to
exchange financial assets or firancial labilities with another
entity under conditions that are potenbially unfavourable to the
entity. An equily invesiment is any contract that evidences a
residual mterest in the assets of the entity after deducting all
Diabilities. Instruments are evaluated to determine if they
comain both lability and equity components. The initial
carying amount of a compound financial instrument is
allocated first to the liability component, measured at fair
value, and the equity is assigned the residual amourt.
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Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Fmancial assets and financial liabihities are offset and the net
amount presented in the balance sheet where there i

« Currently a legally enforceable nght to set-off the recognised
amounts, and

« Intent to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously,

Where these condiions are not met, financal assets and
financial liabilities are presented on & gross basis in the balance
shee

Fair Value Measurement
See Note 28 for details about the fair value measurement of the
company's financial assets and fnancial habalities.

Fair Value Hedges

The company applies hedge aceounting under [AS 39 for
centain interest rate swaps used to manage the interest rate
exposure of certain froed-rate unsecured long-term and short-
term  borrowings. To qualify for hedge accounting, the
derivative hedge must be haghly effective at reducing the nsk
from the exposure being hedged, Additionally, the company
miust formally document the hedging relatioaship a1 inceplion
and te=1 the hedging relationship to ensure the derivative hedge
contmues to be highly effective over the life of the hedging
relationshap

Current Asset Investments

The directors are of the opinicn that it would mot be
appropriate to classify financial instruments owned as current
asset investments or 1o provide an analysis of such securities
between those listed and unlisted,

Collateralised Agreements and Collateralised
Financings. Collateralised agreements include resale
agreements and securities borrowed. Collateralised financings
include repurchase agreements, secunties loaned, secured debt
securities issued and other borrowings. See “Classification and
Measurement: Financial Assets”™ and “Classification and
Measuremeni: Financial Liabilities™ above for details on the
classification and measurement of these istruments. Collateral
received or posted can be in the form of cash or securities,
Cash collateral is recognised /derecognised when received/pasd.
Collateral posted by the company in the form of securities is
net derecognised from the balance sheet, whilst collateral
received mn the form of securiies is not recogmised in the
balance sheet. If collmeral received is subsequently sold, the
obligation to return the collateral and the cash received are
recogmsed on balance sheet.
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Current and Deferred Taxation. The tax expense for the
pertod consists of current and deferred twxation. Tax s
recognised in the profit and loss account, except to the extent it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively ermacted al the balance sheet date in the countries
where the company operates and generates taxable income,
Dieferred tax is recogrised in respect of all temporary
differences that have originated, but not reversed at the balance
sheet date, where transactions or events have ocourred at that
date that will result in an obligation to pay more tax or a right
1o pay bess tae in the Duture with the following exceptions:

» Diefierred tax assets are recogrised only to the extent that the
directors consider that it i mofe likely than not that there
will be sumtable taxable profits from which the future reversal
of the underlying temporary differences can be deducted,

+ Deferred 1ax is measured on an undiscourted basis at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the penods i which
temporary differences reverse, based on fax rates and laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Dieferred tax is recognised in the profit and loss account or
directly in other comprehensive income according to where the
associated gain or loss, to which the deferred tax is attributable,

15 recognised.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, Provisions are recognised in the firancial statements
when it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle a present {legal or constructive) ohligation,
which has anisen a5 a result of past events, and for which a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation
Legal obligations that may arise as a result of proposed new
laws are recognised as obligations anly when the legislation is
virtually certain to be enacted as drafied,

A contingent ltability 15 a possible obligation that anses from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
CCCMTENGe of non-occirrence of one or more uneerain fulure
evenls not whelly within the control of the company or a
present obligation that arises from past events bt = ot
recognised because enher an outflow of economic benelits is
nat probable or the amount of the obligation cannot be relbhby
measured,

A contingent asset 15 8 possible asset that arises from past
events and whose exastence will be confirmed only by the
ooeurrence of mon-ocowrrence of one or more uncertain future
events ned whally withan the ¢ontrol of the company.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets ame not recognised
in the financial statements. However, disclasure is made unleéss
the probability of settlement 1= remote.

l
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Mote 3.

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements

The preparation of [nancial stalements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts recognised in these financial statements. The nature of
estimation mears that sctwal outcomes could differ from those
estimates, The following judgements have had the most
significant effect on amounts recognised in the financal
stalements:

Fair Value Measurement

Certain of the company’s [nancial assets and [inanceal
labilities mnelude sigrficant unobservable inputs (1e., level 3).
See Mote 28 for information about the carrying value, valuation
technigues and significant inputs of these instruments.

Litigation and Regulatory Proceedings

The company estimates and provides for potential losses that
may arise oul of htgation amd regulatory proceedings o the
extent that such losses are probable and can be reasonably
estimated. Significant judgement iz required in making these
estimates and the company”s final habilities may ulumately be
materally different. See Note 20 for further information about
the company’s provisions for liabilities and Note 26 for legal
procesdings that the company 15 involved in

Defined Benefit Pension

The cost of the Plan and the value of the Plan liabilities are
determined using actuarial valuations. This involves making
assumptions about discount rates, fwture salary increases,
momality rates and future pension increases. Due 1o the
complexity of the valuation, such estimates are subject o
significant uncertainty. See Note 10 for further information
about the company s Plan
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UNMLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Mote 4.
MNet Revenues

Mot revenues include net mterest income and non-interest
income. Met interest income includes interest and dividends on
financial assets and firancial liabilities measured at fair value
and amortised cost, Non-interest income pramarily includes:

» Gains and losses on financial assets and firancial liabilities
mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss
(including financial liabilities held for trading) primarily
relates 1o non-interest gaims and losses on financial
irstru ents owned and fnancial mstruments sald, but not vet
purchased. This also mcludes gams and losses on certam
collateralised agreements from Jammry 1, 2018 that are
measured mandatonly at fair value through profit or loss
under IFRS &

Gains and losses on financial assets and firancial liabilities
desigrated a1 fair value through profit or loss primarily
relates o non-imerest gains and losses on certain other
creditors and collateralised fmancings. This also includes
eains and losses on certain collateralised agreements prior o
January 1, 2018 that were designated st fair value through
profit or loss under [TAS 39,

Fees and commissions primarily includes net revenues from
certan financial advisory and underwriting engagements,
executing and clearing client transactions and  cerain
irvestment management services,

The table below presents the company”s net revenues,

In the table above:

= Interest icome included income from financial assets and
financial Labdities measured a1 amortised cost of 5241
billion for the period ended Movember 2018 and $1.16 billion
fior the period ended December 2017,

s Interest expense included expenses from fimancial assets and
financial liabalities measured at amortised cost of $3.37
billion for the period ended Movember 2018 and 5196 billion
for the period ended December 2017.

« Financial assets and financial liabilines designated at fair
valwe through profit or loss are frequently economically
hedged with financial assets and fnancial liabilities
measured mandatorily at fair value through profit or less.
Accordingly, gains or lesses that are reported in [inancial
assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss can be partially offset by gains or losses
reported m linancial assets and financial habalities measured
mandatonly at fair value through profit or loss.

The company has made the following presentational changes
for the penod ended December 2017

« Inferest income and interest expense have both increased by
%5145 hillion to conform to the cwrent period’s
presentation, This is mainly to reclassify negative interest
meome 1o interest expense and negative inlerest expense o
mterest mecome for cerin mstruments and 0 reclassify

-

Pariod Ended IMCOMe on Certain currency management instruments from
Howember  Decomber miterest expense to interest income,
5 in milions 21§ 7
[rr e —— « Fees and commissions income has increased by 5952
kiwtad incorme bom extemnal eounterpartion 55014 53248 million, with no change to total non-interest income, 1o
Rtereat income Fom pannt and group conform o the current penod’s presemtation, by including
undertakings Ll 127 nel revenues from certain fnancial advisory, underwriling
Totad Interest income S, AT and investment management activities
Wnbeesl dupinie
nternst axp from i pasti [ERaF] 2182
nterest sapense om parent and group
undertaking: 13,963) 12,087}
Total interest expense 8,75 {4,278}
Hel interest Incomelexpense] 1189 [Ed
Fewricml svsets and fnancial Babites meaured
mandatoriy ot fair value through proft or loss 4418 T.2%0
Ferancial assets and fnancisl Nabiities
designated a1 fair vales through proft or loss 1,875 (2442}
Feas and commisaions 1,770 1,530
Othae - (5}
“Won-irterest income 8,061 [XIH
“Het revenses 57,858 $ 8.508
62
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UMLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 5.
Segment Reporting

The company reports its activities in the following four
business segments: Investment Banking: Instiiutional Chent
Services, Investing & Lending, and Investment Management
See “Results of Operations — Segment Reporting”™ in Pant [ of
this annual report for a description of the company’'s segments.

Basis of Preparation

In reporting segments, certain of the company”s business lines
have been aggrepated where they have similar economic
charactenstics and are similar in each of the followmg arcas:
(1) the nature of the services they provide; (11) their methods of
distribution; (i1} the types of clients they serve, and (iv) the
regulatory environments in which they operate.

The cost drivers of the company taken as a whole,
compensation, headeount and levels of business sctivity, are
broadly similar in each of the company’s business segments.
Direct costs of employment in the company’s segments reflect,
among other factors, the overall performance of the company
as well as the performance of individual businesses.
Corsequently, operating profit margins in one segment of the
company’s business may be sigruficantly affected by the
performance of the company s other business segments.

The company allocates assets (including allocations of GCLA
and cash, secured chent financing and other assets), revenues
and expenses among the four business segments. Due to the
inegrated nature of these segments, estimates and judgements
are made in allocating certain assets, revenues and expenses,

The allocation process is bazed on the manmer in which
management currently views the performance of the segments.
Transactions between segments are based on specific erniteria or
approsimate third-party rates. Total administrative expenses
insludes charitable comributions and mark-to-market of share-
based compensation that have not been allocated to individual
business segments

In addition to transactions cntered into with third parties, the
company also enters into transactions with affiliates in the
normal course of business as part of market-making activities
and general operations. Revenues are allocated to, and recewved
from, such affiliates for these trarsactions.

Management believes that the information below provides a
reasonable representation of each segment’s contrnibution to net
revenues, operating profit and total assets, Operating profit has
only been presented for the company’s sigmbicant segments,
which are Irwestment Banking and Instittional Client
Serviges,
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The segment information presented n “Segment MNet
Revenues™ and “Sepment Operating Prof”™ below s prepared
according 1o the following methodologies:

« Revenue and expenses directly associated with each sepment
are included in determining operating profit.

« Met revenues in the company’s segments include allocations
of mlerest income and expense 1o specific securities and
other positions i relation 1o the cash generated by, or
funding requirements of, such positions with the exception of
interest on long-term subordinated loans, which is presented
in mterest payable and similar expenses (see Note %) Met
interest 15 included in segment net revenwes as il is consistent
with how management assesses segment performance.

Cwerhead expenses not  directly  allocable to  specific
segments are allocated matably based on direct sepment
CRPENSes.

Segment Net Revenues
The iable below presents the net revenues of the company’s
segments,

Prgrcd Ended
Howember Cecember
§ i millions FLaES 217
Irrvirsienent Barking
Financial Advincry 5 80 % 514
Underariting & fifid
Taital biviwatmant Banking $1,584 $1,176
Irrtitutionad Client Serdcis
FICE Clent Evecution 3,03 2T
Equities i1 & 366
Talal Institutional Client Services $5,01% 4,482
nvestig & Lending sam s v
Irvesment mwm £ T 3 &3
Tailal fiet ievinues 57,088 55,508

Substantially all interest income and interest  expense
recognised in net revenues is attnbutable 1o Instingtional Client
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UNMLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Segment Operating Profit
The table below presents the operating profit of the company’s

significant segments

Poriod Ended
Howvember Diecarrioer

5 in mlions 2018 2047
vestment Banking — .
Mt ievaniost § 1,564 51,178
Adminisvirative expenies (1,067} (T8
Operating profit T 5 am
InsbnLicnal Chent Servites.

et nevanue F5015 F448T
Administrative sxpen ses [2.001) (2827
Gperating pranit 52114 51,855
Total vl Fevenises 7.0 56500
Total administrative expenses [4,607) (4,118
Total operating profit EFET 52,385
In the table above:

+ Total et revenues included net revenues related to Investing
& Lending and Investment Management segments of 31.29
billion for the peried ended Movember 2008 and 5850
rillion for the period ended December 2017,

« Total admimustrative expenses  included  administrative
expenses related to Investing & Lending and Investment
Management sepments of $301 million for the peniod ended
Movember 2018 and 5575 milhon for the penod ended
December 2017,

« Total admimstratve experses mncluded a credit of 5184
million for the period ended Movember 2018 and a charge of
$144 million for the period ended December 2017
representing mark-te-market of share-based compensation
that has not been allocated to the company s segments.

« Total admimistrative expenses included a charge of 5212
million for the period ended MNovember 2018 and 525
reillion for the period ended December 2017 representing
charitable contributions that have not been allocated to the
company s segments.

Segment Assets
Substantially all of the company’s assels are attnibutable to

Instrtutional Client Services.
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Geographic Information

Due to the highly mtegrated nature of intermational financial
markets, the company manages its businesses based on the
profitabality of the enterprise as a whole. The methodology for
allocating ln'nfrtahilil}r to geographic regions is dependent on
estimates and management judgement.

Creographic results are generally allocated as follows:

« Investiment Banking: loeation of the client, investment
bankmg team and underlying nsk

« Insirtutional Client Services: location of the markei-making
desk and the primary market for the underlying security.

« Investing & Lending: location of the investing and lending

leam.

= Investment  Management:  location of the investment
managerment Leanm,

The table below presents the total net revenues of the company
by gecgraphic region allocated based on the methodology
referred to above.

Paricd Ended
Howember Cecombar
3 i maliong FLLd 217
EMER 55,004 4, 8T
Ameicas 4,353 1,185
Asin 240 L. ]
Total net revenues §7T, 388 §5.508
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UNMLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 6.
Administrative Expenses

The table below presents the company's adminstrative
ENpRENSEs.

Panod Ended
Hovember Ducernber
3 in millons 2012 am7
Diresct costs of employment 51,543 52 %50
Management charges bemta group endertakings
relsting io staff costs S &5
Brokerage, clearing. sschange and
distribution fees ar fier]
Market development L3 L]
Communicaions and technology L] a7
Deprecistion and amoriisation 5% -]
e panLy 157 155
Frofessional feas ol 123
Mianagamant charges Fomta group sndatakings
relatng 1o olher Senaeces o 1E3
Other axpenses E ] 212
Total adminisirative expendes 807 3,118

In the table above:

« The company has reclassified 357 million of consuliant and
temporary stafl costs for the perod ended December 2017
from direct costs of employment to professional fees to
conform to the current presentation.

« The company has reclassified S85 million of transaction and
other fees for the period ended December 2017 that are pand
to exchanges from other expenses to brokerage, clearmg,
exchange and distribution fees to conform to the current
presentation.

« Occupancy expenses included net operating lease remtals for
land and buildings of 569 million for the period ended
Mevember 2018 and 572 millien for the peried ended
December 200 7.

« Oaher expenses include the impact of adopting IFRS 15,
provisions [or labilities, miscellaneous taxes and charitable
contrbutions.

« Manggement charges fromte group undertakings ncludes
service charges relating to operational and administrative
support, and management services received from  amd
provided to group undertakings.

i
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The table below presents charpes from and o group
undertakings for both management charges relating to staff
costs and management charges relating to other services.

Perscd Ended

Hovembser Cecember
£ i rmallong g 2017
Chargis from group endedakings X7 T
Charges 1o group undedaking: (255 (289
Management charges redating bo staff costs il ]
Charges from group endertakings El h2
Char g fo group undatakings (131) (103
Management charges relating to other serdces Fil) 1BT
Tata 413 52485

The table below presents the fees payahle to the compamy’s
auditor, which are included in professional fees.

Paracd Endad

Hovwember Dot inrmibade
5 i raflions ity 2017
Fews for the company’s ausdt 6.1 51
Aoidi rolaied asuranc e Seriers 42 240
(o T T S TP R T TS 0 1.3 'R}
Tedabon comphants SarAcEs o1 L1
Ot ror-auc ssvices 0.1 L
Total fees for non-sudit serices L] FI]
Total L] W5

In the table above:

« The fees for the company’s auwdit for the period ended
Movernber 2018 increased by $2.0 million compared with the
period ended December 2017 and fees for audit related
assurance services for the pertod ended MNovember 2018
increased by 322 million compared with the period ended
December 2017, primanly due to the company changing its

aceounting reference date.

« Other assurance services for the period ended Movember
2018 meluded the company’s share of fees related to certain
services provided by a network firm of the company's
auditor to various G5 Group entities, These fees were
apportioned 1o the vanows G5 Group entities, including the
company, by reference 1o each entily s assel size.
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UNMLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Mote 7.
Staff Costs

The table below presents the company's average monthly
headcount

Average for the
Period Endad
Nevembar December
Iurmbar 2018 27
Employees Including directors
rvamstmant Basking ] T4
slitutional Clent Serdces 1,485 1,445
Iwating & Landing 193 148
Fremstment Managemant 540 553
Support Functions 1,079 1,481
Total average headeount 1,067 508

Total headeount was 4,210 as of November 2018 and 4,031 as
of December 2017,

The company’s average monthly headcount for the penod
ended December 2017 and total headeount as of December
2017 have been reduced by 362 and 436, respectively, in order
to align to the current presentation, which excludes consultants
and temporary staff

The table below presents employment costs incurred by the
company, including those relating to directors,

Period Ended
Nevember Dcarmiber
£ in milions s AT
Wages and salaries 51,650 2048
Socisl security costs 2ar e
Panion casty
Dulned contribution plan and deboed
conltribution sicten ol e hybid
ponsien gan 45 &7
Dufinnd banest saction af the hyfwid
pandion plan 4 1
Total direc] cosls of employment 51,045 $23%
Inthe table above:

« Total direct costs of employment meluded a credit of 5184
million for the period ended November 2018 and a charge of
L2144 mullion for the period ended December 20017 relating 1o
the mark-to-market of share-based compensation.

+ Consultant and temporary stall cosis of 557 million for the
period ended December 2007 have been reclassified from
aggregate wages and salanes to professional fees, in
admmistrative  expenses, to  comform  to  the current
presentation
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Mote 8.
Directors’ Emoluments

The table below presents the company's  directors’
emaluments.

Parod Ended
Mowember Decembar
$ in malions 018 2017
Aggregate emolumants b ]
Compaery pansi fributions to menmy
perchass schames - =
Total directors’ emoluments = W

The table below presents emoluments for the highest paid
director.

Pancd Ended
Hosembser Cecambesr
5 in mallong g 2017
Aghragat smekimanty =] 53
= ¥ pnsh ribations o moniy
porchase schemas = =
Aecrapd annual pendion ol end of the perdoed - =

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006, directors”
emoluments  above represent  the  proportion of  total
emoluments paid or payable in respect of qualifying services
only. This total only includes the value of cash and benefits in
kind, and dees not irclude the value of equity awards in
accordance with the provisions of Schedule 5 of SI 2008410,
[rrectors also receive emoluments. for non-qualifying services
which are not required 1o be disclosed.

Four directors were members of a defined contribution scheme.
Four directors, wncluding the highest paid director, have
received or are due o receive Growp Inc. shares in respect of
long-term incentive schemes during the period. One director
has exercised stock options during the period,

The aggregate emoluments of the eight non-executive directors
whao were members of the beard of directors for all or part of
the period ended MNovember 2015 was approximately 316
million. Certain non-executive directors received or will
receive additional ongoing fees in respeet of advisory services
provided during the period ended November 2018, the
aggregate amount of which is approximately $2.4 million.

Mote §.
Interest Payable and Similar Expenses

Interest pavable and samilar expenses consists of interest on
long-term  subordinated  loans from  paremt and  group
undertakings of $237 million for the period ended November
2018 and 5301 million for the pericd ended December 2017,
See Note 19 for further details.
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UNMLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 10,
Pension Arrangements

The company sponsors a pension plan with a hybnd structure,
having both a defined benefit section (the Plan) and a defined
contribution section. The Plan provides retirement benefits on
the basis of members’ hinal salary, with a normal retirement
age of 65 for most members. The Plan is funded, with the
assets of the scheme held separately from those of the
company, n separale trustee-adm mistersd funds.

The Plan was closed to new entrants with effect from Apnl 1,
2008, and was replaced by a defined contribution plan. As of
March 31, 2016, the Plan was closed 1o future benefit accruals
for exishing participants.

The Plan operates under trust law and s marged and
administrated by the Goldman Sachs UK Retirement Plan
Trustee Limited (the Trustee) on behalf of the members in
accordance with the terms of the Trust Deed and Rules and
relevant legislation. The Plan's assets are held by the trust.

A full actuanal valuation of the Plan was carmed out by a
qualified independent actuary as of July 31, 2018 using the
projected unit credit method and updated to November 30,
2018, As of November 2018, the Plan liabilities consist of 96%
in respect of future beneficiaries and 4% in respect of curment
bereficiaries,

Risks of the Plan
The main risks of the Plan are;

« Funding Shertfall. Additional contnbutions will be
required if the investment retums are not sufficient o pay for
benefits. The level of equity returns will be a key determinant
of overall investment retumn; the invesiment portfolio is also
subject to a range of other risks typical of the asset classes
held, in particular interest rate risk and inflation nisk on
bonds.

Asset Volatility. A consequence of the Flan's investment
strategy, with a significant proportion of the assets mvested
in equities and other return-secking assets is that the
difference between Flan assets and Flan liabilities may be
volatile.

« Plan Liabilities Sensitivity. Flan liabilities are sensitive
1o the assumplions made about Dmure inflation amd life
expectancy. It 15 also sensitive o the discount rate, which
depends on market wvields on sterling-denominated high-
quality corporate bonds,

a7
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Financial Assumptiens

The table below presents the significant financial assumptions
used to determine the present value of the defined benefit
obligation

Pyl Eraindd
Howember Decambas
_% per annum i 207
Discount rate 1l 240
Rate of price infation - RF| 150 335
Rate of price infation - &P 250 235
Pabe ol increass in pensions in payments
(post-November 30, 1826 accrual) f ] R H
Rate afi in pensions in def
iposi-Hovember 30, 1556 sccnual) 2.50 258
Aabe of inp i chos farrmenit
(postApril B, 2008 sconaaly 250 238
Mortality Assumptions

The table below presents the monality assumptions used to
determine the present value of the defined benefit obligation.

Perod Ended
Howvember Cecombar
Years Flil] 207
Life expectancy ot 85 for s mesmber curmently 65 — -
Malas pat ] 8
Females nur M7
Life axpeetamey ol 65 for 8 maenber curtantly 45
Mates FLE %0
Females 8.2 262

In the table above, the mortality assumpiions adopled for the
pericd ended November 2018 were the “51 series all pensioner
light” base table with allowance for future improvements from
2002 onwards in line with the CMI 2017 core projections with
a long-term rate of improvement of 1.25% per anniim .
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UMLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Defined Benefit Cost

The table below presents the defined benefit gain related to the
Plan recognised in the company™s profit and loss sccount and
in other comprehensive income.
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Fair Value of Plan Assets

The Plan Trustees have a long-term asset allocation strategy to
invest 50%% of assets in retwrn seeking investments (such as
equities) and 50%% m liability matching assets {such as Gilts).
The Plan has a hedging programme invesiing in swaps and

Peked Ended ather derivatives in order to reduce the exposure 1o changes in
November  Decasriber - ) . .
T e . interest rates and inflation.
Profit and loss account .
Past servipe cost 5 4 5 - The table below presenis the fair value of Plan assets.
Adminisfration costs - 1 _ )
et Briarioe inc ome 't =13 § in mallong Cucked Ungpsobnd Tokal
Total credied to the profit and Ioss account A3 0f Hovember 2018
. = P - F]' = Equites 51,126 § = 51,120
Gther com prehensive income Gty 4aF - 4o¥
Retum o Plan sssots lesaigraabed) Swapi - ELH] 15
#an discount mbe ane (184 Cash and eash squivalets 108 = 108
Actuaral lossigan) = ket by sapanne in & kil - 8 d
Mctuarial lossitgein) = inancisl sssumpons Hom 48 Totd §1.731 i 52,022
Actuaral gain — demagraphi grony ) (&) 5 of Dycember 2017
Total gain recogrised in otber Equitai $1,042 3 - 51,082
comprehensive Incomse (81} 58 :: a0 31; :g
Total gefined benefit gain % (63) P -

L o L) Cash and cath equivaleris 133 = 133
Recenciliation of Pension Surplus il = - =
The table below presents a reconciliation of Plan asseis, Plan -
liabalities and the net pension surplus. Sensitivity Analysis

Faen P The table below presents a sensitivity analysis of Plan

§ in miSens aitati  Babltes [ liabilities for each significant actuanal assumption,
Az of January 1 SLE83 EIME $ 3 Impact to Plan Listilties
Paki gardon conl - 4 (4 Increase in assumpEion Cecrease in assamption
Adminiveation cow - - - % in mllans % 3 v ullans %
Mot Envmsc inst o 5 (580 E ﬁ.ﬁmmmm
Reetu Plan sssets Wlest) change in

th:umnl rale e L] - () dincount rabe 513 1.8 131 3
Astuarial gainious) = Kesdity 0.25% change i price

BEpiBNCE - T F inRation L] 6.0 1127 7.0
Bt I cairuil - " 1 year change in life

lnurr;unl B - 0% 403 Sopactancy L) 41 = [4.1)
Actuarial gain — dsmographi 5 ol December 2017

mTuEplong - 1 1" 0.24% change in
Erngicyer £ ortribuacens ar - ar iz eu rabe H1%2) L8] 50 L]
Banebia paid 124) H - uzﬂm i price
Farsign sachangs glinilos) 144 17 27 inBation 1" 1.3 172 T3
Ag of Havember 30 §2.202 S0, E18) % 406 1 yoar changs in life

- P CRANLY 104 4.4 {10c) [4.4)
s of A 1 $1159 08 5 53 N .
w,;l:r:# - - _ In the table above, the sensitivities are based on a change in
Administation o - 't I each assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.
Mt Beubseh inet v L 155 ¥ . o . L :
Restum o Plan sitets greatenisl There are inherent limitations in the sensitivity analysis, as

Ban discount ate T4 = 164 such whosyneratic movements are unbkely to occur. The
Actuarial gainffosx]} - kst ky methodology used to calculate the sensitivities are consistent
o Enancial . ® m across the two penods presented in the table above,

AvEUTREony - L2 (L]
HActuarial gain - demographic

aEumpons - &7 a7
Ermgigyer g entritatior. ] = 80
Bansdbs paid fLE] 12 -
Forsign sschangs gaindiloss) 22 {205) 18
A3 of Decamber 31 51663 MZ.MT) 5 3zt

68

306/375

oOoOooodn



GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UNMLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Mature of Future Cash Flows

Smnece the Plan's closure to future sccruals from March 31,
2016, the company has ceased to make regular contributions
inte the Plan but will continue to assess the funding
requirements of the Plan with the Trustees on a periodic basis,

On a trenmial Basis, a formal funding valuation of the Plan is
performed for the Trustees to assess the funding needs of the
Plan. This wvaluation differs from the actuarial valuation
regquired for scoounting purposes due 1o the use of different
assumplions.

The most recent funding vabsation was performed by a
quahfied mdependent actuary as of December 31, 2015, which
indicated that the Flan was in a funding deficit of £663
million. As of December 31, 2016, the company agreed with
the Trustees to contribute £73.3 mallion to the Plan, in two
instalments. The first instalment of £40.0 million (350 million)
wias made in January 2017, and the second instalment of £33.3
million (547 mullion) was made m January 2018 The
preliminary results of the next formal triennial valuation as of
December 2018 are likely to be available i the third quarter of
oo,

The company expects 537 million of benefits to be paid out of
the Plan to members in the twelve months after the period
ended Movember 20018

The weighted average duration of Plan labilities was 33 vears
as of Movember 2018,

Note 11,
Share-Based Payments

Stock Incentive Plan

Group Inc. spornsors a stock incentive plan, The Goldman
Sachs Amended and Hestated Stock Incentive Flan (2018)
(2018 SIP), which provides for, amongsi others, granis of
ESUs, restricted stock, dividend egquivalent rghts  and
incentive stock options, Om May 2, 2018, Growp Inc's
shareholders appeoved the 2018 SIP. The 2018 SIP replaced
The Goldman Sachs Amended and Restated Stock Incentive
Plan (2015) previously in effect, and applies to awards granted
on of after the date of approval.

i
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The company recorded share-based compensation in respect of
the amortisation of granted equity awards, net of forfeitures, of
3405 million for bath the period ended November 2018 and the
pericd ended December 2017, The comesponding credit to
equity has been transferred to liabilities as a result of the terms
of the chargeback agreement with Group Inc. under which the
company 15 committed o pay o Group Inc. the gram-date far
value as well as subsequent movements in the fair value of
those awards to Group Inc. at the time of delivery to its
employees.

Restricted Stock Units

Group Ine. grants RSUs (o the company’s emplovees under the
2018 SIP, which are generally valued based on the closing
price of the underlving shares on the date of grant after takimg
mte account a ligquidity discount for any applicable post-
vestmg and delivery transfer restnictions. RSUs generally vest
and underlying shares of common stock deliver (net of
required withholding tax) as cutlined in the applicable award
agreements. Emplovee award agreements generally  provide
that vesting is accelerated in certain circumstances, such as on
retirement, death, disability and conflicted employment.
Delivery of the underlymg shares of common stk 5
conditioned on the grantees satisfying certain vesting and other
requirements cutlined in the award agreements.

Stock Options

Stock options generally vest as outhined in the applicable stock
oplion agreement, In general, options expire on the tenth
anniversary of the grant date, althowgh they may be subject to
earlier termination or cancellation under cenain circumstances
in accordance with the terms of the applicable stock option
agreement and The Goldman Sachs Amended and Restated
Stock Incentive Plan in effect at the time of grant.

The table below presents options outstanding. All cutstanding
options as of November 2018 were granted in 2008,

Wsighilad Wimghbed

nrage i e

Optiens srecie  Pemaining e
Exdieing Prica auibanding P [y
575.00- SELE HBE STRIR o0F
Talal outstanding FITETE] srare [XT]
57500 SE0E0 525 656 iTRTR 100
Torel cutstanding B25 556 S7H.78 1.00

For those oplions exercised during the periad, the weighted
average share price at the date of exercise was 525352 for the
period ended November 2018 and 239,34 for the period ended
Diecember 2017,
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UNMLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Mote 12,
Tax on Profit

The table below presents an analysis of the company s tax on
profit.

Mote 13,
Fixed Assets
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The table balow presents fixed assets,

Ay ol
Period Ended Hovember D inimibesr
Wevember  December 3 iy s g 2017
% in 2018 207 Tangbls fioed assets 5 10 s 27
Currend tax intangble kud ssets T 182
LK, innatien ETR] 5267 Fived asset investments 1 1
Afustments m eespect of price parcds ar (28 Tolal fixed assets [=1E] 210
Ovprsans laxation 182 147
Total current tax [17] I8 Tangible Fixed Assets
The table below presents the movements in tangible fixed
Eifuerid b assels during the period,
Origination and reverial ol temporary dfences 180 119
Adjustmants in respect of price paiedh 3 n —
Tobal deferred lax 183 145 Leasshold fisings and
Totm tax on P iz 5534 & i mallions mprovemants souipmaent Total
Cost
The table below presents a reconcibiation between tax on profit s of Jamusury 1 54 1 B4
and the amount calculated by applying the weighted average At 1 - 1
rate of UK. corporation tax applicable 1o the company for the Dispraals *:' 1: [:'
pertod ended November 2018 of 270% (period ended A of Hovembar 30 3 &
December 2017: 27.25%) 1o the profit before taxation. Accumuiated depreciation
As of Jaraery 1 H g8 ar
Period Ended Charge kar the paried (168 Nets 5] 6 - 5
Hovember  Decteriser Disporals @ - @
S in miliens _2E 2T An of Howembar 30 ) ] ]
Proft befone tavation 1030 LA
Mt book valus
Proft erupliod by UK. corpecatn tax rate of s of Movesembar 2048 518 54 520
ﬂ.ﬂ&ll:pﬂw-dndndﬂccmml?':ﬂ.i‘ﬁj BB ST ol Doc T T oy E
Changes in gr and of
et 1 - ®  Intangible Fixed Assets
T —— The table below presents the movements in intangible fived
wndertakings for nil consideration - {50 assels during the period,
Effect of higher tnxes on ovssess samings 4 &
Exchange differences and other ) [} Azsets in the
iudustmaents in respect of pricr periods 0 1 Computes course of
Total tax on profit £ B2 5 534 § i malliong sofbware  constnacon Total
Corsl
s of Jarusary 1 13 10 214
AddeeadiTrandlsrs i 92 1w
Disponaly {11 - (11
Az of November 30 Ll 153 EFT]
Accumulated amortisation
Ay of Jasasnry 1 az = 3z
Charge for the perod (see Nobe 6] 57 - a2
Cinparals Hy = [l
Az of Movember 30 L] - 1]
Nt Dok valus
Ag ol Nevembar 2048 g i3 S04
A% of December 2017 5 m 101 02

0
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UNMLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Fixed Asset Investments

Fixed asset investments included investments other than loans
of 31 million as of both November 2018 and December 2017
and shares in subsidiary undertakings of %nil as of both
MNovember 2018 and December 20017,

The table below presents the subsidimry over which the
company exercized control as of Movember 2018

Helding
and
proportion  Class of
Hame of Country of of voting  shares Humber  Nature of
EArTY inc o wights hakd hald bBusiness
Goldman Sachs
{Caymran) Cayman Ordiraury Fmarcial
Lirrabed lslards 100%  shares 250 SIS

The registered office address of Goldman Sachs (Cayman)
Limited is the offices of Maples Corporate Services Limited,
PO Box 309, Uglsmd House, Grand Cayian, KY1-1104,
Cayman Islands.

The company has interests in a numbser of special purpose
entities and capital guaranteed funds which do net meet the
definition of a legal subsidiary, but give rise to the risks and
rewards that are, in substance, no different than if they were
legal subsaharies. The activities of these special purpose
entities and capital guaranteed funds consist of the issuance of
lean notes under the terms of a repackaging programme, These
special purposes entities and capilal guaranteed funds are
consolidated in the financial staterments of Group Ine.
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Maote 14,

Financial Instruments Owned and Financial
Instruments Sold, But Not Yet Purchased

Fimancial mstruments owned and Onancial instruments sold,
but not yet purchased consist of financial instruments and
investments within the operating activities of the COMmpany.
Fmancial mstruments owned includes fnancial instruments
owned pledged as collateral. See Mote 28 for further
information

The table below presents financial mstruments owmed.

Ay ad
Haovemiber Decombe

5 i ralliang 2018 217
Cadh |Fratruments
Meney markst instrurenls 5 41 5 434
Geveenmant and agency obligations 33,516 H 095
Mertgage and otfr ascet-backed loans

ard wecurting 485 1]
Corparabe debl intbrumants 16482 15,538
Equity tscuritist 30,567 35 G4
Comemadting i) 406
Tolal £ash inslruments 1,508 74,065
Derivvative i nstruments:
Interest rates 04, BEG 356,600
Crods 20483 30,158
U s 111,781 108,600
Commadtes 12644 11,22
Equies 64,679 58,328
Total derivative Irstruments S12,563 560,209
Total fimancial instram-ents owned 50,11 S840, 284

The table below presents financial instruments sold, but not yet
purchased

Az of
Navember Cecember

£ in millong 2018 207
Cash IFstruments
Goveenmant and agency obligations 5 L7000 3 13,055
Corporate debtinsuments. 488 2408
Equity securities A2 18,335
Commaodities F 3
Total cash instruments 47,600 35,7945
Derivative |nstruments.
Interest e 2B, TED 348 880
Cradt 26,080 2,108
(=10 =T 111,863 110,955
Comsmnodting 12754 11.H8e
Equities 50,897 56,654
Total derivative irsiruments A0E, 387 556,123
Tatal financial instraments sold, but not yet

purchased 545,087 $583.822

In the tables above:

« Corporate debt instruments includes corporate loans, debt
securities and other debt obligations.

« Equaty  secunities includes public and prvate equaties,
exchange-traded funds and convertible debentures,
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UNMLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 15,
Collateralised Agreements

The table below presents collateralised agreements.

An o
November  Decarber
3 in milicns 2018 27
Fpsale 8 gresments S1IT AT 122 80
Securities borowed TEEB0 el
Total collaleralised agreements ST 0M $204, 820
Inthe table above:

+« Total collateralised agreements included amounts dwe from
group underiakings of $129.75 hillion as of November 2018
and 511951 ballion as of December 2017

« Total collateralised agreements included balances due in
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Mote 17.
Deferred Tax

The table below presents the components of the company's
defermred tax asset.

i of

Navember Dbt
$ i mallions 2018 My
Dt e nisanon [TED 5677
Pastretrantent benebiy L5 ]
Timing differsmess redabed bo kosd asssts {68y 1)
Dubt valustion acjustment {12} 11
Total deterred tax 5256 5575

The table below presents changes in each component of the
company s deferred tax asset.

i of
maore than one year of $1.16 billion as of November 2015 and November  Decermbe
5522 million as of December 2017 § in mallkons 018 207
Deferred compensation
Bginning balance § 577 $672
Teansfer b the profi and loss scccunt (146} (L]
Hote 16, Ending balance 5431 5677
Post-retirament benelits
Debtors Bagiening balance 5 7o ER Y
Teansfer ba Bhe proSt and loss scccunt [ %
Tl.'r:- .l,a.'L'-lt below presents debtors balances. All debtors are due Tranater bo e compeahansivg income (4 (50
within one yvear of the balance sheet date, unless noted below Ending balmce % (o8} B
Timing Merences relaed o Nxed assels
Az of Begirning bal § i} 5 -
Hovembier  December Translir bo S proft and lows scsount 27 k]
5 in millions 2018 27 Ending balance 5 [hE) S A1)
Amaunits S rom brokarisaalan and cusl Lo FEL Tt watuadion sjusteent
Arnourts doe Trom parent snd goup undertaiings 12,301 10,386 Boginning balance $141 P
Dafared 1ax (308 Note 17} 256 575 Trinifin b e G hcaiaiiia ) -
Othwe deblors H e Ending balance % (131 EEED
Propaymnenis and accrusd incoms _3! i T“ T8 LAnS IR AOJUETFEnt
Total debiors (TR §74.067 Beginning balsncs : - & -
IFRS 15 araition adp e i -
Inthe table above: Tranalos bo B proft and loss sesount 1 -
. Ending balanc 5 - 5 -
« Amounts due from broker/dealers and customers included == u
balances due In more than one vear relating to prepaid Bapiening balance §578 5704
commodity contracts of Snil as of November 2015 and 344 IFRE 15 tasmition aduitme 1 -
million a5 of December 2017, Tranafer to e proft and kons sccoent
{an Mobs 13) {183} (148
+ Amounts due from parent and group undertakings included Trangfisr to cther compreh inesme {137} 16
balances due in more than one year relating to intercompany Ending balmnce S50 3576

loans of 3134 million as of November 2018 and $95 million
a3 of December 2017,

Amounts due from broker/dealers and customers and
amounts due from parent and group undertakings included
receivables from contracts with clients of 5338 millien as of
Nevember 2018 and $160 million as of December 2017,

Total debdors included financial assets of 364,49 billion as of
MNovember 2018 and S73.38 billion as of December 2017,
and non-financial assets of 3306 million as of November
2018 and 3674 million as of December 2017,

In the tables above, deferred compensation is mainly in respect
of share-based compensation,
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UNMLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Hote 18, Mate 19,

Collateralised Financings Other Creditors

The table below presents collateralised hnancmps. The table below presents other creditors.

Aol Anod
Hovemibier Decermber Navember Cupc bt

$ in milions 2008 w7 £ in malions 2018 217
Amounts Falling due within one year Amoaunts Talling due within cne yesr
Repurchass agresments & oS50 § 08 E2 Unsecunesd bormowings 5 e & 27544
Eecurities aned 56,032 B, 0o A due to brokendealers and 8T 57,675
Diobt securtes issusd 1,672 1,53 Amounts due bo parent and group wnderakings:

Gther bomowings 3,525 1, B8 Other unsecured credions 12465 16,210
Total F14, 840 5156059 Share-based Compensaton 418 02
Asnounts falling dus after mons than one year Corporation tax payable 127 (13
Repurchase agresments 5 5709 LN Other taxes and social security costs am F]
Securitios loared 27 03 Cothor credibors snd accruals w2y 1,088
Dbt necurities issuad L 408 Tolal T 87,151 S103584
‘Other bororwings 4,108 3888 Amounts falling due after more than one year
Total 510005 5 17T Uniscures Beerewings § 47461 § 30924
Total collateralised inancings 5152,145 5175447 Arnounts dus b paeent and group Enderakings:

Char unsbeured cradion: - 44

In the table above: Shari-bated compratan 575 a7

+ Repurchase agreements falling due after more than one year ::: T d-t.n:: 3 m:
included instruments that are repayable in more than five Tota ather creduers 155248 143314
vears of 574 million as of Movember 2018 and $53 million as
of December 2017 which had maturities falling due in 2030 In the table above:

« Dbt securities issued and other berrowings falling due after « Amounts falling due within one vear included financial
maore than ane year included instruments that are repavable in linhilities of 39669 hillion as of Movember 2018 and
more than five years of $2.21 billion as of November 2018 S103.22 hallion as of December 2017 and non-financial
and 51.30 hillion as of December 2017, As of Movember labilities of 5465 million a8 of MNovember 2018 and 5367
2018, these instruments have maturities falling due between million as of December 2017,

2023 and 20500 Pavments on these instruments are typically
referenced to underlving financial assets, which  are
predommately credit and equities-related.

« All amounts falling due after more than one year are financial
liabilities as of both MNovember 2013 and December 2017,

Total collateralised fmancings mncluded amounts due 1o
group undertakings of 398 80 hillion as of November 2018
and 5120036 hillion as of December 2017 of which 59590
billion as of Movember 2018 and $116.40 hillion as of
December 20017 are duwe within one vear,

Dbt securities issued and other borrowings are secured by
securities which have been pledged as collateral, This
pledged  collateral s either recogmised n financial
instruments  owned or sourced through collateralised
agreements.
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UNMLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Unsecured Borrowings
The table below presents unsecured borrowings.
s of
Hovember Dz

5 in milions 2012 2m7
Intercompany

Liakng 21,802 520278
Othae borrowinga aaz 778
“Bhort-term Inlercompany unsecured bomowings 22,128 066
Leans 32453 e
Eubeedinaled loans 5,377 5377
Othae bortmeings 1,539 1,800
LongAemm INGercompany Unstcured Dorrowings 49,169 To00T
Tolal Irlere o pany Undecursd Domowings S61,403 T5.152
Extammal

Bank loant 5 164 5 -
Croprdralis 153 73
Dhsbt e urens intued G AR 5324
Othar bomowings 0% 1,087
Short-term external undecured bomowings T.005 [T
Eank loans [] 170
Dbt wecurifies issued 17,854 16411
Gther bomowings Fard 246
Longderm extemal unsecured bormowings 18,082 16827
Total external unsecured bomowings £29,197 52,316
Total unsecured bomowings FE6,090 SH5 L50
Inthe table above:

« Dbt zecurities ssued and other borrowings falling due afier
more than one year ineluded instruments that are repayvable m
maore than five vears of 310.97 billion as of November 2018
and $9.46 hillion as of December 2017, As of Movember
2018, these instruments have maturities fallimg due between
2023 and 2057, Paymenis on these instruments are I:.rpicall}'
referenced to underlving financial assets, which are
predommately interest rates, equities and currencies-related.

Intercompany loars falling due after mofe than one vear
included loans that are repayable in more than five vears. As
of Movember 2015, the company had variable rate loans of
51.03 billion with maturities falling due between Apnil 8,
2024 and April 7, 2028, As of December 2017, the company
had variable rate loans of $1.21 billion with matrities falling
due between February 8, 2023 and December 22, 2027.

74

EDINETOOOO

OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

Debt Valuation Adjustment

The company calculates the fair value of financal habilities
that are designated at fair value through profit or loss by
discounting future cash flows at a rate which incorporates G5
Giroup’s credit spreads,

The table below presents information aboul the net DVA
gainai{losses) on such financial liabilities that are designated at
fair value through profit or loss and included in debt valuation
adjustment in other comprehensive iIncome.

Pericd Erded

Navember Decarmbar
§ i mallong 2018 2017
[ ] #ES B

The table below presents information about the cumulative net
DWA  painsi{losses)  included in accumulaied  other
comprehensive income n the statements of changes inequity.

Anof
November  Cuecembss
§ i mallong MR 207
DA preeta) 554 H411)
Long-Term Subordinated Loans
Long-term  subordmated  loans  comsist  of  kong-term

subordinated Ioans from parent and group undertakings, which
are unsecured and carry interest al @ margin over the U5
Federal Reserve's Federal Funds rate. The margin 15 reset on a
periodic basis to reflect changes in G5 Group's weighted
average cost of debt, Long-term subordinated loans constitute
regilatory capital as approved by the PRA, subject 1o any
regulatory capital deductions, and are repayable subject to
FRA approval,

Long-term subordinated loans of 5538 hilhon as of both
MNovember 2018 and December 2017 were repavable between
December 26, 2024 and September 9, 2025, The company
repard 53.58 hillion of long-term subordinated loans with the
agreement of the lenders in June 2017,

Liabilities From Financing Activities

Lighilities from financing activities consist of the company’s
long-term subosdinated loans and associated sccrued interest,
See the “Statements of Cash Flows™ for movements in the
company’s long-term subordinated loans, Accrued mterest on
the company’s long-term subordirated loans for the period
ended Movember 2018 decreased by 5183 million, due o
payments of 554 million, partally offset by interest accrved of
%237 million. Accrued interest on the company's long-term
subordinated loans for the penod ended December 2017
decreased by 3286 million, due to payments of 5587 million,
partially offset by interest accrued of $301 million.
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UNMLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Mote 20,
Provisions for Liabilities
The 1able below presents provisions for habilities, which are in

respect of legal and regulatory procecdings in which the
company 15 involved,

£ in méllons 2018
Az of January 1 10
Gharge bo the probt and ks accoust L1
A5 of Hovember 30 e

Further details relating to the provisions have not been
disclosed as permitted by [AS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets’, on the grounds that for
commercial and confidentiality reasons it would be seriously
prejudicsl to do so.

Hote 21,
Share Capital

The table below presents share capital.

Ordinary sharis
Adlorted, called up and flly paid of $1 each 5 dn millNons
Az of January 1. 2018 581,004,161 B2
Allomad during the parod 17,200,000 i
Canceled dunng S period (17,300, 000) {17}
s of Hovember 30, 3018 E‘I.Nl.iﬂ §aR1

In order to simplify the company’s capital structure, on May
10, 2018, the company allotted 173 million ordinary shares of
51 each o GSG UK for nil comsideration. The company
subsequently cancelled 17.3 million ordinary shares for nil
consideration, resulting in a reduction in the company’s nom-
distributable capital reserve by 5173 mallon arnd an increase in
its profit and loss account in sharcholder's funds by 5173

million

Nota 22,
Other Equity Instruments

Crther equity instruments consist of 8,300 ursecured Additional
Teer | netes (AT] notes) of 51 million each issued to GSG Uk
far @ total consideration of 3830 billion. These were 1ssuad in
two tranches: 5,800 AT notes were 1ssued in June 2017 and
carry a non-cumulative ficed mterest rate of 8.55% per annum
and 2,500 AT notes were issued in Movember 20138 and carry
a non-cumulative fixed interest rate of 3.67% per annum. The
non-cumubative fixed interest 15 payable at the company’s
discretion  subject 1o certain  solvency and regulatory
conditions. The AT] notes have no fixed matunty date and are
not callable.
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The AT1 notes will be imevocably wntten-down m the event
that the CET1 ratio of the company or the G3G UK Group falls
below T

The company pad inerest of $503 million on the AT] motes
on Movember 20, 2018 after assessing the applicable solvency
add  regulmtory  comditions.  The amount recogmised in
shareholder’s funds for the period ended November 2018 was
%5367 milhon, net of tax

The company paid imerest of $201 million on the AT motes
on Movember 20, 2017 after assessing the applicable solvency
and regulatory condiions. The amount recognised in
shareholder™s funds for the peried ended December 2017 was
£146 millien, net of tax

Mate 23,
Dividends

The direetors declared and paid an intenim dividend of 32,50
hillion on Movember 30, 2008 to GS3G UK representing $4.30
per share,

The directors declired and pasd interim dividends of $500
million on June 27, 20017 and 52,50 billion on June 28, 2017 1o
GS5G UK, represeniing 30,86 per share and $4.30 per share,
respectively.

MNote 24.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The tble below presents cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the statements of cash flows

As ol
Naiember December
§ in mlions MR iy
Cash at bank snd in Fasd 24,300 520,727
Crenrdraks (ses Mote 15 {153y T
Total cash and cash equivalents 524,241 520,654

In the 1able above, cash at bank and in hand included cash that
15 not available for use by the company of $3 44 bilhon as of
Movember 2018 and 33,20 hllon as of Decembser 2007,
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UNMLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

HNote 25,

Reconciliation of Cash Flows From

Operating Activities

The table below presents the reconcilistion of cash Mows from
OpeTaEting activities.
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Note 26.
Financial Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments and Contingencies
The table below presents commitments and contingencies.

s of
) November  Decamb
R P"""E"“:,"d = Sin 7018 2017

o Contingent and fanwand damng
ih 3 s:le;: 3 ::f:;' enlateenkand agrenmants $80,530 S50 758
:::-“mmh?" ' Ferward stafing colaber sbued Snancngs FIALL] 20,511
Deprecistion and amsetisation (ses Motes § and 1) a2 R E: 2._411: Sl;%
Loss on disposal of fved assets L] = -
Cradt for defined benafit Mot 2 . . .. .
Reraign sxchangs |Mt"k:;‘ .10 ,l,g: 1,608 Commitments and contingencies included balances with group
Sharebased comp T 249 574 undertakings of $23.13 billion as of Movember 2018 and
IFRE1S transition adustment W = %5113 hillion as of December 2017,
Frowisiors for kabiities L3 10
Interual payeble and similar sepentes [see Note §) FED Eall Forward starting collateralised agreements includes resale and
Cashg d bafore changes in cpamting sor2 . securities  borrowing  agreements, and  forward  starting

L - - collateralised financings includes repurchase and secured
Ghanges in operafing ssets lending agreements that settle at a future date, generally within
Dieeraann i Enaseial imsirments semned 46,135 Fed ) three business davs The company also  enters  nio
Dottt )i eolisteralined ag 148 120, 220 commitments to provide contingent financing to its clients and
DacseaveAincriens) in deblors J'm Eﬁj counterparties through resale agreements. The company’s
Changes i opersting snests : - funding of these commitments depends on the satisfaction of
Changes in operating liabilties all comracial conditions to the resale agreememt and these
Decrease in Bnancial irstruments COmMELMents can expire unused,

woid, Bt not yo! purchased {42,005 {23, 2l
L L i i collateralined francing: 27,258 r commilments primanily relate to collateral commitments.

{2,303 Othe nils Iy relate to collateral iments

create in e creditors 11,827 1877
_Changes in operating kbt {55,610 4347 In addition, there are negistered charges on the company’s
Coniributions pakl io delined banelt plen assets which have arisen in the ordinary course of business.

{soa Mote 10} “wn (50}
Casl geniratid from operations § 5,040 3 3508 Leases

In the table above, cash gencrated from operations included
interest paid of $6.76 billion for the period ended November
2018 and 54.02 billion for the period ended December 2017,
and mterest received of 36.36 billion for the period ended
Movember 2018 and 34.59 ballion for the pericd ended
December 2017, The interest paid and interest received for the
penod ended Decembser 2017 has mereased by 51.45 billion 1o
conform to the current period’s presentation. See Note 4 for
further information.

The company leases certain buildings under long-term mon-
cancellable lease agreements. Under these lease agreements,
which are subject to renegotiation at vanous intervals specified
in the leases, the company pavs all insurance, maintenance and
repairs of these properties,

The table below presents total future mirimum rental payments
under non-cancellable operating leases for each of the
following periods.

An o
Hovember Ccember
£ in mlllons 018 2m7
Loss than one year 5 B2 588
Between one and fve years 113 17
Crwar e yoars ] ]
Total 201 5271

Tetal funere mimmum sublease payments expecied 1o be
receved under non-cancellable subleases were 521 million as
of November 2018 and 536 as of December 2017
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Legal Proceadings

The company 15 involved in a number of judicial, regulatory
and arbitration proceedings (including those described below)
cOnCeming matters arising in connection with the conduct of
the company’s business, however it 15 nol praciicable to
reliably estimate the Onancial impact, if any, of these
proceedmes on the company, except as disclosed inMote 20,

1Malaysia Development Berhad (1MDB)-Related
Matters. G5 Group has receved subpoenas and requests for
documents and information from vanous governmental and
regulatory bodies and self-regulatory crganisations as part of
investigations and reviews relating 1o [inancing ransaclions
and other matters involving 1MDE, a sovereign wealth fund in
Malaysia. Subsidiarses of Group Inc., incleding the company,
acted as arrangers of purchasers of approsamately 56,5 ballion
of debt securities of 1MDB.

On November 1, 2018, the U.S. Department of Justice (D00
unsealed a eriminal information and gwllty plea by Tim
Leissner, a former participating managing director of GS
Group, and an indictment against Ng Chong Hwa, a former
managing director of G5 Group, and Low Tack Jho Lemssner
pleaded guilty to a two-count criminal information charging
him with conspiring to launder money and corspiring to
vialate the U.S. Foreign Corrupd Practices Act’s (FCPA) anti-
bribery and intermal accounting controls provisions. Low and
Mg were charged in a three-count indictment with conspiring to
launder money and conspining to vielate the FCPA's anli-
bribery provisions. Cn August 28, 2018, Leissner's guilty plea
was accepled by the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District
of Mew York and Leissner was adjudicated guilty en both
counts, Mg was also charged in this indictment with conspiring
to vielate the FCPA™s internal accounting controls provisions.
The charping documents state, among olher things, that
Leissner and Mg participated in a conspiracy 1o misappropriate
proceeds of the 1MDE offerings for themselves and to pay
bribes 1o various government officials 1o obtain and retain
IMDE business for GS Group. The plea and charging
documents indicate that Leissner and Mg knowingly and
willfully circumvented G5 Group’s sveem of  internal
accounting comtrols, in part by repeatedly lying o control
persomnel and  mtemal committees  that reviewed  these
offerings. The indictment of Mg and Low alleges that G5
Group's system of imermal aceounting controls could be easily
crrcumvented and that GS Group's business  culture,
particularly  in  Southeast  Asia, at  times  priontised
consummation of deals shead of the proper operation of ils
comphance functions. In addition, an unnamed participating
managing director of GS Group is alleged to have been aware
of the bribery scheme and to have agreed not to disclose this
information 1o GS Group’s compliance and eontrol personnel.
That employee, who was identified as a co-conspirator, has
been put on administrative leave,

7
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On December 17, 2018, the Aftorney General of Malaysia
ismued a press statemendt that (i) criminal charges in Malaysia
had been filed against the company, as the amanger of three
offerings  of debt  secunties of IMDEB, aggregating
approximately 36,5 mllion in principal amount, for alleged
disclosure defickencies in the offering documents relating to,
among other things, the use of proceeds for the debt securtties,
(1) two other subsidiaries of Group Inc, Leissner, Low and
Jasming Loo Ax Swan had been cnminally charged in
Malaysia, and MNg would be charged shortly, and ()
prosecutors i Malavsia will seek criminal fines against the
aceused in excess of 32,7 bilhon plus the $600 milhon of fees
recewved in connection with the debt offerings.

GS Group has receved multiple demands, beginning in
Movember 2018, from alleged shareholders under Section 220
of the Delaware General Corporation Law for books and
records  relating te, among other things, G5 Group's
mvelvernent with 1MDE and its compliance procediures.

On February 19, 2019, a pwported shareholder derivative
action felating 1o 1MDE was filed inthe US, Distnal Court for
the Southern District of New York against Group Inc. and the
current directors and a former chairman and chief executive
officer of GS Group, The complaint, which seeks usspecified
damages and disgorgement, alleges breaches of fiduciary
duties, including in connection with alleged insider trading by
centain current ard former difectors, unjust enrichiment, gross
mismanagzement and violations of the anti-fraud provisions of
the Exchange Act, including in connection with Group Inc.’s
common stock repurchases and solicitation of praxies.

On November 21, 2018, a summons with notice was filed n
the MNew York Supreme Court, Mew York County, by
International  Petroleum  Investment  Company,  which
guaranteed certain debt securities issued by IMDB, and its
subsidiary Aabar Investments PJS. The summons with notice
makes unspecified claims relating o IMDE and secks
unspecified compensatory and punitive damages and other
relief against Group Inc. and a mumber of Group Inc’s
subsidianies, mcluding the company, Leissner, Mg, and an
emplovee of G35 Group, as well as individuals (who are not
emplovees of G3 Group) formerly associated with  the
plairiifls.

On December 20, 20018, & putative secusities ¢lass action
lawsuit was filed in the U5 District Court for the Southem
Matrict of Mew York against Group Inc. and certain current
and former officers of G5 Group alleging violations of the anti-
fravd provisions of the Exchange Act with respect to Group
Ine."s disclosures concerning 1MDE and seeking unspecified
damages.
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G% Group is cooperating with the DOJ and all other
governmental and regulatory mvestigations relating to | MDEB.
Proceedings by the DOJ or other governmental or regulatory
authorities could result in the imposition of significant fines,
penalties and other sanctions against G5 Group, including
restrictions on G5 Group's activilies,

Interest Rate Swap Antitrust Litigation. The company is
among the defendants named in a pulative antitrust class action
relating 1o the trading of imerest rate swaps, fled in November
2015 and consolidated in the US. District Cowrt for the
Southern District of Mew York The company 15 also among
the defendants named in two antitrust actions relating 1o the
tradimg of mterest rate swaps, commenced 1 Apnil 2016 and
June 2018, respectively, in the U5 District Court for the
Southern Distnct of New York by three operators of swap
execution facilities and certain of therr affiliates. These actions
have been consolidated for pretnal proceedings. The
complaints generally assent claims under federal antitrust law
and stale common law in connection with an  alleged
comspiracy among the defendants to preclude exchange trading
of interest rate swaps. The complaints in the indivadual actions
also assent clamms under sate antitrust law. The complaints
seek declaratory and myunctive relief, as well as treble

damages in an unspecified amout,

Defendants moved to dismiss the class and the first individual
action on January 20, 2017, On July 28, 2017, the district court
issued a decision dismissing the state common law claims
asserted by the plamtiffs in the frst individual action and
ctherwise limiting the stale common law claim in the putatave
class action and the antinst claims in both actions 10 the
period from 2013 1o 20016, On May 30, 2018, plaintiffs in the
putative class action filed a third consoldated amended
complaint, adding allegations as to the swviving claims, On
Oetober 26, 2018, plantiffs in the putative class action filed a
moetion for leave to file a fourth amended complaint. On
Movermber 20, 2018, the count granted i part and denied in
part the defendants’ motion to dismiss the second individual
action, dismissing the state common law claims for wnjust
enrichment and tortious irterference but denying dismissal of
the federal and state antitrust claims.

]
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Credit Default Swap Antitrust Litigation. The company
15 among the defendants mamed in an antitrust action relating to
the trading of credit default swaps filed in the U5, District
Court for the Southem Distnict of MNew York on June 8, 2017
by the eperator of a swap execution facility and certain of its
affiliates. The complaint generally asserts claims under federal
and state antitrust laws and state common law in connection
with an alleged conspiracy among the defendants to preclude
trading of credit defaull swaps on the plaintiffs’ swap
execution facility, The complaint seeks declarstory and
injunctive relief, as well as treble damages in an unspecified
amount, Defendants moved to dismiss on September 11, 2017,

Commedities-Related Litigation, The company 15 among
the defendants named in putative class actions relating to
trading in platinum and  palladum, fled bepinning on
Movember 25, 2014 and most recently amended on May 15,
2017, in the US, District Court for the Southern Dnstrict of
MNew York, The amended complaint generally alleges that the
defendants violated federal antitnest laws and the Commaodiy
Exchange Act in connection with an alleged conspiracy to
manipulate a benchmark for physical platinum and palladium
prices and seck decliratory and imunctve rehef, as well as
treble damages in an unspecified amount. Defendants moved to
dismizs the third consolidated amended complaint on July 21,
207

Regulatory Investigations and Reviews and Related
Litigation. Group Ine. and certain of its affiliates, including
the company, are subject to a number of other investipations
and reviews by, and in some cases have recewved subpoenas
and requests for documents and mformation from, various
governmental and repulstory  bodies and  self-regulmory
organisations and litigation relating to vanows matters relating
to G5 Group's businesses and operations, ncleding:

« The 2008 financial crisis;

= The public offering process;

= Investment management and Onancial advisory services,
« Conflicts of interest;

« Transactions involving governmenti-related financings and
other matters,

316/375

oOoOooodn
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« The offermg. avetion, sales, trading and clearance of
corporate and  povernment  secunibies,  cumencies,
commodities and other financial products and related zales
and other communications and actvities, as well as G35
Group's supervision and controls relating to such activities,
including compliance with applicable short sale rules,
algonthmic, high-frequency and quantitative trading, futures
trading, options trading, when-issued trading, transaction
reparting, technology svatems and controls, securnities lending
practces, trading and  clearance of credit  dervative
istruments and inlerest rate swaps, commodities activities
and metals storage, private placement practices, allocations
of and trading 1 securities, and trading activities amd
communications 1n connection with the establishment of
‘benchmark rates, such as currency rates;

« Comphance with the UK. Bribery Act and the FCPA;
» Hiring and compensation practices,
« System of risk management and controls, and

« Insider trading. the potential misuse and dissemination of
material non-public information regarding corporate and
governmental developments and the effectiveness of msider
trading controls and information barriers.

In additicn, investigations, reviews and litigation mvolving the

company™s affiliates and such afliliates” businesses and

operations, including various matters referred 1o above but also
other matters, may have an mmpact on the company’s
businesses and operations,

Mote 27,

Financial Risk Management and Capital
Management

Ceriain disclosures in relation to the company’s financial risk
management and capital mamagement have been presented
alongside other risk management and regulatory information in
Part 1 of this annual report and are identified as audited, where
relevant,
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Mote 28.
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities by Category
The tables below present the carrying value of financial assets
and financial Babilities by category.

Firnansial Agtely
Mandatonly Arncetived
3 in malliong i far vk sanld Total
As of Hovember 2018
Financisl instrurmeats S k] - 3504130
Collaterbsed sgreaments 148,767 56,567 1M
Dabters ™o 63,597 B4 4ET
Cash at bank and in band = 24,398 908
Tota financial awsels 57416806 F144, BE0 SARE,HE
Held for  Cwsignabed  Lomns and
3 i mallong radng 6t firvalue  recelakies Total
£ of December 2017
Financial in@rurmdats owned S840 2684 3§ - 3 =S40 24
Collstpralised spreammnts - 140, 350 B4 460 S, B0
Duwbtors - 853 T2725 TRATR
Cash at bank and in kand = - 7T 0,727
Total fnancial assels S50 284 Fi4i013 ET A2 550018
Finaneial Lisbiitiey
Held for  Dasignated  Amaodived
§ i mallang trading &bl valus [0 Total
As of November 2018
Amounts Taling due within one year

Financial instrumsents sobd,
bt o yet puechased  SMLEET § - % = SS9

Collsteralised fnancings - o7 465 43975 AR

Other credibors = B694 7602 ]

Tatal A R 106,559 131,067 T4, 313
“Amoants Talling ouwe alter more than one year

Collgtambied Endrsings - 10,305 = 10,305

Cher creditons = 42,338 15,850 4,005
ETT - 52,581 5858 8400

Tatal financial abilimes  SS508F  $150,100 $ATERE 5352813

Amipunts falling due within one year
Financial insfrursenty sold,

bt mot yel purchased  S88ROZ 5 - % - $8ESEED
Collatiriled Barsngt - 113047 44,122 158,069
Ciher credibors - 7,784 2543 103,217
Total SE. T2 121,73 13555 851,208
Amounts fallng due after more than one year
Collsteralised fnanrcings - 17,378 - 17,378
Crther creditors = H.048 16584 8,730
T - 3,424 12584 &7, 108

Total Snancial iabistes, TSR0 U S160.155 5150230 S900,318

In the tables above:

« Financial assets have been prepared under IFRS © as of
MNovember 2018 and under [TAS 39 as of December 2017,
See Mote 2 for further information

« Financial instruments owned included derivative instruments
designated as hedges of 526 million as of Movember 2013
and 338 million as of December 2017,
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Fair Value Hierarchy

The farr value of a financial instrument 15 the amount that
woutld be received 1o sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. Financial assets are marked to bid prices
and fnancial habilities are marked to offer prices. Fair value
measurements do notl inelsde transaction costs. The company
measures cerfain financial assets and financial liakilities as a
portfolio {i.e., based on its net exposure to market and'or credit
risks),

UK. GAAP has a three-level hierarchy for disclosure of fair
value measurements. This hierarchy priorilises inputs to the
valuation techmgques used to measure [ar value, giving the
highest priority to level 1 mputs and the lowest prionty to level
3 mputs. A [nancial instrument’s level in the hierarchy is
based on the lowest level of input that 15 sigmificant to is fair
value measurement.

The fair value hierarchy 15 as follows:

Lewvel 1. Inputs are uradjusted quoted prices in active markets
to which the company had access a1 the measurement date for
identical, unrestricted assets or labilities,

Level 2. Inputs to valuation techniques are chservable, either
directly or indirectly.

Level 3. One or more inputs to valuwation techriques are
significant and unobservable.

The farr values for substartially all of the company”s Gnancial
assets and financial liabilities that are fair valued on a recurring
baziz are based on observable prices and inputs and are
classified in levels | and 2 of the fair value hierarchy, Certain
level 2 and level 3 Anancial assets and Gnancial liabalities may
require appropriate valuation adjustments that a market
participant would reguire to arrive al fair value for factors such
as counterparty and the company's and GS Group's credit
quality, funding risk, transfer restrictions, liqudity and
bid'offer spreads. Valuation adjustements are generally based on
market evidence.
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Valuation Techniques and Significant Inputs

Cash Instruments. Cash imstruments include govemment
and agency obligations, corporate debt instruments, equity
segurities, and other non-derivative financial  instruments
owned and financial instruments sold, but ot yet purchased.
Valuation technigues and sigrificant inputs for each level of
the fair value hierarchy include:

Level 1 Cash Instrumenis

Level 1 cash imstrumients are valued using quoted prices for
wdentical unrestncted Instruments In active markets. The
company defines active markets for equity instruments based
o the average daily trading volume both in absalute terms and
relative to the market capitalisation for the instrument. The
company defines active markets for debt instruments based on
bedh the average daily trading volume and the number of dayvs
with trading activity.

Level 2 Cash Instruments

Level 2 cash mstruments can be venfied to quoted prices,
recent trading activity for identical or similar instruments,
broker or dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources with
reasonable levels of price transparency. Consaderalion s given
to the nature of the quotations (¢.z.. indicative or firm) and the
relationship of recent market activity to the prices provided
from allemative pricing sources.

Valuation adjustments are typically made 1o level 2 cash
mstruments (1) 1f the cash mstnument 15 subject o ransfer
restrictions andior (1) for other premiums and ligquedity
discounts that a market participant would require to arrive at
fair value. Valuation adjustments are generally based on
market evidence.

Lovel 3 Cash Instruments

Level 3 cash instuments have one or more significant
valuation inputs that are not observable. Absent evidence 1o the
contrary, level 3 cash instruments are initially valued at
transaction price, which s conmdered to be the best inmal
estimate of far value. Subsequently, the company uses other
methodologies to determine fair value, which vary based on the
type of instrument. Valution mpuls and assumplions are
changed when corroborated by substantive  observable

evidence, including values realised on sales of financial assets.
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Valuation techniques of level 3 cash imstruments vary by
insirument, but are generally based on discounted cash flow
techniques. The valwtion techniques and the nature of
significant inputs used to determine the fair values of each type
of level 3 cash instrument are descnbed below;

« Mortgages and Other Asset-Backed Loans and
Securities. Significant inputs are generally determined
based on relative value analyses and include:

« Market vields implied by transactions of similar or related
assels,

« Tramsaction prices in both the underlying collateral and
instruments with the same or similar underlying collsteral;

» Current performance of the borrawer or loan collateral and
recovery assumptions if a default ocours; and

» Timing of expected futwe cash Mows (duraton) which, in
certain  cases, may incorporate the impact of other
wnobservable mpass (e g, prepayment speeds),

Corporate Debt Instruments and Government and
Agency Obligations. Sigrnificant inputs are generally
determined  based on relative value analyses, which
incorporate companisons both to prices of credn default
swaps that reference the same or similar underlying
instrument or entity and to other debt instruments for the
same issuer for which ohservable prices or broker quotations
are available, Significant inputs incluwde:

« Market vields implied by transactions of similar or related
assets,

« Current levels and changes in market indices, such as the
iTraes and CDX (indices that track the performance of
corporate credit),

« Current performance of the borrower or loan collateral and
recovery assumptions il a default occurs; and

« Maturity and coupon profile of the instrument

Equity Securities. Equity secusities includes private equity
securities and convertible debentures. Recent third-party
completed or pending transactions (e.g., merger proposals,
temder offers, debt restructurings) are considered 1o be the
best evidence for any change in far value. When these are
not available, the following wvaluation methodologies are
used, as appropriate;

+ Industry multiples and public comparables;
» Transactions in similar instruments, and

» Discounted cash flow technigues,

&l

-

-

EDINETOOOO

OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

Derivative Instruments. Derivatives may be traded on an

exchange (exchange-traded) or they may be privately

negotiated contracts, which are wually referred o as OTC

derivatives. Certain of the company's OTC derivatives are
cleared and settled through central clearing counterparties
(OTC=cleared), while others are bilateral contracts belween
two counterparties (balateral OTC).

The company’s level 2 and level 3 derivatives are valued using

dervative pricing models {e.g., discounted cash flow medels,
correlation models, and models that incorporate option pricing

methodologies, such as Monte Carlo simulations). Price

transparency of derivatives can generally be characterised by
product type, as described below.

« Interest Rate. In general the kev inputs used to value

interest rate derivatives are transparent, even for most long-
dated contracts. Interest rate swaps and options denominated
in the currencies of leading industrialised nations are
charactensed by high trading volumes and tught bid/offer
spreads, Interest rate denvatives that reference mdices, such
as an inflation index, or the shape of the vield curve (eg., 10-
vear swap rate vs 2-vear swap rale) are more complex, bat
the key inputs are generally observable.

Credit. Price transparency for credit default swaps,
including both single names and baskets of credits, varies by
market and underlying reference entity or obligation. Credit
default swaps that reference indices, larpe corporates and
major  sovercigns  generally  exhibit the most prce
transparency. For credit default swaps with other underliers,
price transparency varies based on credit ratmg, the cost of
bomrowing the underlying reference obligations, and the
availability of the underlving reference ohbligations for
delivery wpon the default of the issuer. Credit defoult swaps
that reference boans, asset-backed secunties and emerging
market debt instruments tend to have less price transparency
than those that reference corporate bonds. In addition, more
complex credit derivatives, swh as those sensitive 1o the
comrelation between two or more underlying reference
obligations or 1o secured funding spreads. generally have less
price Llransparency.

Currency. Prices for cwrency derivatives based on the
exchange rates of leading industrialised nations, mcluding
those with lomger temors, are generally transparent. The
primary difference between the price tramsparency of
developed and emerging market currency denvatives 15 that
emerging markets tend to be observable fof contracts wath
sharter tenors.
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« Equity. Price transparency for equity derivatives vanes by
market and underlier. Ophions on indices and the common
stock of corporates included in major equity indices exhibit
the most price transparency. Equity derivatives generally
have observable market prices, except for contracts with long
tenors or reference prices that differ sigmficantly from
current market prices. More complex equity derivatives, such
as those sensitive to the comelation between two or more

individual stocks, generally have less price transparency,

Liguidity 15 essential to ohservabality of all product types. If
trarsaction volumes decline, previously transpanent prices and
cther inputs may become unobservable. Conversely, even
highly structured products may at times have trading volumes
large encugh to provide chservability of prices and other
ngiuls,

Level 1 Derfvatives

Level 1 dervatives include shon-lerm contracts for fulure
delivery of secunties when the underlving security 15 a bevel 1
instrument, and exchange-traded derivatives if they are actively
tended and are valwed at their quoted market price

Level 2 Derivatives

Level 2 derivatives inclede OTC derivatives for which all
significant valuation inpuis are cosroborated by market
evidence and exchange-traded derivatives that are not actively
traded and'or that are valued using models that calibrate to
market-cleanng levels of OTC dervatives. In evaluating the
significance of a valuation nput, the company considers,
among other factors, a portfolio’s net risk exposure to that
input.

The selection of a particular model to value a derivative
depends on the contractual terms of and specific risks inherent
in the mstrument, as well as the availability of pricing
information in the market. For denvatives that trade in hiquid
markets, model selection does not involve  significant
management judgement because outputs of models can be
calibrated to market-clearing levels.

Vahmtion models require a vanety of inputs, swuch as
contractual terms, market prices, yield curves, discount rates
(mcluding those derived from interest rates on collateral
recenved and posted as specified m credil suppornt agreements
for collateralised denivatives), credit curves, measures of
vaolatility and correlations of such nputs. Significant inputs to
the valuations of level 2 derivatives ean be verified to market
rarsactions, broker or dealer quatations or other alternative
pricing sources with reasonable levels of price transparency.
Comsideration 13 given 1o the matwre of the quotations (e.g.,
indicative or firm) and the relationship of recent market
activity to the prices provided from alternative pricing sources.
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Level 3 Derivatives

Level 3 denvatives are valued using models which utilise
obgzervable level 1 amdlor level 2 inputz, as well as
unchzervable level 3 inputs. Unobservable inputs include
certain comelations, illiquid credit and secured funding
spreads, recovery rates and certain equily and interest rate
velatilites

Subsequent to the initial valuation of a level 3 derivative, the
company updates the level 1 and level 2 inputs 1o reflect
observable market changes and any resulting gains and losses
are classified in level 3. Level 3 inputs are changed when
corroborated by evidence such as similar market transactions,
third-party pricing services andfor broker or dealer quotations
or other empincal market data. In circumstances where the
company canned verilfy the model value by reference 1o market
transactions, it s possible that a different valuation model
could produce a materially different estimate of fair value. See
below for Durther information abowt significant unobservable
nputs used 1 the valuation of level 3 dervatives.

Where there 15 a difference between the initial transaction price
and the fair value caleulated by internal models, 4 gain of loss
15 recogrised afler imbal recognition only o the extent that it
arises from a change in a factor (including time) that market
participants would consider in setting a price

Valuation Adjustments

Valuation adjustments ane imegral to determining the fair value
of denvative portfolios and are used to adjust the mid-market
vahmtions produced by derivative pricing models to the
appropriate exit price valuation. These adjsiments incorparate
bidioffer spreads. the cost of hguidity, credit valuation
adjustments and funding valuation adjustments, which account
for the credit and funding risk inherent in the uncollateralised
portion of denvative portfolics. The company also makes
funding valuation adjustments to collateralised derivatives
where the terms of the agreement do not permit the company o
deliver or repledge collateral received. Market-based inpuis are
generally wsed when cabbrating valuation adjustments to
market-cleanng levels,

In  addition, for denvanves that include sigmificant
uncbservable inputs, the company makes model or exit price
adjustments (o account for the valuation uncerainty present in
the transaction
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Other Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.
Vabeation techniques and sipnificant inputs of other financial
assets and financial liabilities include:

+ Resale and Repurchase Agreements and Securities
Borrowed and Loaned. The sigrificant inputs to the
valuation of resale and repurchase agreements and securities
borrowed and loaned are funding spreads, the amount and
timing of expected future cash ows and interest rates

» Debtors, Debtors measured at fair value primanily consist of
secured lending and prepaid commodity contracts. The
smficant inputs 1o the valuation of such receivables are
commaodity prices, interest rates, the amount and timing of
expected future cash flows and funding spreads.

« Other Secured Financings. The signuficant mputs o the
valmtion of secured debt sccurities 1ssued and other
borrowings measured at fair value are the amount and uming
of expected fiture cash flows, interest rates, funding spreads,
the fair value of the collateral delivered by the company
{which s determined using the amount and tuming of
expected future cash flows, markel prices, market yields and
recovery assumptions) and the frequency of additional
collateral calls,

Other Creditors. The sigmficant inputs to the valuation of
unsecured other creditors measured at far valwe are the
amount and tming of expected future cash flows, nterest
rates, the credit spreads of G3 Group, as well az commodity
prices in the case of prepaid commodity contracts. The inputs
used 1o value the embedded derivative component of hybrid
financial mnstruments are consistemt with the inputs used 1o
value the company”s cther denvative instruments
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Fair Value of Financial
Liabilities by Level

The table below presemts, by level within the fair value
hierarchy, financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
fair value on a recurr ng basis.

Assets and Financial
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$ iy mlions _ Levall  Lewvel 2 Leveld Total
As of Hovember 5018

Finanial Asdes

Cash insruments 53205 % FFaTe 5 1,081 § ®1.566
Dbl v i il 17 S0R31% 4,21 512,563
“Financial Inmuments camed | 83,222 535,303 ERIT TR
Collaterabond syraamrs - METET - e7ET
Dabbors - o - Fan
Total financial assets $53,272 SBE3I50 % 5314 5741686
Financial Lisbilities

Ampunts Talling duse within one year

Cash insrurrsnts 2051 % 4837 0§ 12 % 47 500
Darivative nstuments i 485,003 2373 AR IRT
“Financisl inwnumets soid,

Bt moll il pufchaged 42077 S00,630 2,335 515,087
Collstemksed fnancings - 0, el L1l or. A5
Crthisf el - 5,272 2412 B0
Total 42,0952
Amsounts falling due sfter more than one year
Collsteralised fnancings - 0,286 1 0,305
Crthier crisilsrs = 35,105 LAk 42,336
Tatsl - 45,791 I.9%0 52,501
Taital fimancial liabilises FA207F  BBA0241 $12,874 FT05,087
Met derivative instruments 5 (4} § 12322 5 1,858 § 14176
23 of Decembar 2017
Financial Assels
Cath intfrumsnts 51047 5 Z2457 5 5N § T4.055
Derkvative instuments & BE2THM 347 Si6 208

“Finoncisl inmrumaets owned | G102 GR5160 408 G264
Collstenlived agmement - 140560 - 14,560
Dabters - 853 - 853
Total nancial sssels 51,062 ST2E M 5 4 0a8 AT 27T
Finanial Lisbilites
Ampunts falling due within one yesr
Cash indrumsnls 02 53 as588 3 10 5 33788
Darhvatie nsomsms 22 AR et | 655 123
Finaneial instrunets sokd,

bt ot yed purchased 30223 SETAR 2.2¢ EE0.822
Collatemiined fnancings = 113314 833 JRER T
Crher credion: - 5004 1. 7784
Total 0203 676620 4002 T11.653
Arvsunta Tallng dse AITer imone Ihan e year
Collstorakised tnancings - 7.8 5 17,378
Crher credion - 146, 06 5.094 21,085
Tetel = s B005 3ATA
Total Anancisl kabites 530,223 SN00,047 10,807 00077
Mt derrrative intruments F (7 3 8 3 1.0 F 10086

B3
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UNMLIMITED COMPANY)
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Significant Unobservable Inputs Used in Level 3 Fair
Value Measurements

Cash Instruments. The company had level 3 cash
instrument assets of $1.08 billion as of November 2018 and
5571 million as of December 2017, Level 3 cash instrument
liabalities were not material,

The table below presents the amount of level 3 cash instrument
assets, and ranges and weighted averages of significant
unobservable nputs wsed 10 value level 3 cash instrument
assels,

Level 3 Cash Instruments Assets and
Ranga of Significant Unobssnable inputs
{Wiighted Avemge) as of

Howvembser December

5 in rvlicag e T
Mortgages and other asset-backed leans and seourities

Leved 3 aveets M dd
Yiekd 2AY te 8,55, (8.55) 23 o 104% (B 0%
Recorvery rale 0.0 10 TR0% (30.0%)  37.0% to BO.0% (T8 5%)
Dhuralion (yeart) 0.5 1o 134 (5.1) 0.7 80 14.0 (425
Corporate debt enils and g and agency obligations

Ll 3 paeets S841 5385
Yinld 0,7% e 10, 3% (3. 3%) 36% b0 13.9% (7.1%)
Recarary rale 0.0% 1o 7B.0% (51.8%)  0.0% ta 74.0% (44.5%)
Dhbiasn (yhaed) 0.5 ta 12,2 (2.6} 0.5 54 (2.3
Equity securities

Léwid 3 masats M 587
Mutiples 415 to 11,0 (5.4x) 30w b Al {30
In the table above:

« Ranges represent the significamt wnobservable inputs that
were used in the valuation of each type of cash instrument.

« Weighted averages are calculated by weighting each input
by the relative fair value of the cash instruments.

+ The ranges and weighted averages of these inputs are not
representative of the appropmate inputs to wse when
calculating the fair value of any one cash instrument. For
example, the highest vield for mongages and other asset-
backed loans and securities 15 appropriate for valuing a
specific mortgage bul may not be appropriste for valung amy
other mortgages. Accordingly, the ranges of inputs do not
represent uncertainty in, or possible ranges of, fair value
measurements of level 3 cash instruments.

Increases i vield or duration wed i the valuation of level 3
cash instruments would have resulted in a lower fair value
measurement, while increases in recovery rate or multiples
would have resulted in a higher fair value measurement as of
beth November 2018 and December 2017 Due to the
distinctive mature of each level 3 cash instrument, the
interrelationship of mputs is not necessanly uniform within
each product tvpe

54
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« Morigages and other asset-backed loans and secunties and
corporate debt instrumentz and government and agency
cbligations are valued using discounted cash flows, and
equity securities are valued wsing markel comparables and
discounted cash Mows.

« The foir value of anv one instrument may be determined
using multiple valuation techniques. For example, market
comparables and dscounted cash flows may be used
together to determine fair value, Therefore, the level 3
balance encompasses both of these technigques,

Derivative Instruments. The company had net level 3
derivative instruments of 51.86 billion as of November 2018
and 51.20 billion as of December 2017,

The table below presents the amount of net level 3 derivative
instrumenis, and ranges, averages and medians of significant
unobservable mputs used to value interest rates, credit,
currencies and equities dervative instruments.

The company’s net level 3 financial instruments relating to
commaodities dervatives was 52 million as of Novenber 2018
and Smil as of December 2017 for which the range of
significant unobservable inputs has not been disclosed as the
amaounts ane not material,

Mot Lavnl 3 Dwrvatie Instrumants and
Rangs of Signifcant Unobserable inputs
{hverageMeden) as of

Hovember Decombssr
§ iy mliong 2018 2017
Infterest rafes §ro 1]
Cornslation 1% o T2% (T RT2%) TH% to 8BS (ATRATR)
‘iplakility (bps] 04 to 143 (BATE) 76 to 138 (107107
Credit 2,003 31,784
Cornelation MHiA 2% to B G 19%600)
Cradt sproads (bps) 200 SE9 (M0 1 ta SO5 (B7/5E)
Upfront credit points AT LT FFirral 2 bo 55 (35N
Recovery rabes 259 10 5% (TR0 2% to T3 | TONIT 3]
Currencies S115) S
Cornplation 5% 10 3% (13WNS%) 10 to 335 (ZEWITIH)
Equities E[10%) $E3Y}
Cormelation (S35 1o DE ATWISI%)  [35)% fo BA% (BYRMEN)
olatiliy A% 1o B1% (17NN 4% to 63% (H20%)
In the table above:

« Met derivative assets are shown as positive amounts and net
derivative habilities are shown as negative amounts,

« Ranges represent the significant unobservable inputs that
were used in the valuation of each type of denvative
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UMLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

« Averages represent the arnhmetic average of the inputs and
are not weighted by the relative fair value or notional of the
respective financial instruments, An average greater than the
median indicates that the majonity of inputs are below the
average

The ranges. averages and medians of these inputs are not
representative of the appropriate nputs o wuse when
caleulating the fair value of any one derivative. For example,
the highest correlaion for interest rate derivatives s
appropriate for valuing a specific interest rate dervative but
may not be appropriate for valuing any other interest rate
derivative, Accordingly, the ranges of inpats do not represent
uncertainty in, or possible ranges of, fair value measurements
of level 3 derivatives,

Inerest rates, currencies and equities derivatives are valued
using option pricing moedels, and credit derivatives are valued
using option pricing, correlation and discounted cash flow
maodels.

The fair value of any ome instrument may be determined
using multiple valwmtion techmgues. For example, option
pricing models and discounted cash flows models are
typically used together to determine fair value, Therefore, the
level 3 balance encompasses both of these technigques,

« Correlation was not significant to the valuation of level 3
credit denivatives &s of November 201 8,

« Correlation within currencies and equities includes croas-
product type corelation,

Range of Significant Unobservable Inputs

The following s information about the ranges of significant
unobszervable nputs used o value the company™s level 3
denvative mstruments:

« Correlation. Ranpes for comrelation cover a variety of
underliers both within one product type (eg, equity index
and equity single stock names) and across product types (e.g.,
correlation of an equity and a currency), as well as across
TEEIONS.

« Volatility, Ranges for volatility cover numerows underliers
across a vanety of markets, maturities and stnke prices. For
example, volatlity of equity indices 15 generally lower than
volatility of single stocks

« Credit spreads, upfront credit points and recovery
rates. The ranges for credit spreads, upfront credit points
and recovery rates cover a varnety of underliers (index amd
smgle names), regions, sectors, maturities and credit qualities
(high-yvield and investment-grade) and als includes secured
funding spreads. The broad range of this population gives
nse to the widith of the ranges of significant unohservable
InpLts,

S
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Sensitivity of Fair Value Measurement to Changes in
Significant Unobservable Inputs

The following is a description of the directional sensitivity of
the company’s level 3 fairr value measurements, as of both
Movember 2018 and December 2017, to changes in significant

uncbservable inputs, in isolation:

- Correlation. In general, for contracts where the holder
benefits from the comsistent directional performance of the
underlving asset or imbex prices (e, imerest rates, credit
spreads, foreign exchange rates, inflation rates and equity
prices), an increase in comelation results in a higher fair
value measurement,

- Volatility. In general, for purchased options, an increase in
volatility results in a higher fair value measurement,

« Credit spreads, upfront credit points and recovery

rates. In general, the fair value of purchased credit
protection increases as credit spreads or upfrom credit points
increase of recovery rates decrease, and the fair value of
gsecured  funding capacity increases as secured funding
spreqacks increase. Credit spreads, upfromt crednt points and
recovery rates are strongly related to distinctive risk factors
of the underlying reference obligations, which include
reference entity-specific factors such as leverage, volatiliny
and mndustry, market-based nsk factors, such as bomowing
costz or hquidity of the underlving reference obligation, and
macreeconemis conditions,

[rue to the distinctive nature of each of the company’s level 3

derivatives, the interrelationship of inputs is not necessanly

uniform within each product type.
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UMLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Other Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.
Significant unobservable inputs of other fimancial assets and
financial liabilities include:

+ Resale and Repurchase Agreements and Securities
Borrowed and Loaned. As of both Movember 2018 and
December 2017, the company had no level 3 resale
agreements, securities borrowed or secunities loaned, As of
both November 2018 and December 2017, level 3 repurchase
agreements were nol material.

« Debtors, As of both November 2018 and December 2017,
level 3 debtors were mil.

» Other Secured Financings. As of both Movember 2018
and December 2007, the significam unobservable inpuls used
to value level 3 other secuwred fimancings are incorporated
into the denvative instruments and cash  instruments
disclosures relsted o unobservable inputs. See “Cash
Instruments” and “Denvative Instruments” above.

« Other Creditors. As of both Movember 20018 and
December 20017, the significant unobservable inputs used to
value level 3 other creditors are incorporated into derivative
instruments and cash instruments disclosures related to
uncbservable inputs. See “Cash Instruments”™ and “Denvative
Instruments” above.

Transfers Between Level 1 and Level 2 of the Fair
Value Hierarchy

During the period ended November 20018 amd period ended
December 2007, there were no signuficant transfers between
level 1 and level 2 financial assets and financial habilitics
measured at fair value on a recurring basis,
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Fair Value Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Valued Using Techniques That Incorporate
Unobservable Inputs

The farr value of financial assets and financial liabilities may
be determined in whole or part using a valuation techmique
based on assumptions that are nod supported by prices [rom
observable current market transactions i the same instrument
or based on available observable market data and changmg
these assumptions will change the resultant estimate of fair
value, The potentml impact of using reasonable possible
altermative assumptions for the valustions, incleding swznificant
uncbservable inputs, has been quantified as approximately
5356 million as of November 2018 and 5259 million as of
December 2017, for favourable changes, and 5240 million as
of November 2018 and 3230 million as of December 2017, for
unfavourable changes. In determiming reasomably possible
allemative unfavourable assumplions, a detailed business and
position level review has been performed to wentify and
quantifly instances where potential uncertainty exists, This has
taken mite account the posiions” [uir value as compared to the
range of available market information. As of Movember 2018
and December 2017, the impact for favourable changes was
primarily driven by changes in the assumplions around secured
funding spreads and valuwation adjustments in equity and fixed
income derivatives, and the impact for unfavourable changes
was prmarly diven by changes in the assumplions arcund
secured funding spreads, volatility and correlation inputs.

The table below presents the amounts not recogmsed in the
profit and loss account relating to the difference between the
fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss a1 mitial recognition (the
transaction price} and the amounts determined at mutial
recognition using the valuation techmiques (day 1 P&L).

Period Ended

November D il

& in milong 2018 2017

Bognning balance 5161 5145

Naw tmnsactions 02 B2
Amounts recognised in the probt and loss accousst

during the pericd {109} (B

Ending balance SHE 5161
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UMLIMITED COMPANY)
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Level 3 Rolforward

The table below presents a summary of the changes in fair
value for all level 3 fimancial assets and financial liabilities
measured at fair value ona recurring basis.

Pariod Ended
Howember Dacarmbar

$ in milions g 7
Total Teancial assets

Baginning balance: § 4,084 5 B15&2
SGainstlosses) e =)
Purchases L) =]
Sales [Fra] [530)
Settements. [ 1,22
Trarsfers inta level 3 . 188
Trarsbers enit of el 3 {188 (530}
“Endling Dalance % 5,31 § 404
Total fnancial labaes

Esginning balance: SH{10,807) & (56
Gainslosses) 46§ 1,438
Purchases 1] [}
Sales 18,155) 16, 255)
Sattienents 5,08 d 485
Trarsfers into level 3 (L8 1] )
Trarvbers et af el 3 41 1,085
“Ending halance S{12,574)  H10,807)
Inthe table above:

« Financial assets relate 1o financial instrum ents owned.

« If a financial asset or financial liability was transferred into
level 3 durimg a reporting period, 11s entire gain or loss for the
period 15 classafied in level 3. For level 3 financial assets,
increases are shown as positive amounts, while decreases are
shown as negative amounts, For level 3 financial labilites,
increases are shown as negative amounts, while decrenses ane
shown as positive amouns.

+ Transfers beiween levels of the fair value herarchy are
recogmised at the bepinming of the reporting period mn which
they occur. Accordingly, the tables do not include gains or
losses for level 3 financial assets and financial Liabalities that
were transferred out of level 3 prior to the end of the period.

+ Level 3 financial assets and financial liabilities are frequently
economically hedged with level | and level 2 financial assets
and financial liabilities. Accordingly, level 3 gains or losses
that are reported for a particular class of financial asset or
financial hability can be partially offset by gains or losses
attributable 1o level 1 or level 2 inthe same class of financial
assel or financial hability or gains or losses atinbutable to
level 1, level 2 or level 3 in a different class of (inancial asset
or financial liability. As a result, gains or losses mcheded in
the level 3 rollforward do not necessanly represent the
overall impact on the company’s results of operations,
liguadity or capital resources.

The net gains on level 3 fimancial assets for the period ended
November 2018 and perod ended December 2017 are
reported in “Met revenues” in the profit and loss account.

BT
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« The net gains on level 3 financial habilities of 3468 million
for the pericd ended November 2018 included gains of 3339
million reported in “Met revenues” in the profit and loss
account and gains of 5129 million reported in "Debt
valetion adjustment™ i the statements of comprehensive
income. The net losses on level 3 financial habilities of $1.44
billion for the period ended December 2017 mcleded losses
of $1.34 billion reported in “Net revenues” in the profit and
loss aceount and losses of S100 millien reported in “Del
valuation adjustment™ m the statements of comprehensive
income.

The table below disaggregates, by the balance sheet line items,
the nformation for financial liabilities meluded iIn the

summary lable above,

oOoOooodn

Period Ended

Nayvember Cwcember
§ in milions e My
Financial Instrumends sold, but not el purchased
Begrmning balance $2,281) 2.2
Gainsiiloaues) s (853
Pucha it 16 3
Taley iy {23m
Satthements L1 485
Transfors into level 3 (244} (i
Transfors out of level 3 1354 4
Ending balance 2,395 S{2.41)
Collateralised financings
Bagriang halance § (BN 5 (59
Ganuifosiet) a2 {283
Salen [ELY ] (Ham
Satthementy 7 &7
Ending balance § (035 L )
Oihver credtors
Baginning balance (7 .804) Sifi By
Gainsijosses) 661 L ]
Sales (7.2 4, 801)
Sattiements 5,158 3651
Transfars into level 3 (387 21
Tranafrs out of level 3 253 T
Ending balance 0,550 5{7.684)
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Transfers Betwean Level 2 and Level 3 of the Fair
Value Hierarchy

Pericd Ended November 2018, Transfers into level 3 for
financial assets and liabilities primarily reflected transfers of
certzin currency products from level 2, principally due to
reduced transparency of certam modelling assumptions, and
transfers of certain credit products from level 2, pnnaipally dus
to reduced transparency of certan credit spread and yield
inputs. The reduced transparency was & result of a lack of
market evidence.

Transfers out of level 3 primanly reflected transfers of certain
equity products 1o level 2, principally due 1o increased
transparency of certain equaty voelatility and correlation inputs.
The increased transparency was a result of an increase in the
availability of market evidence.

Period Ended December 2017, Transfers into level 3 for
financial assets and habilities pnmarily reflected wansfers of
certain credit products from level 2, principally due to reduced
trarsparency of certain credit spread and yield inputs as a result
of 4 lnck of market evidence

Transfers out of level 3 primanly reflected transfers of certam
credit products to level I principally due to  increased
transparency of certann spread and yvield inputs and transfers of
certain equity products to level 2, principally due to increased
trarsparency of certain equity velatility and correlation inputs,
The imcreased transparency was a result of an increase in the
avatlability of market evidence.

Fair WValue of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities Not Measured at Fair Value

The company had current financial assets of $144.66 billion as
of MNovember 2018 and 515791 billion as of December 2017,
and curent fnancial lisbilities of 513197 billion as of
Movember 201% and 513956 hillion as of December 2017 that
are ned measred at fair value, Given the short-lerm nature of
these imstruments, their carrving amounts m the balance sheet
are a reasonable approcamation of fair value,

As of Movember 2018 and December 2017, the company had
$15.86 hillion and 518.68 billion, respectively, of financial
liabalities that are due after more than one vear that are not
measuired at fair value which predominantly relate 1o lomg-term
iMercompany  borrowings. The  imterest rates  of  these
borrowings are variable m nature and approsimate prevailing
market interest rates for instruments with similar terms and
charactenstics. As such, their carrying amournts in the balance
ahveet are a reasorable approximation of fair value,
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Maturity of Financial Liabilities

The table below presents a summary of the cash flows of the
company's financial habilitiez by contractual maturity except
for financial instruments sold, but not vet purchased, which are
classified as trading/on demand,

Mz od

Hovember Do b
3§ in mallang 8 207
Teadngion derrard 2,378 ST MH
Less tan 1 manth 12088 1,558
1 =3 months 6,851 20,888
3 months = 1 year AF, 280 38,778
1 =Syears 50,389 41,071
Graater than 5 year 0,482 18,396
Total WIRSTE  SeTaeTD

The tables below present an analysis of the cash flows of the
company's financial liabilitiez by contractual maturity except
for Dnancial instruments sold, but not vet purchased, which are
classafied as trading/on demand.

Fimancial
instrumants
soid, bt not  Collstemaksad Char

& in millons yol purchated Snancngs  creditors Total
As of Movembrer 2018
Ampunts falling due within one year
Tradngion demand o ER T § 45078 § 6901 S6800TH
Less Bsan 1 month - 50,018 1,852 31,862
1= 3 mons = ITE T IESTT
3 months = 1 year - 22974 k) 48, 38
1 =5 years - - - -
Graaber than & ysars = - - -
Tatal 45, HET F100,848 § 9684 SrE4002
Ampunts fallng e after more than one
Tradingfon demand 3 - 3 - % - % -
Lok than 1 menth - 1 D '
1= 3 montht - - 1k 2
3 montis = 1 year = = ] 250
1 =& years - 0 43145 50,175
Grpater than 5 yeary - IHE 18,195 IATT
Taital - 5 10,308 § A1447 5 LTSS
Tailal — o balance sheet F545 087 S1ST15 S153, 308 SRI844T
— —
Camrgan
and forward
whating
colaterised Oporasng
£ i mallons agresmants leanes Cither Total
A3 of Hovember 2018
Tradinglon derrand 3 - § - § e 3 Lim
Lovss tasn 1 maonth 60,332 v = B3N
1 - 3o 108 Ll - 212
3 monts = 1 year - &1 - 1
i =5 years - 113 1 24
Graaber than & years = L] - B
Talal = off balance sheel § 60500 § @01 § R4 § 631
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Finansial
InsFrumenits
sald but it Collateralived Cithar
5 e owlens yod purchased fnarcings  credibors Tital
A of Deecombie 3017
Amounts Falling due within one year
Tradinglon demnand 580 022 & BT & TESGT ITEADDT
Less than 1 month = WS 2768 3heE3
1 =3 months = 16,308 1,186 20482
3 manghi — 1 year - 181 BAX F}ITI
1 =5 years - - - -
Grisstir than 5 yeary - - - -
Tetal $ERG,502 SIEG.078 5100254 S981.45%
Asnounts Taling due afler more tean cne year
Tradngion demand 5 - 5 =% =3 -
Lass than 1 mosth - - F] 7
1 =3 months = - T2 T2
I monthe =1 year = = &30 &30
1 =8 years - 18, G 24,8095 400 B
Greater than § yeamn = 1,378 17.012 18,381
Total ~ [ = S 17,570 § 42410 § 0707
Total - on balance shest L5090 072 SITS 45T S1a5.073 $007 262
Contingent
and forward
starting
cellistpabed Oparating
5 in miliong sgnements Inate Cithar Total
£z of Decomber JO17
Trading'on demand 5 ez 5 = & 332 5 4274
Lews than 1 mosth 57,663 T - GT.ATD
1 =3 months 10 15 20 a4
3 enonthy — 1 year 1 &7 - L]
1 =8 yoars - 177 - 177
Grester than § years = 5 - 5
Tetal — off balance shesl 556756 5 271 5 2891 5 62716

In the tables above:

« Cash flows by contractual maturity include interest that will
accree on financial liahilities

+ Financial liahilities, with the exception of those that are held
for wading or desigmated at fair value through profit or loss,
are disclosed al their undiscounted cash fows. The fair
values of financial labilities held for trading and firancial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss have
been disclosed as this 15 consstent with the values used in the
lbquidity risk management of these instruments.

o Laquidity risk on denvatives 1s mitigated through master
netting agreements and cash collateral arrangements.

B
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Collateral Received and Pledged

The company receives cash and secunties (eg, govemment
and agency obligations, corporate debt secunties, equity
securities) as collateral, primarily m connection with resale
agreements, securnities borrowed, derivative transactions and
customer margin loans. The company obtains cash and
segunties as collateral on an uplront or contingent basis for
derivative instruments and collateralised agreements to reduce
its credit exposure to individual counterparties.

In many cases, the company is permitted to deliver or repledge
financial instruments received as collateral when entering into
repaschase agreements and securities lemding agreements,
primarily in connection with secured chent Anancing activity.
The company i1s also permitted to deliver or repledge these
financial instruments n connmection with  other  secured
financings, collateralising derivative transactions and meeting
company or customer settlement requirements.

The table below presents fnancml instruments receved as
collateral that were available to be delivered or repledged, and
that were delivered or repledged by the company

by ol
Hovemher Doz ket
£ i rallang 2018 2017
Collstnral avalabin b0 be delveed or repledgnd TR 240 491634
Collatenl that was deliversd o repledged 429,161 S444,650

The company also pledges certamn fmancial instruments owned
in conmection with repurchase agreements, securities lending
agreements and other secured financings 1o counterpartics who
may or may not have the nght to deliver or repledge.

The table below presents information about assets pledged.

As of
Navember Dacombe:
§ in mallang 2018 a7
Financial in owned pledged fo oo thes that:
Had th right 1o delioie of rapledge 0,550 524178
Did not have the right 1o delar of repledge 390,177 523,358

The company has received cash collateral of 354,10 billion as
of Noavember 2018 and $59.10 billion as of December 2017
and posted cash collateral of 344.97 hllion az of November
2018 and 55007 hillion as of December 2017, Amounts
received and posted are mainly in respect of [nancial
mstruments owned and fnancial instruments sold, bul not yet

purchased.
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In addition to repurchase agreements and securities lending
trarsactions, the company funds certain assets through the use
of other secured financings and pledges financial instruments
as collateral m these tramsactions. These other secured
financings consist of habilities related to special purpose
entities, ransfers of financial assets that are accounted for as
financings rather than sales and other structured financing
armangements, Other secured financings include armangements
that are pom-recourse,

Hedge Accounting

The company designates certain interest rate swaps as fair
value hedges that are used 1o manage the inlerest rale exposure
of certain Oxed-rate unsecured long-term and short-term debt
These interest rate swaps hedge changes i far value
attnbutable 1o the relevamt benchmark interest rate (eg.,
LIBOR), effectively convertmg fixed-rate obligations into
floating-rate obligations,

The company applies a statstical method that utlises
regression analysis when assessing the effectiveness of its fair
value hedging relationships in achieving offsetting changes in
the fair values of the hedging instrument and the risk being
hedged (1e., interest rate msk). An interest rate swap is
corsidered highly effective in offsetting changes m fair value
attributable to changes in the hedged risk when the regression
analysis results in a coefficient of determination of 80% or
greater and a slope between 80%% and 125%. Possible sources
of ineffectiveness on these hedges incluede:

+ Differences in timing of cash flows between the hedged item
and hedging instrument.

« Differences in discounting between the hedged item and the
hedging instrument, as cash collateralised derivatives are
discounted using Overmpght Indexed Swap (OI5) discount
curves, which are not consistently applied 1o the hedged stem.

« Counterparty eredit risk impacting fair value movements on
uncollaterahised interest rate swaps but not the underlving
hedged item.

For quahfying far value hedges, gains or losses on derivatives
and the change in farr value of the hedged item attnbutable to
the hedged risk are included in net revenwes. When a derivatave
is no longer designated as a hedge, any remaining difference
between the carrying value and par value of the hedged tem is
amortised over the remaining life of the hedged item using the
effective interest method.

EDINETOOOO

OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

The table below presents the notional of hedging instruments
by contractual maturity date,

g of
§ in milions Hovember 2018
Lokt tHuan 1 month 5 -
1 = 3 months -
3 maniie - 1 year o
1=Gynary i
Graaber than 5 ysars 2,733
Tt 2804

The average fixed rate of the company’s hedging instruments
was |,19% for the period ended Movember 2018,

The table below presents information about  hedging
instruments, which are classified in derivative instruments,

As of
Navember Cecember
£ in mllions 2018 27
aaat carrying value 528 =Ty
Lisbd ity camrying value 5= =

The table below presents the camying value of the hedged
items that are currently designated in a hedging relationship
and  the related  cumulative  hedping adjusiment
(ingrease{decrense)) from current and  prnor  hedging
relationships included in such carrving values.

A of November 2018
il ve

Camyng  hedging

£ i ullions value adpusiment
Un d shert-beem L ng 5 a3 5 -
Unsseinied komg-erm Boimowingy 52,543 528

The table below presents the pains/(losses) from interest rate
derivatives accounted for as hedges, the related hedged
borrowings and the hedpe inefTectiveness on these denvatives,
recognised in net revenues.

Period Ended
Navember Ceoembm
§ in oz 208 M7
Interest rate hedges 16 36
Hedged borowings {22) 18
Hidge ineffectiveness 5|6 15
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UMLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Unconsolidated Structured Entities

The company has interests in structured entities that it does not
comtrol (uncorsolidated structured entities), which primarily
includes: senior and subordmated debt;, derivatives and
guasantees.

Structured entities generally Ninance the purchase of assets by
issuing debt securities that are either collateralised by or
indexed to the assets held by the structured entity. The debt
securities 1ssued by a structured entity may include tranches of
varying levels of subordination. The company’s involvement
with structured entities primanily includes securitisation of
financial assats.

In certain instances, the company provides guarantees,
including denvative guarantees, 1o unconselidated structuged
entities or holders of interests i uneonseldated structiured
entities.

The table below presents a summary of the unconsolidated
structured entities in which the company holds mterests.

Anod

Hovember Dcamber
3 in milfons 20E 2T
Assets in sinuchired enbbies 0,487 57843
Carying valse of inerests - sssels 5 410 5 B
Carrying valse of inerests - Eabities 5 % 5 M
Ml EETILITY BT bO b H1,816 3,118
In the table above:

» The carrying values of the company™s mnterests are included
i the balance sheel in “Financial instruments owned”™ of
“Firancial irstruments sold, but not vet purchased™.

+ The company’s maximum exposure 1o koss is mainly a resull
of derivatives, commitments and guarantees, for which the
maximum exposure o loss s the notional amount, which
dees not represent anticipated losses and alsoe has not been
reduced by unrealised losses already recorded. As a result,
the maximum exposure 10 loss exceeds liabilities recorded
for derivatives, commitments and guarantees.

|
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Transferred Assets

Assets Continued to be Recognised in Full. Dunng the
pericd, the company transferred centain financial assets where
the transfers failed to meet the derccognition criteria, as
contained in IFRS 9, and as a result of which the company
contimues 1o recopnise these assets in full in the balance sheet.

The company transfers assets owned to counterparties in the
ordinary c¢ourse of business to collateralise repuschase
agreements and other secunties lending transactions. In these
transactions the transferred assets continue to be recognised by
the company for accounting purposes because the transactions
require the financial instruments 1o be repurchased at maturty
of the agreement and the company remains exposed to the
price, credit and inderest rale risk of these instruments. When
the company receives cash proceeds from the transfer of the
asset, a financml labality 5 recognised inrespect of the
consideration  received and recorded in “Collateralized
financings”. When the company receives non cash collateral
(i the form of secunities) mo liability 15 imtally recognised. 1
collateral received 15 subsequently sold, the obligation to retumn
the collateral is recognised as a liability in “Financial
mstruments sold, but not vet purchased™.

In addition to repurchase agreements and sccumities lending
agreements, the company obtans funding through the we of
other arrangements that fail to meet the derecognition criteria.
For example, sales of secunities with related derivatives, such
a5 total peturn swaps, throwgh which the company retains
substantially all of the risk and reward of the ransferred assets.
A fmancial labadity s recognised in such cases for the
proceads received.

Other financial assets transferred that continue to be recognised
on balance sheet for accouming purposes relate 1o pledges of
secunities as collateral, pnmarily for denvative transactions.
The obligations under such derivatives are recorded in
“Financial instruments sold, but not yvet purchased”,

The table below presents financial assets which have been
transferred bt which remain on balance sheet for accounting
PUTPRISES,

Mg ol
November Dol
% dn mrallena 28 HHT
Gowernmant and agency obi gations Freus 4628
Cerpatats dobl iniruments AN 5766
Equity securitien LI FATY
Total 550,727 7530

In the table above, the carryimg amount of the associted
financial labilites generally approsxamate the carrying amount
of the assets transferred.
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UMLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Derecognised Assets With Ongoing Exposure. The
company has continuing involvement in the form of denvative
trarsactions and guarantees with certain  unconsolidated
structured entities to which the company had transferred
financial assets. These denvatives may be credit-linked to the
assel transferred and resull in the company retaiming specific
risks in the transferred asset or require the company to make
pavments to the structured entity to compensate losses on the
asset if certain contingent events occur

In addition, the company transters financial assets to
securitisation vehicles. The company generally receives cash in
exchange for the transferred assets bul may have continuing
invalyement with the transferred assets, including ownershap of
beneficial interests in the secuntised financial assets, primarily
i the form of debt imstrumemts. The company may also
purchase semor or subordinated  secunities  1sswed by
securitisation vehicles in connection with secondary market-
making activities

Where the company’s continuing involvement in transferred
assets s through denvatives or guarantees, the maxamum
exposire 10 loss is the notional amounts of the derivative of
puarantee. For retamed or purchased interests i securitised
assets, the company’s risk of loss 1= hmited to the fair value of
these interests. In all cases these retained interests are carred at
fair value.

The company accounts for assets pending transfer at fair value
and therefore does not typacally recognise significant gains or
losses upon the transfer of assets. The company does not have
comtinuing invalvement that could require the company 1o
repurchase derecognised financial asseis
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The tables below present mformation about the company's

exposwre through continuing involvement and the gains or
losses related to those ransactions

Macdmum
Carryng Aapdiadid
§ i mallang ameunt o kit
Aa of Movgebee 13
Ansels
Cash intrumsnis 5 - ¥ -
Darrative intruments &3 807
Financial instruments owned =] ]
Tols Sh3 802
“Labilities
Darivatives instruments. 50 s
Financial instrumeets sold, but not yet purchased in m
Tals 50 s
£ of Decprmber J017
Assels
Cash instrurmsats 510 5
Darivativs instrumsnts @ B0z
Financial ingtnrseaty Swned 5 923
Tete S 023
Liabdiices
Darratives instrumsnts 303 112
“Fnnncial insErursets 260, Bl et yel pchased [E] 1z
Total 5i0 sz
ncomed!  Cuenulsbee
[#xpensa) incoma
5 i aliang i Ehi pais (g
As of Hovesnber 2018
Assels
Cath intrursnis 5 - §132
Darhatios nstrumsnts 1] 121
Financial instruments owned )] 53
Talal il 5243
“Dabilities
Derrvatives instumaents 3 - 5
Finaneial instrumsets sold, but not yet porchased - [EET]
Crher creditors - L]
Tota § - 5 {36}
5 of December 2017
Addta
Cash instruments 51 5132
Derivative instuments 1 124
Financisl ingtrurseats owned 2 256
Tetel 3 2 3256
Liabdliges
Darbeal it insirumspaty ¥ - 5{35)
_leniidinﬂmrl'mm sodd, but mof wet purchased - {35
] - i1
Total 3 - TR
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UMLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

HNote 29,

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

The tables below present the company’s lnancil assets and
financial liabilites that are subject to enforceable netting
agreements and offsetting  Amounts are only offset in the
balance sheet when the company currently has a legally
enforceable night to set-off the recognised amounts and an
intention esther to settle on a net basis, or 1o realise the asset
and settle the habiliy simultaneously. In the tables below:

« Gross amounts exclude the effects of both counterparty
netting and collateral, and therefore are ol representative of
the company” s CONOMIC ¢XPOSUTe.

+ Amounts not offset in the balance sheet include counterparty
netting {12, the neting of fnancial assets and Onancial
liabilities for a given counterparty when a legal right of =set-
off exists under an enforceable netting agreement), and cash
and secunty collateral received and posted under enforceable
credit support agreements, that do not meet the criteria for
offsetting under UK. GAAP
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= Where the company has received or posted collateral under
credit support agreements, but has not wet determined
whether such  agreements are enforceable, the related
collateral has not been meluded i the amounts not offsel in
the balance sheet.

« Gress amounts meluded dervative assets of $6.15 billion and
denvative habilities of 35,10 billion as of November 2018,
and dervative assets of 55,69 bilhon and denvative liabalites
of 86,27 billion as of December 2017, which afe not subject
1o an enforceable netting agreement or are subject to a netting
agreement that the company has not yvet determined 1o be
enforceable

Substantially all resale agreements and secunities borrowed
within collateralised agreements and repurchase agreemenis
and securities loaned within collateralised financings are
subject to enforceable netting agreements as of Movemnber
2018 and December 2017,

A5 of November 28

Ampunts nod offset In the balance sheet

Amounts  Met ansount
cffsatl IR i presenied in

Gross balance e balance  Counterparty Cmh Security Hetl
£ i milong _ s ‘whaeet sheet rietting collsteral collaferal amaunt
Cazh instnaments $ 1BEm0 5 (13407 5 sATa $ (1505 0§ 43 5 [(A4m 5 87
Dierivatve intrumensy 523,283 N7 512,862 (4EZ6E) (34838 (10768 18,044
Feramemal ridromants camed 5,169 T 518,096 (HRESD)  (a0In (2T 10,05
Coilatarsisnd agresnents 0215 (B6,ET}  Z0RIM (83,337} - e 3172
Detrtrs 60,213 {15,727 53486 54500 {32438 (FA1E) 8,182
Farancial BR48ES SUIRCE 10 BNIGIEeAkia NHEND A%y v TE1,501 o675 TiaEsh ] i i
Feranial Mnﬁmwhmhmﬂlzmﬂ: 111 480 - 117,480 - - - 111,488

otal mancial assets 5 #3081 S(106,73%)  5886,345 S{53E,646)  S{B7,00F)  S(I3EAST)  §141,7%
Elnpnclal LinbiRigs
Aot Falling due within one year
Cahinstnements $ T % g % H £ - 5 - s - % ®H
Derivatve instuments 500,108 (10,7200 405.3%R (HEME (30815 (5.B67) 13,358
Fenancial Fsiruments soid, but not yet purchased 09,633 11429 295400 [#4E,348) {90,815 [5.867) 13,379
Collateraized fnancings 210,104 (EZBU) 138480 {163,130} ARy (S07ED 1,967
Other craciiors 66,082 {2,882 2331 8852 {34,040 - 20,725
Total 0,025 [700% 67190 [S3E090)  (66,040)  (S66401 35,501
EEnoRs TG Cus AeT Fore BIan or yaar
Collateraised fnancings 14,458 {7,108} 7351 (245} 1) (8,070} BOE
Cither craditors 3,264 {1,725} 1,530 {371} - - 1,188
Total 17,720 {8,830} 2290 {616} [F53] {5,070} (FILR
Firmncinl kabaitins wipect o enkeceabls neting agr FIFRIT) (106,735) 708,510 [S3IEBA0) (07,008 (w2708 Q500
Feramial babailion not subyiet b5 saloreable natting by 146,903 - 148,503 - - - 148,903
Total feancial labanies 5 WS0B4E  S(106,73%)  Sa52813 S53E,646)  S{67,068) S (BAT10)  S184,180

a3
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL (UMLIMITED COMPANY)
Notes to the Financial Statements

s off December 2017
Amncunts not offest in the balands shaet

Amounts  Melamount
wlfesd inthe  predented n

Grans thee Bl Courtep Cash Security Hat
5 in milfons amounts shiest shaet nesing collateral collateral amount
Financid Azgits
Cash instnaments £ 17333 £ (16T i ATEh E I 1] i ol 8§ (2230 £ 42
Diivatvn instrumants 00,749 {14 5400 568, 200 (BB B55) (37223 (12208 20,128
Feramcial Pralraments cwned 38,082 210 GEEEIZ [457.178) (37580 (14438 20,068
Colateralzsd 8gesmants D67 424 (62,6045 204, B30 (MY - (117,657} 31,880
Ddirs 68,567 (013} 5SESL 5803 (36,895 (7,673} 162
Frangial anuets subjedt to enh fohy rptlng agy 3073 [ET T [ESRENT] [E-RERT) 74 A05) (130, 768) 33,900
Fnancial aviets not subject 1o an e okable neSng agreementt 104,843 - 10, B3 - - - 106, Bl 3
Tolal frencial ausebs 51,058,818 5 [BRLIIT 5535, 150 S50E, 184 S744B8%) 50130 TE6 5138, 743
Amnounts Malling due wilhin one year
Cash inyinamanisy 5 TEE 5 (TE) 5 &0 1 - 5 - 5 - 5 &0
Dahvativn inskrumants £70,684 {14,538 BER12Y M4SE608) (582N (8,835} 18,680
Firancial meroments sid, but not vt purchased ET1 A28 115,256 556,173 [ABEG0E;  (35,021) CTE) 16,810
Colateralived Snancngs 227069 (71,560 155,500 10y [L21e] (70660 )
Othar credion 70,730 (3402 §7.248 8. 2509 AT B9 - 23,200
Total _ 68,208 TB0.25E _ JrB.E00 (G568 (7AB60) (/74BN 43008
Amounis Taling due afer more han che year
Coilatersised Snancings 22284 (7.653) 14,741 (1,646) (848 (11,678 870
Othaée £raditon 70 (1,878} B [t (B - 1,885
Total 6,014 CrET =3 1,728} [[523] RS F)
Feranicial kabaties mitsect b enkeoeabin neting agreemants (TR BB, TEREn [BE1Bd)  (jaAum  (BM10d 45,088
Francial labiitier not cubject to enfonceable neting agreements. 112801 - 112801 - - - 112801
Tolal bnencial lablties SI.008043 5 (90.72Th | SG0E.318 S50 104} S744B5) 508170  S1GBAB4
Note 30,

Post Balance Sheet Events

On Jamuary 21, 2009, 7,643,885 ordinary shares of 51 each
were allotted at 344.48 10 GSG UK, The todal consideration

recenved was 3340000000 in cash incorporating a share
premium of $332 356,115,

g
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIOMAL (UNLIMITED COMPANY)
Directors’ Report

The directors present theirr report and the audited financial
statements for the period ended Movember 2018

Introduction

In accordance with section 414A of the Companies Act 2006,
the directors have prepared a strategic report, which 15 included
i Part [ of this annual report and which contains a review of
the company’s businesses and a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the company. The directors have
chosen to disclose the company’s risk management objectives
and policies, including exposures 1o market nsk, credit risk and
liquidity nisk, and the future outlook of the company in the
strategic report in accordance with section 414C(11) of the
Companies Act 2006

Dividends
The directors declared and pand an interim dividend of 52.50
billiom on November 30, 2008,

The directors declared and paid an intenim dividend of S5040
million on June 27, 2017 and $2.50 billion on June 28, 2007,

Exchange Rate

The British pound/17.5. dollar exchange rate was £31.2743 as
of Movember 2018 and £%1.3524 as of December 2017, The
average rate for the periods was £51,3347 for November 2018
and £/51.3020 for December 2017,

Employment of Disabled Persons

Applications for employment by disabled persons are fully and
fairly comsidered with regard to the aptitudes and abilities of
exch applicant. Efforts are made to enable any emplovees who
become disabled during emplovment (o continue their caresrs
within 35 Group. Training, career development and promotion
of disabled persons are, to the extent possible, identical 1o that
of other emplovees who are not dusabled.

Charitable Contributions

The company made donations to charity of 322 million for the
pertod ended November 2018 and 525 milhion for the period
ended December 2017, This included donations of $20 million
for the period ended November 2018 amd 522 million for the
period ended December 2017 1o Goldman Sachs Gives (UK), a
registered charity, for general charitable purposes in England
and Wales,

Employee Involvement
It iz company policy that there should be effective

communication with all emplovees whao, subject 1o practical
and commercial considerations, should be made aware of
financial and economic factars affecting the performance of the
company and consulted on and involved in decisions that affect
their curremt jobs or future prospects. Employees share in
performance-based incentive schemes.
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Post Balance Sheet Events

On January 21, 2019, the company allotted 7,643,885 ordinary
shares of 31 each at 34448 to Goldman Sachs Group UK
Limited. The total consideration received was $340,000 000 in
cash incorporating a share premium of $332,356,115.

Statement on Corporate Governance with Reference
to Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management of the company 15 responsible for establishing
and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporiing. The company’s intermal conirel over [inancial
reporting 15 desipned to provide reasonable  assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of the company’s financial statements for exiernal
reporting parpeses in accordance with UK. GAAF.

The company’s internal control over Onancial reporting
mcludes  policies and  procedures that  pertain o the
mainterance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
ard fairly reflect transactions and dispositions of assets;
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary Lo permit preparation of fimancial statements n
accordance with UK. GAAP, and that receipts and
expenditures are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and the directors of the
company, and provide reasorable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use
or disposition of the company’s assels that could have a
material ¢ffect on the company’s financial statements,

Disclosure of Information to Auditors
In the case of each of the persons who are directors of the
company al the date when thas report was approved:

« S0 far as each of the directors 1s aware, there 1s no relevant
audit information of which the company’s auditors are
unaware, and

« Each of the directors has taken all the steps that he'she ought
1o have taken as a director 1© make himsel@hersell aware of
any relevant audit mformation and to establish that the
company’s auditors are aware of that information

Independent Auditors

Prior to 1 October 2007, the company passed an clective
resolition under section 386 of the Companies Act 1985 to
dispense  with  the annual reappomtment  of  auditors.
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP will, accordingly, continue in
office as auditors of the company pursuant to section 457(2) of
the Companies Act 2006 and paragraph 44 of Schedule 3 1o the
Companies Act 2006 (Commencement Mo, 3 Conseqguentsal
Amendment, Transitional Provisions and Savings) Order 2007,

The GSI Board Audit Commattes 15 currently in the process of
appointing a new statutory auditor for financial periods
commencing afier June 17, 2000 to meet the requirements of
the Statutory Audits and Thard Coumtry Auditors Repulations
2016,
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GOLOMAN SACHS INTERHATIONAL (UNLIMITED COMPANY)
Directors’ Report

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the strategic report,
the directors” report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations. Company law requires the
directors to prepare accounts for cach financial peried which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company
as al the end of the financial period and of the profil or les of
the company for that peried. In preparing those accounts, the
directors are required to:

s Select suitable accounting policics and then apply them
consistentiy;

« Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent;

« State whether applicable accounting standards have been
followed subject to any material departurcs disclosed and
explained in the inancial statements:; and

» Prepare the accounts on the poing concem basis unless it is
mappropriate to presume tat the company will continis in
business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any lime
the financial position of the company and to enable them to
ensure that the accounts comply with the Companics Act 2006,
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assels of the
company and, hence, for taking reasomoble steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanitics.

The directors are responsible for the mainienance and inlegnity

of the company’s financial statements on the Goldman Sachs

website, Legislation in the UK, goverming the preparation and

dissemination of financial statements may  differ  from

legislation in other jurisdictions.

The directors confirm 1o the best of their knowledge:

« The financial statements, prepared in accordance with
applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and Lair

view of the assets, abilities, financial positien and profit or
loss of the company; and

» The straterie report meludes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the
compaiy, togeller with a description of the principal rsks
and uncertainties that the company faces.

43
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Directors
The dircctors of the company who served throughout the
period and 1o the date of this report, except where noted. wene:

Harmn

4. M, D, Bamesa, Chaarman

. & Bovle (appoinded on July 20, 20EE)

C. Cripps {appointm ent proposed on March §5, 3018, subject bo regulatony
netification)

| el {radigigd on Jure 20, 2015)

R J, Grodde. Chis! sssutive oflcer

Lord Grmtsiner OC

H, Hasman

5. 5. Hilsy (resigned cm Decesber 31, 2018)

D W Mz Domogh

T. L Mller OBE {app-snbed on July 31, 2018}

K. Pararopoulos (appoanied on July 31, 2008 resipned on November 13, 2018)

E. E. Becher (appointed on July 31, 20183

M, O, Wirksiman

Mo director had, at the period end, any intereit requiring note
herein.

Date of Authorisation of Issue
The financial statemenis were authorised for ssue by the
Board of Directors on March 15, 2019,

E)ﬂmd:})\&

By order of the board
D. W. McDonogh
Director

March 20, 2018
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2019 11
2019 11 30
2019 11 1.04 2018 11 1,541.5
1,942.8 469.9
2019 11 1.01 2018 11 1,538.1
1,686.5 220.6
2019 11 342.5 2018 11 331
2019 11 18.0 340
10.0 Tierl AT1 542
2019 11 2018 11 53.3 53.1
2019 11 30 (6)
28
2019 11

3,936.1 3,674.3
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2019 11 30 2019 11
( )
35,335 14 788,407
15 156,348
16 73,693
24 22,397
1,040,845
14 (714,640)
18 (124,740)
19 (93,476)
(932,856)
107,989
2019 11
2019 11 30
2019 11 18.0 2018 11 18
2019 11 81.0 2018 11

2019 11 54.4 2018 11 18

336/375



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

oOoOooodn
@
2020 29 39
2020 2019 11
COVID-19
CovID-19
12
EU EU
EU
CovID-19
COVID-19
2020 29 COVID-19
COVID-19 BCP
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Goldman Sachs International (unlimited
company)

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Goldman Sachs International’s (“the company”) financial statements:

give atrue and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as of November 30, 2018 and of its profit and cash flows for
the eleven month period (the “period”) then ended,;

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generaly Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law); and

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 (“CA06").

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report, which comprise: the Balance Sheet as of
November 30, 2018; the Profit and Loss Account, the Statements of Comprehensive Income, the Statements of Cash Flows, the
Statements of Changes in Equity for the period then ended; and the Notes to the Financial Statements, which include a
description of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Certain required disclosures have been presented in the Strategic Report in the Annual Report rather than in the Notes to the
Financial Statements. The disclosures identified as audited within the Strategic Report form an integral part of the financial
statements.

Our opinion is consistent with our reporting to the GSI Board Audit Committee.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“1SAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under |SAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the U.K., which includes the Financial Reporting Council’s (“FRC”) Ethical Standard as applicable to
listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services prohibited by the FRC' s Ethical Standard were not
provided to the company.

Other than those disclosed in Note 6 ‘ Administrative Expenses to the financial statements, we have provided no other non-
audit services to the company in the period from January 1, 2018 to November 30, 2018.

Our audit approach
Overview

Overal materiality: $183 million (2017: $180 million), based on 0.5% of total regulatory capital resources.

Audit scope: We perform a full scope audit of the financial statements of the company as a whole as a single component.

The scope of the audit and the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures were determined by our risk assessment, the
financial significance of financial statement line items and qualitative factors (including history of misstatement through
fraud or error).

Key audit matters: The key area of focus which was of the most significance in the audit was the valuation of derivative
financial instruments, specifically those which are included within level 3inthefair value hierarchy.

We discussed our plan with the GSI Board Audit Committee in July 2018 and November 2018. The valuation of level 3
derivatives was the key audit matter for discussion at the conclusion of the audit.
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The scope of our audit
As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements. In particular, we looked at where the directors made subjective judgements, for example in respect of significant
accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain.

Capability of the audit in detecting irregularities, including fraud

Based on our understanding of the banking industry and regulatory environment, we identified that the principal risks of non-
compliance with laws and regulations related to rules of the Prudential Regulation Authority (“PRA”) and the Financial
Conduct Authority (“FCA™), and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the
financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial statements such
asthe CAO06.

We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including
the risk of override of controls) and determined that the principal risks were related to the posting of inappropriate journal
entries and management bias through the manipulation of the valuation of financial instruments held at fair value.

The engagement team shared this risk assessment with PwC network firms supporting the audit and designed audit procedures
to address these risks. Audit procedures performed included:

Discussing with management and those charged with governance in relation to known or suspected instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulation and fraud;

Evaluating and testing of the operating effectiveness of management’s controls designed to prevent and detect fraud in
financial reporting;

Assessing matters reported on the company’s whistleblowing helpline and the results of management’s investigation of
such matters;

Reviewing key correspondence with regulatory authorities (the PRA and the FCA) in relation to compliance and regulatory
proceedings;

Identifying and testing journal entries, in particular identifying any journal entries posted by senior management; and

Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in relation to the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. Our procedures included testing the effectiveness of management’s controls over the fair value of financial
instruments and performing an independent valuation of a sample of instruments at the period end. Audit procedures
performed in relation to level 3 derivative financial instruments held at fair value can be found in the Key Audit Matter
below.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the further removed non-compliance with laws and
regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financia statements, the less likely we would become aware of
it. Also, therisk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through
collusion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the
financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or
not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the
allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any comments we
make on the results of our procedures thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as awhole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Thisis not acomplete list of all
risks identified by our audit.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of derivative financial instruments held at fair
value

Refer to Note 28 ‘Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities’ in the financial statements.

In accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note 2 *
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to the financia
statements, derivative financia instruments are recorded in
the balance sheet at fair value and changes in fair value are
recorded in net revenues.

The valuations of derivative financial instruments are
produced by financial models using a variety of inputs. Most
of the company’s derivatives are traded in active markets and
external observable inputs are available to support
management’s valuations. Such derivatives are classified as
level 2 inthe valuation hierarchy (see Note 28). The company
also enters into complex and less liquid derivative financia
instruments where a limited or no active market exists. In
these instances, there is less observable evidence to support
the valuations and hence there is greater estimation
uncertainty. When one or more vauation inputs are
unobservable and significant, the financia instrument is
classified as level 3 in the valuation hierarchy. Total
derivative financial assets and derivative financial liabilities
were $512.56 billion and $498.39 hillion, respectively, as of
November 30, 2018, of which level 3 derivative financia
assets and derivative financial liabilities were $4.23 hillion
and $2.37 billion, respectively.

We performed a risk assessment of the derivative financial
instruments held by the company using our industry
experience and knowledge of the company’s business. We
used this analysis to identify areas of significant management
judgement and focus our testing.

We concluded that the higher assessed risks of material
misstatement relate to the valuation of certain credit and
equity derivative financial instruments classified as level 3.
This key audit matter relates to the valuation of such
derivative financia instruments. Within credit derivatives,
this included the vauation of a portfolio of financia
instruments sensitive to secured funding spreads, the
methodology for which involves a key judgement, and within
equity derivatives, a portfolio of instruments sensitive to
correlations which are unobservable.

We understood and evaluated the design and tested the
operational effectiveness of key controls over the valuation of
financial instruments. These controls included:

Validation of new and existing models by a specialist
team within the risk function, as well as access and change
management controlsin respect of modelsin use.

The monthly price verification process performed by the
Controller's function using prices and model valuation
inputs sourced from third parties.

Calculation and approval of key valuation adjustments.

We noted no significant exceptions in the design or operating
effectiveness of these controls and we determined we could
rely on these controls for the purposes of our audit. In
addition, we performed the substantive testing described
below.

We utilised internal valuation experts to independently
revalue asample of level 3 derivative financial instruments.
In each case, we used independent models. We valued a
sample of credit derivatives and evaluated management’s
methodology for determining secured funding spreads. We
aso tested the valuation inputs to external sources.
Additionally, we valued a sample of equity derivatives and, to
the extent available, independently sourced inputs such as
correlation. For samples where we utilised management’s
inputs to revalue the instrument, we assessed the
reasonableness of the inputs used.

We evaluated the methodology and underlying assumptions
used to determine valuation adjustments. We tested a sample
of valuation adjustments at the period end.

Based on the work performed, we found management's
judgements in relation to the valuation of derivative financial
instruments to be supported by the evidence obtained.

We performed testing to validate that management had
allocated derivative financia instruments to the appropriate
level within the fair value hierarchy in line with the
established policy, and that the policy classifications were
appropriate.

We read and assessed the disclosures in Note 28 ‘Financia
Assets and Financia Liabilities regarding significant
unobservable inputs and the fair value hierarchy and found
them to be appropriate.
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How we tailored the audit scope
We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the company, the accounting processes and controls, and the
industry in which it operates.

The company provides awide range of financial services to clients located worldwide. The company also operates a number of
branches and representative offices across Europe, the Middle East and Africa (EMEA) to provide financial services to clients
in those regions. We consider that the company is a single audit component.

Traders based in overseas locations enter into transactions on behalf of the company. In these circumstances, certain internal
controls relevant to financial reporting operate in those locations. In addition, there are a number of centralised functions
operated by the ultimate parent company, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., inthe U.S. or in group shared service centresin
other locations which are relevant to the audit of the company. We determined the scope of the work required in each of these
locations and we issued instructions to PwC network firms. We interacted regularly with the firms responsible for the work
throughout the course of the audit. Thisincluded reviewing key working papers and discussing the results of work in higher
risk areas of the audit. We concluded that the procedures performed on our behalf were sufficient for the purposes of issuing
our opinion.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiality.
These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent
of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of
misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as awhole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as awhole asfollows:

Overall materiality $183 million (2017: $180 million).
How we determined it 0.5% of total regulatory capital resources (2017: 0.5%) as set out on page 11 of the Annual
Report.

Rationale for benchmark The immediate and ultimate parent companies, management and the company’s regulators are
applied the primary users of the financial statements. The level of total regulatory capital resourcesis a
key focus of these users.

We agreed with the GSI Board Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above
$9 million (2017: $9 million) as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative
reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern
ISAs (UK) require usto report to you when:

the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate;
or

the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt about the company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at |east twelve
months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. For example, the terms on which the United Kingdom may withdraw from the European
Union, which is currently due to occur on March 29, 2019 are not clear, and it is difficult to evaluate al of the potential
implications on the company’s operations, customers, suppliers and the wider economy.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements (as defined
earlier) and our auditors report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

359/375



EDINETOO OO
00000000000000000OdOdo(EessTs)
ooooood

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based
on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the CA06
have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the CA06 and ISAs (UK)
require us also to report certain opinions and matters as described below (required by 1SAs (UK) unless otherwise stated).

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and
Directors Report for the period ended November 30, 2018 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements (CAQ6).

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we did not
identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors Report (CA06).

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors Responsibilities set out on page 43, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financia statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give atrue
and fair view. The directors are aso responsible for such internal controls as they determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individualy or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financia statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s member as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the CA06 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.
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Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the CA06 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

certain disclosures of directors remuneration specified by law are not made; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Appointment

We were appointed by the directors on September 22, 1988 to audit the financial statements for the period ended November 24,
1989 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total uninterrupted engagement is 30 years, covering the periods ended
November 24, 1989 to November 30, 2018.

Jonathan Holloway (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

March 20, 2019
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Goldman Sachs International (unlimited
company)

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Goldman Sachs International’s (“the company”) financial statements:

give atrue and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as of November 30, 2019 and of its profit and cash flows for
the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law); and

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report, which comprise: the Balance Sheet as of
November 30, 2019; the Profit and Loss Account, the Statements of Comprehensive Income, the Statements of Cash Flows, the
Statements of Changes in Equity for the year then ended; and the Notes to the Financial Statements, which include a
description of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Certain required disclosures have been presented in the Strategic Report in the Annual Report rather than in the Notes to the
Financial Statements. The disclosures identified as audited within the Strategic Report form an integral part of the financial
Statements.

Our opinion is consistent with our reporting to the GSI Board Audit Committee.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“1SAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financia statements
section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the U.K., which includes the Financial Reporting Council’s (“FRC") Ethical Standard as applicable to
listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not
provided to the company.

Other than those disclosed in Note 6 ‘Administrative Expenses to the financia statements, we have provided no other non-
audit services to the company in the year from December 1, 2018 to November 30, 2019.

Our audit approach
Context
The comparative period disclosed in these financia statementsis the eleven month period ended November 30, 2018.

Overview

Overall materiality: $240 million (2018: $183 million) based on 0.75% of total Tier 1 capital resources (2018: 0.5% of total
regulatory capital resources) as set out on page 10 of the Annual Report.

Audit scope: We perform a full scope audit of the financial statements of the company as a whole as a single component.

The scope of the audit and the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures were determined by our risk assessment, the
financial significance of financial statement line items and qualitative factors (including history of misstatement through
fraud or error).

Key audit matters: The key area of focus which was of the most significance in the audit was the valuation of financial
assets and liabilities, including those which are included within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. We also considered the
impact of the outbreak of anovel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) on the company.
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We discussed our plan including, the identification of key audit matters, with the GSI Board Audit Committee in July 2019
and November 2019.

The scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements. In particular, we looked at where the directors made subjective judgements, for example in respect of significant
accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain.

Capability of the audit in detecting irregularities, including fraud

Based on our understanding of the company and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws
and regulations related to rules of the Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA”) and the Prudential Regulation Authority (“PRA™),
and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We aso
considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation of the financial statements such as the
Companies Act 2006 and the Companies and Group Accounts Regul ations 2008.

We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including
the risk of override of controls) and determined that the principal risks were related to the posting of inappropriate journal
entries and management bias through the manipulation of the fair value of financial assets and liabilities.

The engagement team shared this risk assessment with PwC network firms supporting the audit and designed audit procedures
to address these risks. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team and/or other auditors included:

Discussions with management and those charged with governance in relation to known or suspected instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulation and fraud;

Evauating and testing of the operating effectiveness of management’s entity level controls designed to prevent and detect
irregularities, in particular their Code of Conduct and Whistleblowing procedures;

Assessing matters reported on the company’s whistleblowing helpline and the results of management’s investigation of
such matters,

Reviewing key correspondence with regulatory authorities (the FCA and the PRA) in relation to compliance and any
regulatory proceedings;

Identifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal entries posted by senior management;

Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in relation to the fair value measurement of financial assets
and liabilities. Our procedures included testing the effectiveness of management’s controls over the fair value of financial
assets and liabilities and performing an independent valuation of a sample of such items at the year-end; and

Incorporated unpredictability into the nature, timing and/or extent of our testing.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the further removed non-compliance with laws and
regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financia statements, the less likely we would become aware of
it. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through
collusion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the
financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or
not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the
allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any comments we
make on the results of our procedures thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as awhole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Thisis not acomplete list of all
risks identified by our audit.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of financial assets and liabilities held at fair
value

Refer to Note 28 ‘Financial Assets and Liabilities’ in the
financial statements.

In accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note 2
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to the financial
statements, the majority of the financial assets and liabilities are
recorded in the balance sheet at fair value and changes in fair
value are recorded in net revenues. Total financial assets and
liabilities at fair value were $879.99 billion and $837.68 billion,
respectively, as of November 30, 2019. The audit of the
valuation of financial assets and liabilities required significant
audit resources and involved the most significant assessed risks
of material misstatement and therefore represents a key audit
matter.

The fair values for substantially all of the company’s financia
assets and liabilities measured at fair value detailed in Note 28
Financial Assets and Liabilities are based on observable prices
and inputs and are classified in levels 1 and 2 of the fair value
hierarchy. The valuations of derivative financia instruments are
calculated by financial models using a variety of inputs. Most of
the company’s derivatives are traded in active markets and
external observable inputs are available to support management’
svaluations.

The company aso enters into complex and less liquid cash and
derivative financia instruments where a limited or no active
market exists. In these instances, there is less observable
evidence to support the valuations and hence there is greater
estimation uncertainty. When one or more valuation inputs are
unobservable and significant, the financia instrument is
classified aslevel 3inthevaluation hierarchy. Level 3 financial
assets and liabilities measured at fair value were $5.33 billion
and $12.31 hillion, respectively, as of November 30, 2019.

We performed a risk assessment of the financial instruments
held by the company using our industry experience and
knowledge of the company’s business. We used this analysis to
identify areas of greater judgement and focus our testing.

We concluded that the higher assessed risks of material
misstatement relate to the valuation of certain credit and equity
derivative financia instruments classified as level 3. Within
credit derivatives, this included the valuation of a portfolio of
financia instruments sensitive to secured funding spreads, the
methodology for which involves a key judgement, and within
equity derivatives, a portfolio of financial instruments sensitive
to correlations which are unobservable.

We understood and evaluated the design and tested the
operational effectiveness of key controls over the valuation of
financial assets and liabilities. These controls included:

Validation of new and existing models by a speciaist team
within the risk function, as well as access and change
management controls in respect of modelsin useg;

The monthly price verification process performed by the
Controller's function using prices and model valuation inputs
sourced from third parties; and

Calculation and approval of key valuation adjustments.

We noted no significant exceptions in the design or operating
effectiveness of these controls and we determined we could rely
on these controls for the purposes of our audit. In addition, we
performed the substantive testing described below.

We tested the valuation of a sample of cash instruments to third
party sources. We utilised internal valuation experts to revalue a
sample of derivative and cash financia instruments, including
level 3 instruments, using independent models.

In relation to a portfolio of credit derivatives in level 3, we
evaluated management’s methodology for determining secured
funding spreads, tested the associated valuation inputs to
external sources and reperformed the valuation of a sample.
Additionally, we valued a sample of level 3 equity derivatives
and, to the extent available, independently sourced inputs, such
as correlation. Where independent inputs are not available for
the relevant correlations, we independently estimated the
correlation.

We evauated the methodology and underlying assumptions
used to determine valuation adjustments. We tested a sample of
valuation adjustments as at the year-end.

Based on the work performed, we found management’'s
estimates of the fair value of financial assets and liabilities to be
supported by the evidence obtained.

We performed testing to validate that management had allocated
derivative financial instruments to the appropriate level within
the fair value hierarchy in line with the established policy, and
that the policy classifications were appropriate.

We read and assessed the disclosures in Note 28 ‘Financial
Assets and Liabilities regarding significant unobservable inputs
and the fair value hierarchy and found them to be appropriate.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Impact of the outbreak of COVID-19 on the financial We critically assessed directors conclusion that the matter be
statements treated as a non-adjusting post balance sheet event and that the
Refer to Note 30 ‘Non-Adjusting Post Balance Sheet  financial impact cannot be reliably estimated at this stage. We
Events’ in the financial statements. considered:
Since the balance sheet date there has been a global pandemic The timing of the development of the outbreak across the
from the outbreak of COVID-19. During the latter stages of world and in the U.K.; and

finaising the financial statements, the potential impact of

COVID-19 became significant and is causing widespread

disruption to financial markets and normal patterns of business

activity across the world, including the U.K. Based on the work performed, we are satisfied that the matter
has been appropriately evaluated and reflected in the financial

The directors have considered the impact on the financia statements.

statements and have concluded that the matter is a non-adjusting

How the financial statements and business operations of the
company might be impacted by the disruption.

post balance sheet event, the financial impact of which cannot be In forming our conclusions over going concern, we evaluated
reliably estimated at this stage, and that the going concern basis whether management’s going concern assessment considered
of preparation is appropriate. impacts arising from COVID-19. Our procedures in respect of

going concern included:

We reviewed management’s going concern assessment. We
made enquiries of management to understand the potential
impact of the COVID-19 on the company’s financia
performance, business operations and regulatory capital and
liquidity ratios.

We reviewed the company’s most recent Internal Capital
Adequacy Assessment Process and Internal Liquidity
Adequacy Assessment Process which contain the results of
the company’s latest stress tests.

Our reporting on going concern is set out below.

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole, considering the structure of the company, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in
which it operates.

The company provides avariety of financia services to clients located worldwide. The company also operates a number of
branches and representative offices across Europe, the Middle East and Africato provide financial services to clientsin those
regions. We consider the company and its branches to represent a single audit component.

Traders based in overseas group locations enter into transactions on behalf of the company. In these circumstances, certain
internal controls relevant to financial reporting operate in those locations. In addition, there are a number of centralised
functions operated by the ultimate parent company, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., in the U.S. or in group shared service
centres in other locations that are relevant to the audit of the company. We determined the scope of the work required in each
of these locations and issued instructions to PwC network firms. We interacted regularly with the firms responsible for the
work throughout the course of the audit. Thisincluded reviewing key working papers and discussing and challenging the
results of work in higher risk areas of the audit. We concluded that the procedures performed on our behalf were sufficient for
the purposes of issuing our opinion.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiality.
These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent
of our audit procedures on theindividual financia statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of
misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as awhole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as awhole as follows:

Overall materiality $240 million (2018: $183 million).
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How we determined it 0.75% of total Tier 1 capital resources (2018: 0.5% of total regulatory capital resources) as set
out on page 10 of the Annual Report.
Rationale for benchmark The immediate and ultimate parent companies, management, certain creditors (e.g. note holders)
applied and the company’s regulators are the primary users of the financial statements. The level of Tier
1 capital resourcesis akey area of focus for these users.

We agreed with the GS| Board Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above
$12 million (2018: $9 million) as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted reporting for
qualitative reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern
ISAs (UK) require us to report to you when:

the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate;
or

the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt about the company’s ahility to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve
months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

We have nothing to report in respect to the above matters.

However, because not al future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises al of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does
not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based
on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the U.K.
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit and |SAs (UK) require us also
to report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and
Directors Report for the year ended November 30, 2019 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal reguirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we did not
identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements
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As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors Responsibilities set out on page 43, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financia statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give atrue
and fair view. The directors are aso responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic aternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

certain disclosures of directors remuneration specified by law are not made; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Appointment

We were appointed by the directors on September 22, 1988 to audit the financial statements for the year ended November 24,
1989 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total uninterrupted engagement is 31 years, covering the years ended
November 24, 1989 to November 30, 2019.

Jonathan Holloway (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

March 23, 2020
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